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Dear Fellow Shareholders,

It is a pleasure to connect with you all, once again virtually in view of ongoing pandemic. On 
behalf of Emmsons Group Board of Directors, I thank you and welcome you all for joining to the 
28th Annual General Meeting of the company.

I trust your family and you are keeping well in the midst of unprecedented pandemic COVID-19. 
No doubt, Completion of 28 years in the life of a company is usually a time for celebrations, but 
The Government and industries are fighting to revive and rebuild the economy in the challenging 
situations. Your company is also taking steps to come out from this stress, yet the progress has 
been slower than expected. 

I wish to thank my colleagues on the Board and team of Emmsons Group for responding positively 
to an unprecedented challenge and most of all, I thank our shareholders for the confidence and 
faith reposed by them in the Board and the Management team, which has in my view geared up 
to take on more challenges. I can say with confidence the Company will improve its performance 
further in the coming years. This is however only possible through tireless efforts; dedication and 
commitment of our team who have helped us reach where we are now and look forward to their 
continued commitment in the journey forward.

Thank you for your time.
Regards

Sd/-
Anil Kumar Monga
Chairman & Managing Director

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

Mr. Anil Kumar Monga, Chairman & Managing Director
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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that 28th Annual General Meeting of M/s Emmsons International Limited will be 
held on Wednesday 16th March, 2022 at 04:00 P.M. through Video Conferencing/Other Audio Visual Means 
(VC/OAVM), to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.	 To receive, consider and adopt:

	 a) the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 
2021 along with the report of Board of Directors and Auditor’s thereon and 

	 (b) the audited consolidated financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2021.

2.	 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rajesh Monga (DIN: 00249642), who retires by rotation 
and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 

3.	 Appointment of Statutory Auditors:

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139,141,142 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014 
including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force, M/s 
B.B. Chaudhary & co., Chartered Accountant (FRN: 001784N) be and is hereby re-appointed as 
the Statutory Auditor of the Company for a term of five years commencing from the conclusion of 
28th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 32nd Annual General Meeting to be held in the 
year 2026 on such remuneration plus taxes as applicable, out of pocket expenses etc. as may be 
mutually agreed upon by the Board of Directors and the Auditors.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Chairman & Managing Director ,Whole Time director, Chief 
Financial Officer or the Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby authorized to do 
all such acts and take all such steps as may be considered necessary, proper or expedient to give 
effect to this Resolution.”
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NOTES:

1.	 In view of the outbreak of the Covid 19 pandemic, social distancing norms to be followed and the 
continuing restriction on movement of the person at several places in the country and pursuant to 
the general Circular dated January 13, 2021 read with Circulars dated May 5, 2020, April 8, 2020 
and April 13, 2020 is by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA Circulars”) and SEBI Circular dated 
May 12, 2020 and in compliance with the provisions of the Act and the SEBI (Listing Obligation and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 [“SEBI(LODR) Regulations”], the 28th Annual General 
Meeting of the Company is being conducted through VC/OAVM facility, without physical presence 
of the members at a common venue. The deemed venue of the 28th AGM shall be the Registered 
Office of the Company. 

2.	 In terms of the MCA circulars, physical attendance of the members at the AGM and appointment of 
proxies has been dispensed with. Accordingly the attendance slip, Proxy Form and Route Map are 
not annexed to this notice. However in pursuance of Section 112 and 113 of the Act, representatives 
of the corporate members may be appointed for the purpose of casting vote through remote e-voting 
prior to the AGM, participation in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and for electronic voting during 
the AGM.

3.	 Attendance of the members participating in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility shall be counted for 
the purpose of reckoning the quorum under section 103 of the Act.

4.	 In line with the MCA circulars and SEBI Circulars referred above, the notice of the 28th AGM along 
with annual report is being sent by e-mail to all the members, whose email IDs are registered with 
the Company. The said documents are available on the website of the Company at www.emmsons.
com and on the website of the BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and also on the website of the 
Link Intime India Private Limited (“LIIPL”) at www.linkintime.co.in.

	 The Company has published advertisements in newspaper to encourage shareholders, holding 
shares in physical and electronic form, to register/update their email ids for receiving the Annual 
Report of the Company for the financial year 2020-21.

	 Those shareholders who have still not been able to update their email IDs, may follow the process 
for registration of email IDs and procuring User IDs and Password for e-voting, on the resolution set 
out in the notice:-

	 In case shares are held in demat mode, please sent an email to enotices@linkintime.co.in 
quoting DP Client Id (16 digit DP Id+ Client ID or 16 digits beneficiary ID), Name of the holder(s), 
scanned copy of client master list/demat account statement, PAN Card and Aadhar Card.

	 In case of shares are held in Physical mode, please sent an email to enotices@linkintime.
co.in quoting Folio No., Name, scanned copy of share certificate (Front & Back), PAN card, 
Aadhar card.

5.	 All the members of the Company are encouraged to attend the AGM and vote on the items to be 
transacted at the AGM. Corporate Members are requested to send a certified true copy of the Board 
Resolution/authorization letter through email at bhalendra.singh@emmsons.com.

6.	 Pursuant to the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 effective from May 07, 2018, the requirement 
of seeking ratification of the members for the appointment of the Statutory Auditors has been 
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withdrawn from the statute. In view of the foregoing amendment, ratificationby the members for the 
continuance of their appointment is not being sought at this AGM.

7.	 The Company has fixed Wednesday, March 9, 2022 as the cut-off date for determining the eligibility 
to vote in respect of items of business to be transacted at 28th AGM.

	 Any person who acquires the shares of the Company and becomes the member of the Company 
after sending of the notice and is holding shares as on cut-off date, may obtain login ID and password 
by sending a request at enotices@linkintime.co.in However if he/she is already registered with 
linkintime for remote e voting, then he/she can use his/her existing user ID and password for casting 
the vote. Any shareholders who dispose off his/her shareholding such that he/she is not a member 
as on the cut-off date should treat this notice for information purpose only. 

8.	 CS Saurabh Agrawal (FCS:5430) from Saurabh Agrawal & Co., Company Secretaries) has been 
appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the votes cast by the shareholders in respect of the items 
of business to be transacted at the 28th AGM, in a fair and transparent manner.

9.	 In compliance with the provisions of MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars referred above, Section 108 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014, Regulation 44 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards on 
General Meetings issued by the ICSI, the Company is offering e-voting facility to the shareholders 
to enable them to cast their votes electronically on the items mentioned in the notice. Those 
shareholders, who do not opt to cast their vote through remote e-voting, may cast their vote through 
electronic voting systems during the AGM.

	 LIIPL will be providing facility for remote e-voting, participation in the 28th AGM through VC/OAVM 
and voting during the 28th AGM through electronic system. The remote e-voting period begins from 
Sunday, March 13, 2022 at 09:00 a.m (IST) and ends on Tuesday, March 15, 2022 at 05:00 
P.M (IST). The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by LIIPL for voting thereafter.

	 Members may join the 28th AGM through VC/OAVM which shall be kept open for the members on 
Wednesday, March 16, 2022 from 3:45 p.m. IST i.e. 15 minutes before the scheduled start time and 
the Company may close the window for joining the VC/OAVM facility 30 minutes after the scheduled 
start time i.e. by 4:30 p.m. on date of AGM.

	 Please refer detailed instructions for remote e-voting, attending the AGM through VC/OAVM and 
electronic voting during the AGM, annexed to this notice.

	 In addition to the normal instructions which are provided for e-voting, following Additional points to 
be included:

	 Instructions for shareholders/Members to attend the Annual General Meeeting through 
InstaMeet.

	 Instructions for shareholders/Members to attend the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet 
(VC/OAVM) are as under:

1)	 Shareholders/Members are entitled to attend the Annual General Meeting through VC/OAVM 
provided by Link Intime by following the below mentioned process. Facility for joining the 
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Annual General Meeting through VC/OAVM shall open 15 minutes before the time scheduled 
for the Annual General Meeting and will be available to the Members on first come first 
serve basis. Shareholders/Members are requested to participate on first come first serve 
basis as participation through VC/OAVM is limited and will be closed on expiry of 15 (fifteen) 
minutes from the scheduled time of the Annual General Meeting. Shareholders/Members 
with >2% shareholding, Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, KMPs, Chair Persons 
of Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee and Auditors etc. may be allowed to the meeting without restrictions of first-come-
first serve basis. Members can log in and join 15 (fifteen) minutes prior to the schedule time 
of the meeting and window for joining shall be kept open till the expiry of 15 (fifteen) minutes 
after the schedule time. Participation is restricted upto 1000 members only. Shareholders/ 
Members will be provided with InstaMeet facility wherein Shareholders/ Member shall register 
their details and attend the Annual General Meeting as under:

1.	 Open the internet browser and launch the URL for InstaMeet <https://instameet.
linkintime.co.in> and register with your following details: 

a.	 DP ID / Client ID or Beneficiary ID or Folio No.: Enter your 16 digit DP ID / Client 
ID or Beneficiary ID or Folio Number registered with the Company;

 b. 	 PAN: Enter your 10 digit Permanent Account Number (PAN);
 c. 	 Mobile No.;
 d. 	 Email ID 

2. 	 Click “Go to Meeting”

Note:

Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops 
connected through broadband for better experience. 

Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 
MBPS download stream) to avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 

Please note that Shareholders/Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or 
through Laptops connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due 
to fluctuation in their network. It is therefore recommended to use stable Wi-FI or LAN 
connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

In case the shareholders/members have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you 
can write an email to instameet@linkintime.co.in or Call us: - Tel: (022-49186175).

Instructions for Shareholders/Members to register themselves as Speakers during 
Annual General Meeting:

Shareholders/ Members who would like to express their views/ask questions during the 
meeting may register themselves as a speaker by sending their request mentioning their 
name, demat account number/folio number , email id, mobile number at (bhalendra.singh@
emmsons.com) from March 11, 2022 at 10.00 a.m. to March 12, 2022 at 10.00 a.m.

The Speakers on first come basis will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions 
during the meeting.



Emmsons International Limited | Annual Report 2020-21

|   7

Shareholders/ Members, who would like to ask questions, may send their questions in 
advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number 
at (bhalendra.singh@emmsons.com). The same will be replied by the company suitably.

Note: Those shareholders/members who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be 
allowed to express their views/ask questions during the meeting.

The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the 
availability of time for the Annual General Meeting. Shareholders/ Members should allow to 
use camera and are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download 
stream) to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

Instructions for Shareholders/Members to Vote during the Annual General Meeting 
through InstaMeet: 

Once the electronic voting is activated by the scrutiniser during the meeting, shareholders/ 
members who have not exercised their vote through the remote e-voting can cast the vote as 
under: 

1. 	 On the Shareholders VC page, click on the link for e-Voting “Cast your vote”. 

2. 	 Enter Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile 
number/ registered email Id) received during registration for InstaMeet and click on 
‘Submit’. 

3. 	 After successful login, you will see “Resolution Description” and against the same the 
option “Favour/ Against” for voting. 

4. 	 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. “Favour/Against” as desired. Enter the 
number of shares (which represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under ‘Favour/
Against’. 

5. 	 After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have 
decided to vote, click on “Save”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to 
confirm your vote, click on “Confirm”, else to change your vote, click on “Back” and 
accordingly modify your vote.

6. 	 Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or 
change your vote subsequently. 

Note: Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the Annual General Meeting through 
InstaMeet facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting 
and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting facility 
during the meeting. 

Shareholders/ Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting prior to the Annual General 
Meeting will be eligible to attend/participate in the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet. 
However, they will not be eligible to vote again during the meeting.

In case the shareholders/members have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you can 
write an email to instameet@linkintime.co.in or Call us: - Tel: (022- 49186175).
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THE INSTRUCTION FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER: 

Remote e-Voting Instructions for shareholders: 

1. 	 Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https:// instavote.linkintime.co.in Those 
who are first time users of LIIPL e-voting platform or holding shares in physical mode 
have to mandatorily generate their own Password, as under:

	 Click on “Sign Up” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and register with your following 
details: - 

A. 	  ID: Enter your User ID 

• 	 Shareholders/ members holding shares in CDSL demat account shall 
provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID;

 • 	 Shareholders/ members holding shares in NSDL demat account shall 
provide Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID;

• 	 Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form shall provide 
Event No + Folio Number registered with the Company;

B. 	 PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Members who 
have not updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP) / Company 
shall use the sequence number provided to you, if applicable.

C. 	 DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As 
recorded with your DP / Company - in DD/MM/YYYY format);

D. 	 Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), 
as recorded with your DP/Company. 

• 	 Shareholders/ members holding shares in CDSL demat account shall 
provide either ‘C’ or ‘D’, above 

• 	 Shareholders/ members holding shares in NSDL demat account shall 
provide ‘D’, above 

• 	 Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form but have not 
recorded ‘C’ and ‘D’, shall provide their Folio number in ‘D’ above.

	 Set the password of your choice (The password should contain minimum 8 
characters, at least one special Character (@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least 
one alphabet and at least one capital letter). 

	 Click “confirm” (Your password is now generated).

NOTE: If Shareholders/ members are holding shares in demat form and have registered 
on to e-Voting system of LIIPL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in, and/or voted on an 
earlier event of any company then they can use their existing password to login.

2.	 Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab. 

3.	 Enter your User ID, Password and Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and click on 
‘Submit’. 
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4. 	 After successful login, you will be able to see the notification for e-voting. Select ‘View’ 
icon. 

5.	 E-voting page will appear. 

6.	 Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option 
‘Favour / Against’ (If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the ‘View 
Resolution’ file link).

7. 	 After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’. A confirmation 
box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on ‘Yes’, else to change your 
vote, click on ‘No’and accordingly modify your vote. 

8.	 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians 
are required to log on the e-voting system of LIIPL at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in 
and register themselves as ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’. They are also 
required to upload a scanned certified true copy of the board resolution /authority letter/
power of attorney etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorised 
representative(s) in PDF format in the ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’ login 
for the Scrutinizer to verify the same.

If you have forgotten the password: 

o	 Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and further Click ‘forgot password’ 

o	 Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and Click on 
‘Submit’. 

• 	 In case shareholders/ members is having valid email address, Password will be sent 
to his / her registered email address. 

• 	 Shareholders/ members can set the password of his/her choice by providing the 
information about the particulars of the Security Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/
DOI, Bank Account Number (last four digits) etc. as mentioned above. 

• 	 The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special character 
(@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter. 

•	 It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and 
take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only 
for voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice. 

During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of time till they 
have voted on the resolution(s) for a particular “Event”. 
Shareholders/ members holding multiple folios/demat account shall choose the voting 
process separately for each of the folios/demat account.

In case shareholders/ members have any queries regarding evoting, they may refer the 
Frequently Asked Questions (‘FAQs’) and InstaVote e-Voting manual available at https:// 
instavote.linkintime.co.in, under Help section or send an email to enotices@linkintime.
co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022 - 4918 6000. InstaVote Support Desk.
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Link Intime India Private Limited 

Instructions for shareholders to vote electronically: 

▶ 	 Log-in to e-Voting website of Link Intime India Private Limited (LIIPL) 

1. 	 Visit the e-voting system of LIIPL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://instavote. linkintime.co.in.

2. 	 Click on “Login” tab, available under ‘Shareholders’ section. 

3.	 Enter your User ID, password and image verification code (CAPTCHA) as shown on 
the screen and click on “SUBMIT”. 

4. 	 Your User ID details are given below: 

a. 	 Shareholders holding shares in demat account with NSDL:Your User ID 
is 8 Character DPID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 

b. 	 Shareholders holding shares in demat account with CDSL:Your User ID 
is 16 Digit Beneficiary ID.

c.	 Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form (i.e. Share Certificate): 
Your User ID is Event No + Folio Number registered with the Company 

5. 	 Your Password details are given below: 

If you are using e-Voting system of LIIPL: https:// instavote.linkintime.co.in for the 
first time or if you are holding shares in physical form, you need to follow the steps 
given below:

Click on “Sign Up” tab available under ‘Shareholders’ section register your details 
and set the password of your choice and confirm (The password should contain 
minimum 8 characters, at least one special character, at least one numeral, at least 
one alphabet and at least one capital letter).

For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form or Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department 
(applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders). 
• Members who have not updated their PAN with depository Participant or 
in the company record are requested to use the sequence number which is 
printed on Ballot Form / Attendance Slip indicated in the PAN Field

DOB/ DOI Enter the DOB (Date of Birth)/ DOI as recorded with depository participant 
or in the company record for the said demat account or folio number in dd/
mm/yyyy format.

Bank Account 
Number

Enter the Bank Account number (Last Four Digits) as recorded in your 
demat account or in the company records for the said demat account or 
folio number. 
• Please enter the DOB/ DOI or Bank Account number in order to register. 
If the above mentioned details are not recorded with the depository 
participants or company, please enter Folio number in the Bank Account 
number field as mentioned in instruction (iv-c).
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	 If you are holding shares in demat form and had registered on to e-Voting system 
of LIIPL: https://instavote. linkintime.co.in, and/or voted on an earlier voting of any 
company then you can use your existing password to login.

	 If Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form or Physical Form have 
forgotten password:

	 Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA). Click on 
“SUBMIT”. 

	 In case shareholder is having valid email address, Password will be sent to the 
shareholders registered e-mail address. Else, shareholder can set the password 
of his/her choice by providing the information about the particulars of the Security 
Question & Answer, PAN, DOB/ DOI, Dividend Bank Details etc. and confirm. (The 
password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special character, at 
least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter).

	 NOTE: The password is to be used by demat shareholders for voting on the 
resolutions placed by the company in which they are a shareholder and eligible to 
vote, provided that the company opts for e-voting platform of LIIPL. 

	 For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for 
voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice. 

	 It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and 
take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

▶ 	 Cast your vote electronically 

6. 	 After successful login, you will be able to see the notification for e-voting on the 
home page of INSTA Vote. Select/ View “Event No” of the company, you choose to 
vote. 

7. 	 On the voting page, you will see “Resolution Description” and against the same the 
option “Favour/ Against” for voting. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option 
i.e. Favour/Against as desired. Enter the number of shares (which represents no. of 
votes) as on the cut-off date under ‘Favour/Against’. You may also choose the option 
‘Abstain’ and the shares held will not be counted under ‘Favour/Against’. 

8.	 If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the ‘View Resolutions’File 
Link. 

9. 	 After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/ Against as desired and you have 
decided to vote, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish 
to confirm your vote, click on “YES”, else to change your vote, click on “NO” and 
accordingly modify your vote. 

10. 	Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or 
change your vote subsequently. 

11. 	 You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on “Print” option 
on the Voting page.
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▶ 	 General Guidelines for shareholders: 

•	 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required 
to log on to e-Voting system of LIIPL: https://instavote. linkintime.co.in and register themselves 
as ‘Custodian /Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’.

	 They are also required to upload a scanned certified true copy of the board resolution /authority 
letter/power of attorney etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorised 
representative(s) in PDF format in the ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’ login 
for the Scrutinizer to verify the same. 

•	 During the voting period, shareholders can login any number of time till they have voted on the 
resolution(s) for a particular “Event”. 

• 	 Shareholders holding multiple folios/demat account shall choose the voting process separately 
for each of the folios/demat account. 

•	  In case the shareholders have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, please refer the 
Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and Instavote e-Voting manual available at https://
instavote.linkintime.co.in, under Help section or write an email to enotices@ linkintime.co.in or 
Call us :- Tel : 022 - 49186000. 

The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the 
Company. The results shall also be communicated to the Stock Exchange viz. BSE Limited.

										          For and on behalf of the Board

								        Sd/-
Dated: 02.02.2022					         	 (Anil KumarMonga)
Place: New Delhi 	 					     Chairman & Managing Director
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

Emmsons International Limited

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting this 28th  Annual Report on the business and operations of the 
Company together with Audited Financial Statement for the financial year ended March 31, 2021.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS									       

Standalone (Rs. in Lacs) Consolidated (Rs. in Lacs)
Financial Year 

2020-21
Financial Year 

2019-20
Financial Year 

2020-21
Financial Year 

2019-20
Revenue From Operations - - - -
Other Income 0.26 0.84 0.26 0.84
Total Income 0.26 0.84 0.26 0.84
Expenses:

Employee Benefit Expenses 19.91 51.83 19.91 51.83
Finance Cost 14762.71 14787.48 14762.71 14787.48
Depreciation and Amortization 
expenses

22.06 48.59 22.06 48.59

Other Expenses 29.04 632.98 29.04 632.98
Total Expenses 14833.71 15520.88 14833.71 15520.88
Profit/(Loss) before 
exceptional items and tax 

(14833.45) (15520.03) (14833.45) (15520.03)

Exceptional Items - - - -
Profit/(Loss) before tax (14833.45) (15520.03) (14833.45) (15520.03)
Tax Expenses - -

Profit/(Loss) after tax (14833.45) (15520.03) (14833.45) (15520.03)
Other Comprehensive Income 
(OCI)

8.06 (9.58) 8.06 (9.58)

Total comprehensive 
income for the year

(14825.39) (15529.62) (14825.39) (15529.62)

Earnings Per Share
Basic & Diluted

(123.65) (129.38) (123.65) (129.38)

COVID-19:

In the last month of FY 2020, the COVID 19 pandemic developed rapidly into a global crisis, forcing 
government to enforce lock downs of all economic activities. For the Company the focus immediately 
shifted to ensuring the health and well being of all employees.    

DIVIDEND:											         

Company has suffered huge losses during the year; hence Board has not recommended any dividend 
for the year ended 2020-21. 
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

During the financial year 2020-21, the Company has on a standalone basis, registered total revenues of Rs. 
0.26 Lacs as compared to Rs. 0.84 Lacs in the previous year, reflecting a huge decrease in the revenue. 
The net loss of company is Rs. (14833.45 lacs) during the year as compared to loss of Rs. (15520.03 lacs).

FIXED DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted any deposits in terms of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014, during the year under review.

PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES, OVERSEAS

The Company has till the end of the financial year, two overseas Subsidiary Companies, namely:

•	 Emmsons Gulf DMCC,  

•	 Emmsons SA. 

Emmsons Gulf DMCC:									       

The business of the Company’s subsidiary Emmsons Gulf DMCC was also affected adversely. The Company 
has not made any financial transactions during the F.Y. 2020-21 and has further represented that for deep 
financial crunch no staff was employed by them to prepare year ending financial statement.	

Emmsons S.A:									      

The business of the Company’s subsidiary Emmsons S.A was also affected adversely. The Company has 
not made any financial transactions during the F.Y. 2020-21 and has further represented that for deep 
financial crunch no staff was employed by them to prepare year ending financial statement.		

In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, the Audited Consolidated Financial Statement is provided 
in the Annual Report and performances of the subsidiary companies are attached in AOC-1 to this 
report. 	

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

During the year under review, the Company has not changed the nature of its business.

MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Six meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the year and the intervening gap between any two 
meetings was within the period prescribed under Companies Act, 2013.. For further details, please refer 
report on Corporate Governance forming part of Annual Report.

DIRECTORS 

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Rajesh Monga retires by rotation at this 
Annual General Meeting and is eligible for re-appointment. The Board recommends his appointment for 
the consideration of members of the Company at ensuing Annual General Meeting.

During the year Mr. Bhalendra Pal Singh was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

During the year Mr. Prashant Pratap Singh was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company.
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KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In compliance with provisions of section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, following are the KMPs of the 
Company as on 31st March, 2021:

Serial No. Name Designation

1 Anil Kumar Monga Chairman & Managing Director

2 Rajesh Monga Whole Time Director

3 Bhalendra Pal Singh Chief Financial Officer

4 Prashant Pratap Singh Company Secretary

DECLARATION UNDER SECTION 149(6)

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming 
that they meet the criteria of independence as mentioned under Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 
of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMMES FOR BOARD MEMBERS

Your Company has formulated Familiarization Programme for all the Board Members in accordance with 
Regulation 25 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the 
Schedule IV of the Companies act, 2013 which provides that the Company shall familiarize the Independent 
Directors with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of industry in which 
the Company operates, business model of the Company etc. through various programs.

COMPANY’S POLICY ON APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has been following well laid down policy on appointment and remuneration of Directors, 
KMP and Senior Managerial Personnel.

The appointment of Directors is made pursuant to the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee (NRC).

The remuneration of Executive Directors comprises of Basic Salary and Perquisites & follows applicable 
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. Approval of shareholders and the Central Government, if any, 
for payment of remuneration to Executive Directors is sought from time to time. At present, due to adverse 
financial position of the company, Executive Directors are working without remuneration.

The remuneration of Non-Executive directors comprises of sitting fees in accordance with the provisions 
of Companies Act, 2013 and reimbursement of expenses incurred in connection with attending the Board 
meetings, Committee meetings, General Meetings and in relation to the business of the Company.

A brief of the Remuneration Policy on appointment and remuneration of Directors, KMP and Senior 
Management is provided in the Report on Corporate Governance.

EVALUATION OF BOARD PERFORMANCE

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the corporate governance requirements as 
prescribed by SEBI (LISTING Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board has 
carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board Committees and Individual Directors.
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The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the directors on 
the basis of the criteria such as diversity of the Board, effectiveness of the board processes, information 
and functioning etc.

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the committee 
members on the basis of the criteria such as the composition of committees and effectiveness of committee 
meetings etc.

The performance of the individual directors was reviewed on the basis of the criteria such as the contribution 
of the individual director to the Board and committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be 
discussed, meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in meetings etc.

The performance of non-independent directors, Board as a whole and of the Chairman was evaluated in 
a separate meeting of Independent Directors after taking into account the views of executive directors and 
non-executive directors.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENT MADE, GUARANTEE GIVEN AND SECURITIES 
PROVIDED

The particulars of the Loans given, investment made, guarantee given, securities provided is mentioned in 
Standalone financial statement (please refer Note 32 and 34(b) of standalone financial statement)

CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All the contract(s)/arrangement(s)/transaction(s) entered by the Company during the financial year with 
related parties were in the Ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis. There is no materially 
significant related party transactions entered into by the Company with its Promoters, Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel or other Related Parties, which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the 
Company at large.

All related party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for its approval. Prior omnibus approval 
of the Audit Committee is obtained for the transactions, which are repetitive in nature. A statement giving 
details of all related party transactions is placed before the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors for 
their approval on a quarterly basis. 

Your Directors draw the attention of the members to Note No.32 of the Financial Statements which sets 
out related party disclosures under Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS).

Further, the disclosure as required under section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 form 
part of this report as, Annexure 1.

The Policy on Related Party transactions may be accessed on the Company’s website at the link http://
www.emmsons.com/files/related-party-transaction-policy.pdf

Your Directors draw attention of the Members to the note 32 to the standalone financial statement which 
set out the related party disclosures.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

As the Company is not having any distributable profits and revenue from last three financial years, hence 
provisions of Section 135 with respect to corporate social responsibility are not able to the Company. 
However for the composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility, please refer to the Corporate 
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Governance Report which is a part of this report.

The Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed herewith marked as Annexure-2

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The details pertaining to the composition of the Audit committee are included in the Corporate Governance 
Report which is part of this report.

AUDITOR’S REPORT 

M/s B.B Chaudhary & Co Statutory Auditors of the Company have submitted Auditors’ Report on the 
accounts of the Company for the accounting year ended 31st March, 2021. The Auditors’ Report is self-
explanatory and requires no comment. 

However, the Board gives the following explanations to the para (vii) (c) in the Annexure A to the Auditors’ 
Report to the member: 

The Auditors have pointed out certain demands raised by Income Tax Authorities. The company has filed 
appeals against the demands, which are pending before concern authorities. The company is confident 
of succeeding in the appeals. 

Further, the Board gives the following explanations to the para (viii) in the Annexure A to the Auditors’ 
Report to the member:

The business of the company has been adversely affected by the global commodities market. This has 
resulted in tight liquidity position and affected company’s ability to meet its financial obligations. The 
Company is making efforts to improve its operation.

AUDITORS

M/s A N S K & Associates (Formerly known as M/s Akhil Mittal & Co.) , Chartered Accountants, (ICAI Firm 
Registration No. 026177N) was resigned as the statutory auditor of the Company w.e.f. 9th September, 
2020 during the year. Accordingly M/s B.B Chaudhry & Co., Chartered Accountant was appointed as the 
statutory auditors of the Company by the members of the Company through Postal Ballot to fill the casual 
vacancy caused by the resignation of the M/s A N S K & Associates.

Appointment of M/s B.B Chaudhry & Co, for a further period of five years is being proposed in the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

The Board has appointed M/s. Saurabh Agarwal & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries, New Delhi to 
conduct Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2020-21. The Secretarial Auditor Report for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2021 is annexed herewith marked as Annexure-3 to this Report. The board gives the 
following explanations on the Observations of the Secretarial Audit Report of the Auditor:

1.	 The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues of Provident Fund, 
Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Service Tax and GST.

2.	 The company has filed appeals against the demands, which are pending before CIT(A). The company 
is confident of succeeding in the appeals. 
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3.	 The business of the company has been adversely affected by the global commodities market. This 
has resulted in tight liquidity position and affected company’s ability to meet its financial obligations. 
The Company is making efforts to improve its operation.

4.	 The company has duly submitted the quarterly as well as standalone financial results with the stock 
exchange under regulation 33 of SEBI(LODR).  Due to non consolidation of accounts of its overseas 
subsidiaries attributable to unavoidable reasons, the company has made delayed in submission of 
consolidated financial results with the stock exchange under regulation 33 of SEBI(LODR).

5.	 Since the accounts of the company has not been consolidated with its overseas subsidiaries with 
due time, due to unavoidable reasons, the company has not filed Annual Performance Report with 
Reserve Bank of India under the provisions of Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999(FEMA).

	 Rest of the points mentioned in the Secretarial Audit Report are self explanatory.

VIGIL MECHANSIM

Pursuant to provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has established a 
“Vigil Mechanism” incorporating whistle blower policy in terms of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for employees and Directors of the Company, for expressing the genuine 
concerns of unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the code of conduct by way of 
direct access to the Chairman/Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Company has also provided adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and Directors 
who express their concerns.

The Policy on Vigil Mechanism may be accessed on the Company’s website at the link http://www.
emmsons.com/files/vigil-mechanism.pdf

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The Copy of the Annual Return as required under Section 92(3) and Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 has been placed on the website of the Company.  The web link as required under the Act is as 
under: http://www.emmsons.com 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We believe that it is important for us to manage our business affairs in the most fair and transparent manner 
with a firm commitment to our values. Your Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of 
Corporate Governance. A Separate section on Corporate Governance together with a certificate from the 
Company’s Auditors confirming the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in 
Regulation 27 under SEBI (listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is annexed 
hereto.

The requisite Certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary confirming compliance with the conditions 
of Corporate Governance as stipulated under the aforesaid Regulation 27 under SEBI (listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015  is attached to this Report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

A detailed Management Discussion and Analysis Report as required under Regulation 34(2)(e) of SEBI 
(listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is annexed as Annexure-5 to this 
report.
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LISTING OF SECURITIES 

The Equity Shares of your Company are listed at Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, Floor 25 Phiroze 
Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai. The scrip code of the Company for the Bombay Stock Exchange 
Limited is 532038.

The Company has duly paid the listing fee to the aforesaid Stock Exchange for the financial Year 2020-21.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Considering the nature of business of the Company, energy does not form a significant portion of the 
cost for the Company yet wherever possible and feasible, continues efforts are being put for conservation 
of energy and minimizing power cost. Keeping in view of the nature of business of the Company, no 
technology is being used.

Details of Foreign Exchange used and earned is as follows: - 

	 Rs. In Lacs

Foreign Exchange Earning:  Nil

Foreign Exchange Outgo: NIL

STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURE

In terms of the provisions of section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) rules, 2014 information of the employees are 
provided as an Annexure-A.

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014 are provided as an Annexure-A. 

In terms of section 197(14) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company does not have any Holding Company. 
The Managing or Whole Time Director does not receive any remuneration or commission from any holding 
or subsidiary of the Company.

CHANGE OF REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY

The Registered Office of your Company is situated at Flat No. 301, Plot No. 12, Zamrudpur, Community 
Centre, Kailash Colony, New Delhi – 110048 as on 31st March, 2021.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSINBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, The Board hereby submit its 
responsibility statement–

a)	 In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed 
along with the proper explanation relating to  material departures;

b)	 Appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and have made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs 
of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the company for the period;
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c)	 Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the 
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d)	 The Annual Accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis

e)	 the Internal financial controls have been laid down to be followed by the Company and that such 
internal financial control are adequate and are operating effectively and;

f)	 Proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 
such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIALS ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

The relevant pending litigations with Regulators or Courts have been disclosed as Contingent Liabilities 
in note no. 37 of the notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019. There are no 
significant and material orders passed by the Regulators/ Courts, which would impact the going concern 
status of the Company and its future operations.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Your Company has in place a mechanism to inform the Board about the risk assessment and minimization 
procedures and undertakes periodical review of the same to ensure that the risks are identified and 
controlled by means of a properly defined framework. In the Board’s view, there are no material risks, 
which may threaten the existence of the Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY

There have been no significant material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 
Company, which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the 
financial statements relate and the date of this Report.

POLICY ON PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

The Company’s policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at workplace is in line with requirements of 
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and Rules 
framed thereunder. Internal Complaint Committees have also been set up to redress complaints received 
regarding sexual harassment. The Company has received no complaints during the financial year 2020-21.

GENERAL DISCLOSURES

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there 
were no transaction on these items during the year under review:

1.	 Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act.

2.	 Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

3.	 Significant or material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the 
going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

4.	 Change in nature of Business of Company.
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DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS

1.	 Policy for determining material subsidiaries of the Company is available on the website of the Company 
at weblink: htttp://www.emmsons.com/files/Policy for Determining Material Subsidiary.pdf

2.	 Policy for Preservation of Documents of the company is available on the website of the Company 
at weblink: htttp://www.emmsons.com/files/Policy on Preservation of Documents under SEBI 
Regulations, 2015.pdf

3.	 Policy for Material Events and Information’s of the Company is available on the website of the Company 
at weblink: htttp://www.emmsons.com/files/Policy on Disclosure of Material Events and Information’s 
under SEBI Regulations, 2015.pdf

4.	 Policy of Nomination and Remuneration policy is available on the website of the Company at weblink: 
htttp://www.emmsons.com/files/Nomination and Remuneration policy.pdf

5.	 Policy on Terms and conditions for appointment of Independent Directors is available on the website 
of the Company at weblink:htttp://www.emmsons.com/files/Terms and conditions for appointment of 
Independent Directors.pdf

6.	 Policy for Evaluation of the Performance is available on the website of the Company at weblink:htttp://
www.emmsons.com/files/Policy for Evaluation of the Performance.pdf

7.	 Code of Fair Disclosure and Code of Conduct for insiders is available on the website of the Company 
at weblink:htttp://www.emmsons.com/files/Code of Fair Disclosure and Code of Conduct for insiders.
pdf

8.	 Code for Board and Senior Members is available on the website of the Company at weblink:htttp://
www.emmsons.com/files/Code for Board and Senior Members.pdf

GREEN INITIATIVE

As in the previous years, this year too, and keeping in view the pandemic of COVID 19 Notice of 28th 
Annual General Meeting of the Company and Annual Report of the Company for the financial year 
2020-21 are sent to all members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company/ Depository 
Participant(s).

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the co-operation extended to the Company 
by Government, Commercial Banks, Business Associates, Shareholders, Customers and Executives, 
Officers and staff at all level.

		  For and on behalf of the Board

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-                                                            
	 (ANIL KUMAR MONGA)	 (RAJESH MONGA)
Dated: 02.02.2022	 Managing Director	 Whole Time Director
Place: New Delhi	 (DIN:00249410)	 (DIN: 00249642)



EMMSONS

22   |

Annexure “A” to the Directors’ Report

Information required as per section 197(12)  of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) rules, 2014 and forming part of Director’s 
Reports for the year ended 31st March 2021.

(A)  	 Persons employed throughout the financial year, who were in receipt of remuneration for the year, 
which, in the aggregate, was not less than Rs. 102.00 Lacs.

NIL

 (B)  	 Persons employed for a part of the financial year who were in receipt of remuneration for any part 
of the year, at a rate which, in the aggregate, was not less than Rs. 8.50 Lacs per month. 

NIL

(C)  	 Persons employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of   remuneration 
in that year which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate is in 
excess of that drawn by the managing director or whole-time director or manager and holds by 
himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than two percent, of the equity 
shares of the company. 

NIL

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 197(12)

Details pertaining to remuneration as required under section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

(i) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary 
during the financial year 2020-21, ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of 
the employees of the Company for the financial year 2020-21 and the comparison of remuneration of each 
Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the Company are as under:

Sr. 
No

Name of Director/Key 
Managerial Personnel

Remuneration 
of Director/KMP 
for financial year 

2020-21

% increase in 
Remuneration 
in the financial 
year 2020-21

Ratio of 
remuneration 

of each 
Director/KMP 

to median 
remuneration 
of employees

Comparison of the 
Remuneration of 

the Key Managerial 
Personnel against 

the performance of 
the Company

1 Mr. Anil Monga
Managing Director

Nil 0.00% NIL The company has 
incurred loss during 

the financial year 
2020-21

2 Mr. Rajesh Monga
Whole Time Director

Nil 0.00% NIL

3 Mr. Rahul Chopra Nil 0.00% NIL

4 Ms.SoniBenydinJaiprakash Nil 0.00% NIL

5 Mr. Bhupinder Singh Nil 0.00% NIL

6 Mr. Bhalendra Pal Singh 2.29 Lacs NA 0.82

7 Mr. PrashantPratap Singh 
(Company Secratory) 

0.80 Lacs NA 0.30
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Notes:

1.	 Remuneration includes Salary, House Rent Allowance, Bonus, Leave Travel Concession, Medical 
Assistance and other allowances paid in cash and taxable value of non cash perquisites.

2. 	 Ms.Soni Benydin Jaiprakash, Mr. Rahul Chopra and Mr. Bhupinder Singh are Non Executive 
Independent Directors of the Company being entitled for sitting fee based on number of meeting.

	 However considering bad financial position of the company independent director attended rest 
meeting without sitting fee  .

3.   	 Mr. Bhalendra Pal Singh has been appointed as CFO of the Company with effect from 30th 
September, 2020.

4.	 Mr. Prashant Pratap Singh has been appointed as Company Secretary with effect from 15th October, 
2020.

(i) 	 Number of permanent employees on the roll of the Company was 5 as on March 31, 2021.

(ii) 	 The median employee remuneration of employees of the company during the financial year 
was Rs. 2.66 Lacs .

(iii)	 In the financial year there was increase of 29.23% in the median remuneration of employees.

(iv)	 Relationship between average increase in remuneration and company performance:-  Due 
to heavy losses in the company, some employees left the company and median employee 
change, hence reflect increase in median employee remuneration. However no increase in the 
remuneration of any employee during the financial year 2020-21.

(v)	 Comparison of Remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel: The Company has incurred 
loss during the financial year 2020-21.

(vi) 	 a) 	 Variation in market capitalization of the Company:

		  Market Capitalisation as on March 31, 2021:INR 245.92Lacs.

		  Market Capitalisation as on March 31, 2020:  INR  243.52 Lacs.

      	 b)	 Price Earnings ratio of the Company:	

		  Price Earnings ratio as on March 31, 2021: Negative

		  Price Earnings ratio as on March 31, 2020: Negative

 (vii)	 There was no average percentage increase/decrease made in the salaries of the employees 
other than the Managerial Personnel in the last financial year i.e 2020-21 as well as   in the 
Managerial Remuneration for the same financial year.

(viii)	 The key parameters for the variable component of remuneration availed by directors are 
considered by the Board of Directors based on the recommendation of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee as per the Remuneration policy for Directors/Key Managerial 
Personnel and other employees.
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(viii) 	 The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not 
directors but receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the financial 
year 2020-21.

	 Name of highest paid Director and salary:- Directors’ remuneration is NIL due to Inadequacy 
of Profit.

	 Name of employees:-Bhalendra Pal Singh (INR 2.29 Lacs)

	 Ratio:- NA 

(ix)	 It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees.

		  For and on behalf of the Board

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-                                                            
	 (ANIL KUMAR MONGA)	 (RAJESH MONGA)
Dated: 02.02.2022	 Managing Director	 Whole Time Director
Place: New Delhi	 (DIN:00249410)	 (DIN: 00249642)
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ANNEXURE-1 TO DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section(3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars contracts/ arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s 
length transactions under third proviso thereto.

Details of Contracts or Arrangements or Transactions not at Arm’s length basis:

Sr. No Particulars Details

1 Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Nil

2 Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Nil

3 Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction Nil

4 Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the 
value, if any

Nil

5 Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions’ Nil

6 Date of approval by the Board Nil

7 Amount paid as advances, if any Nil

8 Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as 
required under first proviso to section 188

Nil

Details of Contracts or Arrangements or Transactions at Arm’s length basis:

Sr. 
No

Name (s) of the 
related party 
& nature of 
relationship

Nature of 
contracts/
arrange-
ments/trans-
action

Duration 
of the con-
tracts/
arrange-
ments/
transaction

Salient 
terms of the 
contracts or 
arrangements 
or transaction 
including the 
value, if any

Date of 
approval 
by the 
Board

Amount 
paid as 
advances, 
if any

Amount
(` Lakhs)

1 Anil Monga
(Chairman & 
Managing Director)

Unsecured 
Loan

Ongoing Mutual NA Nil 35.53

2 Travsol Worldwide 
Private Limited

Unsecured 
Loan

Ongoing Mutual NA Nil 5.00



EMMSONS

26   |

ANNEXURE 2 TO THE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities for the financial year 2020-
2021

Item No Particulars Detail

1 A brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy including overview of 
projects or programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference 
to the web-link to the CSR Policy and projects or programs and the 
composition of CSR Committee 

Refer: Corporate 
Social Responsibility 

statement in the 
Director’s Report

2 Average net profit of the Company for the last three financial years NIL

3 Prescribed CSR expenditure (being two percent of the amount 
mentioned in item 2)

NIL

4 Details of CSR spent during the financial year

Total amount to be spent for the financial year NIL

Amount un-spent, if any NIL

Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year N.A

Details of Amount spent on CSR activities during the Financial year 2020-21

Sr. 
No

CSR 
Project or 
Activity 

identified

Sector in 
which the 
project is 
covered 

(clause no. 
of Schedule 

VII to the 
Companies 

Act, 
2013 as 

amended)

Project of 
program (1) 
Local Area 

or Other 
(2) Specify 
the state 

and district 
where 

projects or 
programs 

was 
undertaken

Amount 
outlay 

(Budget) 
Project or 
Program 

wise

Amount 
spent on 

the projects 
or programs
Sub Heads
(1) Direct 

Expenditure 
on projects 
or programs

(2) 
Overheads

Cumulative 
Expenditure 

upto the 
reporting 
period i.e 

F.Y 2020-21

Amount 
Spent Direct 
or Through 

implementing 
Agency

-- ----- ----- ---- ---- ---- ---- ----

		  For and on behalf of the Board

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-                                                            
	 (ANIL KUMAR MONGA)	 (RAJESH MONGA)
Dated: 02.02.2022	 Managing Director	 Whole Time Director
Place: New Delhi	 (DIN:00249410)	 (DIN: 00249642)
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ANNEXURE-3 TO DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

For The Financial Year Ended 31st March, 2021
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members
Emmsons International Limited
CIN: L74899DL1993PLC053060
Flat No. 301, Plot No.12, Zamrudpur
Community Centre, Kailash Colony
Delhi - 110048

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 
adherence to good corporate practices by Emmsons International Limited (herein after called “the 
Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating 
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the company, its officers, 
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our 
opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 
made hereinafter:

We hereby declare that due to nationwide COVID 19 pandemic, we have not visited the office of the 
Company. Entire report is based on the information/data received on email and otherwise.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 according to the provisions of:

(i)	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under as amended from time to time;

(ii)	 The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

(iii)	 The Depositories Act, 1956 and the regulations  and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv)	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (FEMA) and the rules and regulations made there under 
to the extent of the Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings;

(v)	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

a.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011;

b.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
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c.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2009; [Not applicable as the Company has not issued any further capital under 
the regulations during the period under review].

d.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 
2014.

e.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities), Regulations, 
2008 [Not applicable as the Company has not issued and listed any debt securities during 
the financial year under review].

f.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealings with the client;[Not applicable 
as the Company is not registered as Registrar to issue and Share Transfer Agent during the 
financial year under review].

g.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; 
[Not applicable as the Company has not delisted/proposed to delist its equity shares from 
any stock exchange during the financial year under review] and

h.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy Back of Securities) Regulations, 1998;[Not 
applicable as the Company has not bought back/proposed to buy back any of its securities 
during the financial year under review].

(vi)	 The company has complied with other Laws as applicable to the Industry as per the undertaking 
given by the company:

1.	 Essential Commodities Act

2.	 APEDA

3.	 Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006 and Rules 2011 read with allied rules and regulations

4.	 Legal Metrology Act, 2009

5.	 Legal Metrology (Packaged Commodities) Rules, 2011. 

	 We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i)	 Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii)	 The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Bombay Stock Exchange 
and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:-

1.	 The Company has not appointed a qualified Company Secretary in violation of Section 203 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 6 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.

2. 	 The Company has made delay in submission of quarterly results for the quarter ended on 30th June, 
2020 in violation of the relevant provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.

3.	 The Company has accumulated losses of Rs. 183697.65 lacs and its net worth has been fully eroded, 
the Company has incurred net loss consecutively from two years. 

4.	 Company has not consolidated its accounts with its two subsidiaries i.e. Emmsons Gulf DMCC, 
Dubai and Emmsons SA, Switzerland for the financial year 2018-19 and 2019-20.
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5.	 The Companies bank accounts were declared Non Performing Assets (NPA) in the year 2014 & 2015 
and no settlement has been made yet.

	 Following dues have not been deposited with the following authorities on account of disputes:-

S.No. Period of Demand Amount Involved 
(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars of demand Appeal 
pending before

1. A.Y.2003-04 19.46 Income Tax CIT(A)
2. A.Y. 2004-05 5.57 Income Tax CIT(A)
3. A.Y. 2008-09 7.05 Income Tax CIT(A)

4. A.Y. 2009-10 .88 Income Tax CIT(A)

4. A.Y. 2011-12 0.50 Income Tax CIT(A)

5 A.Y. 2012-13 431.32 Income Tax CIT(A)

6. A.Y. 2013-14 23.43 Order by CPC-TDS u/s 154 CIT(A)

7. A.Y. 2014-15 2.71 Order by CPC-TDS u/s 154 CIT(A)

8. A.Y. 2013-14 401.58 Income Tax CIT(A)

9. A.Y. 2014-15 579.13 Income Tax CIT(A)

116.75 Custom Act Honorable 
Commissioner 

(Appeals 
Custom)

	 The company has defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings as follows:-

S. 
No.

Name of Lender Total Amount of default 
(Rs. In Lacs)

Period of Default

1. Oriental Bank of Commerce 86130.03 Due between May, 2015 to 
March 2021

2. Indian Overseas Bank 41952.71 Due between March, 2015 to 
March, 2021

3. Bank of Baroda 25587.83 Due between May, 2015 to 
March, 2021

4. Allahabad Bank 25122.27 Due between July, 2015 to 
March, 2021

Less: Sale of immovable 
property mortgaged to Bank

(31.36)

Total 178,761.48

6.	 The Company has not convened the Annual General Meeting for the financial year ended on 31st 
March, 2019 and 31st March, 2020. Consequently Company has not made the filing of annual returns 
and financial results (standalone as well as consolidated) as required pursuant to Section 92 and 129 
of the Companies Act, 2013 with Registrar of companies. 

7.	 Company has not complied with the provisions of Regulation 33(3) (d) of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 with respect to submission of audited consolidated 
financial results for the year ended 31st March, 2019 and 31st March, March 2020 with the Stock 
Exchange. 

8.	 Company has not complied the provisions of Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015.
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9.	 Company has not comply the provisions of Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (FEMA) 
with respect to filing of Annual Performance Report with Reserve Bank of India for the year ended 
31.03.2020 &3103.2021.

10. 	 Company has not complied with the various provisions of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time. 

In respect of other laws specifically applicable to the company, we have relied on information/data provided 
by the Company during the course of audit and reporting is limited to that extent.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There was no change in the composition of the 
Board of directors by way of any appointment and resignation of the Directors during the year.

During the year, Mr. Prashant Pratap Singh was appointed as key managerial personnel as Company 
Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company and Mr. Bhalendra Pal Singh was appointed as Key 
Managerial Personnel as Chief Financial Officer of the Company. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed notes 
on agenda were sent within prescribed time limit, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at 
the meeting.

All the decisions of Board of Directors and Committee Meeting were carried unanimously.

We further report that based on the review of compliance mechanism established by the Company, 
we are of the   opinion that there is scope to improve the systems and processes in the Company and 
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the following event has occurred which had a major 
bearing on the Company’s Affair in pursuance of the laws, rules, regulations and standards etc:

	 Bombay Stock Exchange vide their notice number 20210308-42 dated 08th March, 2021, 
suspended the trading in the securities of the Companies for non compliance with the 
provisions of Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations 2015. Company is still in default for the said regulation. 

	 Bombay Stock Exchange vide their email dated 11th March, 2021 had frozen the demat 
accounts of all the entities mentioned in the shareholding pattern of the Company for non 
compliance of Regulation 6(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations 2015, pertaining to the appointment of qualified Company Secretary. Company 
has made the default good by appointment of qualified Company Secretary, though 
Company has not paid the fine imposed by BSE .

	 Sd/-
	 Saurabh Agrawal
	 Saurabh Agrawal & Co.
Place: New Delhi	 Company Secretaries)
Date: 30.12.2021	 FCS No.: 5430
	 C.P. No.: 4868
	 UDIN: F005430C002005065
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‘ANNEXURE A’

To
The Members
Emmsons International Limited
CIN: L74899DL1993PLC053060
Flat No. 301, Plot No.12, Zamrudpur
Community Centre, Kailash Colony
Delhi – 110048

Our Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 31st March, 2021 is to be read along with this letter.

	 Management Responsibility

1.	 It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secretarial records, devise 
proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations 
and to ensure that the systems are adequate and operate effectively;

	 Auditor’s Responsibility

2.	 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and procedures 
followed by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances;

3.	 We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company’s management is 
adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion;

4.	 We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was 
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe 
that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion;

5.	 Wherever required we have obtained the management’s representation about the Compliance 
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc;

	 Disclaimer

6.	 The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company;

7.	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriations of financial records and books of 
accounts of the Company. 

	 Sd/-
	 Saurabh Agrawal
	 Saurabh Agrawal & Co.
Place: New Delhi	 Company Secretaries)
Date: 30.12.2021	 FCS No.: 5430
	 C.P. No.: 4868
	 UDIN: F005430C002005065
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Annexure-4 to the Director’s Report

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW

Company is facing financial crunch from the last years. Resulted there is no trading activities during the 
year. 

Emmsons International Limited has outstanding liabilities payables to various Banks in borrowings made 
from the Banks.. Company has defaulted in payment of interest and repayment of loans to these banks. 
Banks have demanded back the loans disbursed to the company and its subsidiaries but company has 
no financial means to repay the borrowings. All accounts of the company and its subsidiaries have been 
classified as Non-Performing Assets (NPA). The directors of the company are making best efforts to sell 
the coal mine in Indonesia owned by step subsidiary M/s PT Bara EnergiMakmur Coal Project. It has 
given to banks to liquidate the coal mine and settle all the debts to the banks. Banks of Borada has got 
the mine valued from the International valuer M/s SALVA Mining Consultants. As per valuation report the 
mine is valued from USD 178 Million to USD 299 Million If Coal mine is liquidated for above amount, all 
liabilities of the banks shall be settled by payment leaving adequate funds with the management to restart 
the business activities which are presently closed for Scarcity of funds. For these facts director believe that 
company has fair changes to restart the business and have prepared the accounts on a going concern 
basis.			 

IMPACT ON COMPANY’S PERFORMANCE

The Company’s core business segment is export of Agro Commodities was adversely affected due to 
financial crunch faced by the company also makes addition to it and thus resulted in reduction in turnover 
and increases in losses for the year.

OUTLOOK

The company continues to remain positive of a quick recovery in the coming years. The commodity prices 
have strengthening in the global markets. It should help the company to recover in the near future.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Company has faced tough time during the year and noted a annual turnover from 00.26 Lacs in the 
previous year to 00.84 Lacs in the current year. The net loss for the year was lower at Rs. 14833.45 Lacs 
as compared to 15520.03 Lacs in the previous year.

RISK AND CONCERNS								      

Since the Company is into trading activity, it is attributed to all the risks and concerns attached with the 
trading industries as a whole.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Emmsons Board, along with executive and functional leadership provides oversight to identify and 
understand significant risks. They also put in place systems of risk management, compliance and control 
to mitigate these risks. 
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The Company has proper and adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the business 
operations geared towards achieving efficiency in its various business operations, safeguarding assets, 
optimum utilization of resources and compliance with statutory regulations. 

HUMAN RESOURCE 

The Company’s comprehensive HR policy inter-alia provides manpower training and development, keeping 
in mind the growing requirement for custom trained manpower at its new initiatives. The Company’s office 
is fully computerized. The management interacts regularly with staff members to understand their needs 
and problems and to create a suitable working environment.

INSURANCE

All assets of the company including stocks have been adequately insured. Insurance claims are very low 
due to vigorous follow up.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s objectives, projections, 
estimates and expectations may be ‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable securities 
laws and regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied. Important 
factors that could make a difference to the Company’s operations include economic conditions affecting 
demand/supply and price conditions in the domestic and overseas markets in which the Company 
operates changes in the Government regulations, tax laws, and other statutes and other incidental factors. 
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the requirements of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Chapter IV of 
the Securities & Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (SEBI Listing Regulations).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY

The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is aimed at assisting the management in the efficient 
conduct of the business and in meeting its obligations to stakeholders. A Strong emphasis on transparency 
accountability and integrity guide its philosophy. The Company acts responsibly as an integral part of 
the society by adhering to high compliance standards. The Company has consistently shown a high 
level of commitment towards effective Corporate Governance. The Company’s philosophy on Corporate 
Governance envisages attainment of higher levels of transparency, accountability and ethical conduct 
in all facets of its operations and interactions with it stakeholders including shareholders, employees, 
customers, suppliers, government, lenders and the community at large, It aims to increase and sustain 
its corporate value through growth and innovation. The Company believes that its operations and actions 
must serve the underlying goal of enhancing the interests of its stakeholders over a sustained period of 
time, in a socially responsible way. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is fully compliant with the Corporate Governance norms in respect of constitution of 
the Board of Directors. The Company’s Board represents an optimum mix of knowledge, gender and 
experience.

A.	 Composition and category of the Board of Directors are as follows:

(i)	 Executive Directors*

Name Date of 
Appointment

Designation No. of 
meetings 
held during 
the Last 
Financial 
Year

No. of 
Meetings 
Attended

No. of 
Membership 
in Boards 
of other 
Companies**

No. of 
Membership/ 
Chairmanships 
in Committees of 
other Companies

Mr. Anil Kumar 
Monga

15-04-1993 Chairman & 
Managing 
Director

6 6 NIL NIL

Mr. Rajesh 
Monga

15-04-1993 Whole Time 
Director

6 6 NIL NIL

*Executive Directors do not hold any Independent Directorship in Listed Companies 

*Excludes Directorships/Memberships in Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies, Section 8 
Companies, Bodies Corporate, Memberships of Managing Committees of various Chambers/Bodies.
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(ii)	 INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Name Date of 
Appointment

Designation No. of 
meetings 
held 
during 
the Last 
Financial 
Year

No. of 
Meetings 
Attended

No. of 
Membership 
in Boards 
of other 
Companies*

No. of 
Membership/ 
Chairmanships 
in Committees 
of other 
Companies**

Ms. Soni 
Benydin 
Jaiprakash

14-02-2015 Director 6 1 NIL NIL

Mr. Rahul 
Chopra

28-03-2018 Director 6 6 NIL NIL

Mr. Bhupinder 
Singh

15-03-2019 Director 6 4 3 Nil

As per the declarations/disclosures received from Ms. Soni Benydin Jaiprakash, Mr. Bhupinder Singh 
and Mr. Rahul Chopra, they do not serve as Independent Directors on the Board of more than 7 listed 
Companies. They are also not acting as Whole-time Directors on the Board of any listed Company.

The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors are available on the Company’s 
website viz.; www.emmsons.com at: http://emmsons.com/notices/ Terms and conditions for appointment 
of Independent Directors.

The Company also has a familiarization programme for its Independent Directors, which is available at 
http://emmsons.com/notices/familiarization program.

PROCEDURE TO CONDUCT MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Board meetings are generally held at the admin office of the Company and are convened by giving 
appropriate advance notice to all the Directors of the Company. The Meeting of the Board is governed 
by structured agenda papers which are circulated to Directors generally one week before the meeting. 
All material information is incorporated in the agenda papers for facilitating meaningful and focused 
discussions at the meeting. In case of exigencies or urgency, resolutions are passed by circulation. The 
Board of Director at its succeeding meeting takes note of the resolution(s) which have been passed by way 
of Circulation. 

INFORMATION SUPPLIED TO THE BOARD

The Board has complete access to all information of the Company. The following information is provided to 
the board and the agenda papers for the meetings are circulated in advance of each meeting:

•	 Annual operating plans, capital and revenue budgets and updates

•	 Minutes of meetings of Audit Committee and Other Committees of the Board

•	 Details of Subsidiaries of the Company and its updates

•	 Information on recruitment and remuneration of senior officers just below the Board level including 
appointment or removal of Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

•	 Materially important Litigation, Show Cause, Demand, Prosecution and Penalty Notices
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•	 Status of Litigations by or against the Company

•	 Any material relevant default in financial obligation to and by the Company 

•	 Details of any Joint Venture or Collaboration Agreement

•	 Formation/reconstitution of Board Committees and terms of references

•	 Appointment, remuneration and resignation of Directors

•	 Disclosure of Director’s interest and their shareholding

•	 Compliance Certificate from Director and Company Secretary, certifying compliance of all laws 
applicable to the Company

•	 All other information which is relevant for decision-making by the Board.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS HELD DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2020-21:

During the year under review, your Directors have met 6 (Six) times, at the various dates, as mentioned 
herein below: 

No. of Board Meetings Held Dates of Board Meetings

01 31-07-2020

02 30-09-2020

03 15-10-2020

04 12-11-2020

05 04-12-2020

06 15-02-2021

B.	 Pecuniary relationships or transactions of the Non-Executive Directors vis-à-vis the 
Company

	 Ms. Soni Benydin Jaiprakash, Mr. Bhupinder Singh and Mr. Rahul Chopra, Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company do not have any material pecuniary relationship with the Company 
other than the sitting fees paid to them.

C.	 Relationships between Directors Inter se

Except Mr. Anil Kumar Monga and Mr. Rajesh Monga, none of the Director of the Company is related 
to any other Directors of the Company.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board has constituted Committee(s) with specific terms of reference and scope, namely: Audit 
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholder Relationship Committee and 
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. The committees operate as empowered agents of the 
Board as per their charter/terms of reference. The practice to present the minutes of the meetings of 
Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholder Relationship Committee 
and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, before the Board of Director for their perusal, is being 
maintained continuously. The details as to the composition, terms of reference, number of meetings and 
attendance etc. of these Committees are provided hereunder:
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Audit Committee of the Board comprises following members with optimum combination of Executive and 
Non-Executive Independent Director. Following is the composition of the Audit Committee:

Mr. Anil Kumar Monga, Executive Director;

Mr. Rahul Chopra, Non executive independent director;

Ms. Soni Jaiprakash Benydin, Non executive independent director

The Chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Rahul Chopra, an independent director having sound financial 
knowledge. The majority of the audit committee members, including the Chairman, have accounting and 
financial management expertise. A representative of the Statutory Auditors is invited as and when required. 

Powers of the Audit Committee:

•	 To investigate any activity within terms of reference

•	 To seek information from any employee

•	 To obtain outside legal or professional advice

Role of Audit Committee, interalia, includes the following:

1.	 Overview of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information 
to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

2.	 Recommending the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or removal of the 
statutory auditor’s and the fixation of audit fees.

3.	 Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors.

4.	 Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the board for 
approval, with particular reference to the 

	Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the 
Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

	Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same. 

	Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management.

	 Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.

	Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements.

	 Disclosure of any related party transactions and Qualifications, if any, in the draft audit report. 

	Qualifications in the draft audit report.

	Management Discussion and analysis of Financial Condition

5.	 Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly, half yearly, nine monthly and annually financial 
statements standalone as well as consolidated before submission to the Board for approval.

6.	 Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors and adequacy of the 
internal control systems.
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7.	  Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal Audit 
Department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage 
and frequency of internal audit.

8.	 Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit 
as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

9.	 Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments

10. 	 To review the function of the vigil mechanism

11. 	 Approval of appointment of the CFO (i.e the Whole Time Finance Director or any other person heading 
the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing qualifications, experience and 
background etc of the candidate

12. 	 Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

	 The dates on which the meetings of audit committee were held and attendance of the members of 
the Committee during the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 are as follows:

No. of Meetings Held Date of meetings

01 31-07-2020

02 30-09-2020

03 12-11-2020

04 04-12-2020

05 15-02-2021

S. No. Name of the Members Meetings held Meeting attended

2 Ms. Soni Benydin Jaiprakash 5 1

3 Mr. Anil Kumar Monga 5 5

4 Mr. Rahul Chopra 5 5

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Constitution and Terms of Reference 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of 

Ms. Soni Benydin Jaiprakash, Non executive Independent Director

Mr. Rahul Chopra, Non executive Independent Director, and

Mr. Anil Kumar Monga, Executive Director 

Mr. Rahul Chopra is the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The broad terms 
of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall identify persons who are qualified to 
become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid 
down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal carry out evaluation of every director’s 
performance. To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and/or 
enforced by any statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable. To perform such 
other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its duties
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The details of the Nomination & Remuneration committee Meetings are as follows:

No. of Meetings Held Date of meeting
01 30-09-2020

02 15-10-2020

Sl. No. Name of the Members Meetings attended
1 Ms.  Soni Benydin Jaiprakash 0
2 Mr. Anil Kumar Monga 2
3 Mr. Rahul Chopra 2

Remuneration Policy and Payment

The Company has two Executive Directors on its Board whose appointment, terms as well as remuneration 
have been approved by the Members in the General Meetings and also by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, pursuant to the provisions of the section 178 read with schedule V to the Companies Act, 
2013. Further, there are no such arrangements to pay the remuneration to Non- Executive Directors, apart 
from their sitting fee for attending the meetings, during the financial year ended 31st March, 2021. The 
Company pays sitting fee of Rs. 20,000/- per meeting to the non-executive directors for attending the 
meeting each of the Board and Committee(s) thereof. However considering bad financial position of the 
company independent director attended rest meeting without sitting fee  . 

The details of the remuneration paid to the Directors including Chairman & Managing Director and Whole 
time Director during the financial year 2020-21 is as under:

Name Designation Tenure of 
appointment

Salary
(Rs.)

Sitting 
Fees

(Rs.)

Commission
(Rs.)

Other 
Perquisite
(Rs.)

Total
(Rs.)

Mr. Anil Kumar 
Monga

Chairman & 
Managing 
Director

Three years 
w.e.f. 

01.09.2018*

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Rajesh 
Kumar Monga

Whole Time 
Director

Three 
Years w.e.f 
01.01.2017

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Ms. Soni 
Benydin 
Jaiprakash

Independent 
Director

- Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Rahul 
Chopra

Independent 
Director

- Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Bhupinder 
Singh

Independent 
Director

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Note: Remuneration includes Salary, House Rent Allowance, Bonus, Leave Travel Concession, Medical  
Assistance and other allowances paid in cash and taxable value of non cash perquisites.
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The key terms of reference of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee (stipulated by the Board) under 
Regulation 19 and schedule II Part D of the SEBI Listing Regulations are as under:

•	 To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of 
a Director and recommend to the Board, a policy relating to the remuneration of Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and other employees;

•	 To formulate criteria for evaluation of the performance of Independent Directors and the Board;

•	 To devise a policy on Board diversity

•	 To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior 
Management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the Board their appointment 
and removal.

•	 To extend or continue the term of appointment of the Independent Directors on the basis of the report 
of performance evaluation of the Independent Directors.

•	 Performance Evaluation Criteria for Independent Directors(ID)

	 The Nomination & Remuneration Committee has formulated the criteria for evaluation of Independent 
Directors. Based on the said criteria, the performance of the Independent Directors was evaluated 
during the year.

•	 Performance Evaluation of the Board/Committees

	 The Board carries out the evaluation of the performance of Directors and Committees of the Board.

	 The purpose of the evaluation is to assess the performance of the Directors in discharging their 
responsibilities and to evaluate hoe effectively the Board, the Directors and the Committees were 
fulfilling their roles and duties.

	 An annual Board evaluation is conducted to assess the performance of the Board as a whole and that 
of individual Board members. Performance is assessed based on clearly defined objective criteria, 
which are in line with the Company’s policy. Performance is measured against commitments and 
best-in-class benchmarks. Plans for orderly succession of the Senior Management are also in place.

	 As required under Regulation 25 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, a separate meeting of the Independent 
Directors of the Company was also held on to evaluate the performance of the Chairman. Non-
Independent Directors and the Board as a whole and also to assess the quality, quantity and timelines 
of flow of information between the management of the Company and the Board. 

•	 Policy on Remuneration to the Managing Director, Whole Time Director, Key Managerial 
Personnel (KMP) and senior Management Personnel

	 Remuneration to the Managing Director and Whole Time Directors shall be in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies act, 2013. Increments to the existing remuneration/ compensation 
structure shall be recommended by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee to the Board, which 
shall be within the overall maximum limits of managerial remuneration approved by the shareholders 
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for the Managing Director and Whole-Time directors of the Company. The overall managerial 
remuneration in respect of any financial year shall be in accordance with the provisions laid down 
under section 197 and schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

       If in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall 
make payment of remuneration within the maximum limits as minimum remuneration to the Managing 
Director and Whole-time Directors of the Company based on the approval of the Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee, Board and subject to the approval of the Shareholders and such other 
approvals, as may be required, in accordance with the provisions of section 197 and schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013.

	 As there was loss during the financial year 2020-21, no remuneration was paid to the Managerial 
Personnel.

	 The Company does not have Employee Stock Options Scheme for its Directors and Employees.

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

Constitution and Objective

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted the Stakeholder Relationship Committee which 
is chaired by Mr. Bhupinder Singh, Non-Executive and Independent Director to specially consider and 
resolve the grievances of security holders of the Company. 

Other members of the committee are: 

Mr. Anil Kumar Monga, 

Mr. Rajesh Monga, and 

Ms. Soni Benydin Jaiprakash.

The terms of reference of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee covers the matters specified in Part D 
of the Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The Committee looks into the Redressal of shareholders’ 
and investors’ complaints/ grievances. The Committee also looks into complaints concerning transfer 
of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of dividends etc. The Committee also oversees the 
performance of Registrar and Share Transfer Agent and recommends measures for overall improvement 
in the quality of investor service. 

All matters related to shares vis a vis transfers, deletions, transmissions, dematerialization and 
rematerialization of shares etc. have been duly attended to by the Company within the prescribed time 
lines during the financial year 2020-21.

The composition of Stakeholder Relationship Committee and terms of references meet with the 
requirements of Regulation 20 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015 
and provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

No application and Complaints received from shareholder/ investor are pending during the year under 
review.
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The details of the Stakeholder Relationship committee are as follows:

No. of Meetings Held Date of meeting

1 15-02-2021  

Sl. No. Name of the Members Meetings attended

1 Mr. Anil Kumar Monga 01

2 Mr.  Rajesh Monga 01

3 Mr. Bhupinder Singh 01

4 Ms. Soni Benydin Jaiprakash 00

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

Constitution and Terms of Reference 

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises of Ms. Soni Benydin Jaiprakash, Mr. 
Anil Kumar Monga and Mr. Rajesh Monga in the year 2020-21.  The Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee is constituted pursuant to the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

However Company is not having any profits to make the expenditure towards the Corporate Social 
Responsibility, hence did not finalize any area.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ MEETING

Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder mandate that the Independent Directors 
of the Company to hold at least one meeting in a year, without the attendance of Non-Independent 
Directors. At such meetings, the Independent Directors, inter alia review the performance of (i) Chairman, 
Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole, (ii) Chairman of the Company taking into account 
view of Executive/ Non-Executive Directors and (iii) assessing the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow 
of information between the Company’s management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to 
effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATE

A certificate from the Chief Executive Officer(Managing Director) on the financial statements and other 
matters of the Company as provided in Regulation 17(8) and schedule II Part B of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 was placed before the Board at its meeting held 
on 30th June, 2021 and the same is annexed to this report.

REPORT ON MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  	

A detailed report on the Management Discussion and Analysis is given separately and is a part of Annual 
Report.

MANAGEMENT DISCLOSURE

During the year under review, there were no transactions of material nature with the promoters, the 
directors or the management or relatives, etc. that had potential conflict with the interest of the Company. 
All disclosures related to financial and commercial transactions where directors may have a potential 
interest are provided to the board and the interested directors do not participate in the discussion nor do 
they vote on such matters.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All Related Party Transaction that were entered during the financial year were on an Arm’s Length basis 
and were in the ordinary course of business. The particulars of contract/arrangement entered into by the 
Company with Related Parties is NIL and the same are attached herewith marked as Annexure-2 of the 
Director’s Report.

CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS FOR DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Company has established the Code of Business Conduct ethics for all directors, officers and employees 
of the Company (“the Code”). This Code is a comprehensive Code applicable to all Directors, Officers and 
employees working at various level of the Company. The Code while laying down, in detail, the standard of 
business conduct, ethics and governance, centers around the following theme-

“All Directors, Officers and employees of the Company are committed to conducting its business in 
accordance with the applicable laws, rules and regulations and with highest standards of business ethics. 
This code is intended to provide guidance and help in recognizing and dealing with ethical issues, provide 
mechanisms to report unethical conduct, and to help foster a culture of honesty and accountability. Each 
Director, officer and employees are expected to comply with this code in letter and spirit.

The Company has also formulated code on Prevention of Insider Trading. 

Declaration required under Regulation 17(5) of SEBI(Listing obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

All the members covered under the “Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Board Members and Senior 
Management” have affirmed compliance of the said code for the Financial year. 

	

	 For and on behalf of the Board

	 Sd/-
Dated: 02-02-2022	 (ANIL KUMAR MONGA)
Place: New Delhi	 Chairman &Managing Director
	 (DIN : 00249410)
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INFORMATION WITH RESPECT TO THE RE-APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS:

Mr. Rajesh Monga

Mr. Rajesh Monga holds a bachelor degree.  He is associated with the company since its inception. He is 
being energetically involved and responsible for procurement of commodities in domestic market.

He does not hold Directorship in any company apart from your company

Mr. Rajesh Monga may be deemed to be concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, to the extent of 
the aforesaid shareholding in respect of his re-appointment as a Whole Time Director.

Mr. Anil Monga who is his relative and the Managing Director of the Company and their other relatives, to 
the extent of their shareholding interest in the Company, may be deemed to be concerned or interested in 
the appointment of Mr. Rajesh Monga.

Save and except the above, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their 
relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item 
No.2 of the Notice.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

Details of the General Meeting held during the last three years are as under:

Sl. 
No.

Date and Year of AGM Time of AGM          Venue of AGM

1. 24th May, 2018
(23rd AGM)

11.00 A.M Niryat Bhawan, Rao Tula Ram Marg, Opp. Army 
Hospital Research & Referral, New Delhi -110057

2. 24th May, 2018
(24th AGM)

1.00 P.M Niryat Bhawan, Rao Tula Ram Marg, Opp. Army 
Hospital Research & Referral, New Delhi -110057

3 26th April, 2019
(25th AGM)

11.00 A.M Niryat Bhawan, Rao Tula Ram Marg, Opp. Army 
Hospital Research & Referral, New Delhi -110057

SPECIAL RESOLUTION PASSED IN LAST THREE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS

Details of Special Resolutions passed in last three Annual General Meetings held are as under:

Sl. No. Date and Year of 
AGM

Special Resolution

1. 24th May, 2018
(23rd AGM)

•	 No Special Resolution has been passed.

2. 24th May, 2018
(24th  AGM)

•	 Re-appointment of Mr. Rajesh Monga as Whole Time Director effective 
from 1st January, 2017 to 31st December, 2020 without remuneration.

•	 Alteration in the Object Clause and Liability Clause of Memorandum of 
Association to be in conformity with Companies Act, 2013.  

3. 26th April, 2019
(25th AGM)

•	 Re-appointment of Mr. Anil Kumar Monga as Managing Director 
effective from 1st September, 2018 to 31st August, 2021 without 
remuneration.

•	 Mr. Bhupinder Singh who was appointed as Additional Director now 
appointed as a Non Executive Independent Director for a term up to 
14th March, 2024. 
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Pursuant to the provisions of section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations, the Company had extended e-voting facility to its members to casts their votes electronically 
on all resolutions set forth in the Notice convening the 23rd, 24th and 25th Annual General Meeting held 
on 24th May, 2018 and 26th April, 2019. On the day of the Annual General Meeting, the Company also 
conducted voting at the venue on all the resolutions and the resolutions were passed with the requisite 
majority.

•	 Attendance of Directors at 25th AGM during the last financial year:

	 Following Directors were present at the last AGM held on 26th April, 2019

1.	 Mr. Anil Kumar Monga

2.	 Mr. Rajesh Monga

3.	 Mr. Rahul Chopra

4.	 Mr. Bhupinder Singh

POSTAL BALLOT

During the financial year 2020-21, the Company has passed an Ordinary Resolution through postal ballot 
for the appointment of the Statutory Auditors of the Company to fill the casual vacancy caused by the 
resignation of M/S A N S K & Associates.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATIONS:

a)	 Communication to Shareholders

	 The Company is maintaining a functional website i.e., www.emmsons.com, in compliance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Agreement. The website contains the following 
information:-

	 Basic information of the Company, e.g. details of its business, financial information etc. 

	 Shareholding pattern, compliance with Corporate Governance and contact information of 
designated official of the Company who are responsible for assisting and handling investor 
grievances.

	 Quarterly/Half yearly/Nine- monthly and Annual Results.

	 Annual Report

	 Various Corporate Policies

	 All important information pertaining to the Company is also mentioned in the Annual Report of 
the Company which is circulated to the members and others entitled thereto for each financial 
year.

Quarterly/Half yearly/Nine-monthly and Annual Financial Results of the Company are published in Leading 
English and Hindi Dailies like ‘The Business Standard’.

Your Company provides necessary information to the Stock Exchange in terms of the SEBI(LODR) 
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Regulations, 2015 and other rules and regulations issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India. 
Required Forms and Returns are filed with the Registrar of Companies.

DISCLOSURES

1)	 Investor Grievance:

	 As mentioned herein before, the Company has constituted Stakeholder Relationship Committee to 
redress Shareholders’ and Investors’ Complaints.

2)	 Share Transfer Agent

	 M/s. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. has been appointed Share Transfer Agent of the Company.

3)	 Details of Non- Compliance

•	 The Company has not conducted Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year ended 31st 
March, 2019 and 31st March, 2020. The Company is ready for compounding the offence.

•	 Due to non-withholding of the Annual General Meeting within the stipulated time as permitted by 
the Companies Act, 2013, for the financial year ended 31st March, 2019 and 31st March, 2020, 
the company has not filed Annual Report to Bombay Stock Exchange as per Regulation 34 of 
SEBI(LODR), Regulations 2015. The Company has paid the penalty as imposed by the BSE for 
the violation of  Regulation 34 of SEBI(LODR), Regulations 2015.

•	 The Details of other Non- Compliances is mentioned in the Secretarial Audit Report forming part 
of this Annual Report and observation for the same is given in the Board’s Report.

4)  	 The Company has complied with all the applicable requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and 
section 46 of SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015.

5)	 The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted (i) the Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair 
Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information and (ii) the Code of Conduct as required under 
SEBI(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. 

6) 	 During the year no case was filed pursuant to Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

7)	 The Company has no material subsidiary.

8)  	 There was no materially significant related party transaction that may have any potential conflict with 
interest of the Company at large. Transaction with related parties are disclosed in Note No.39 to the 
Financial Statements. The policy on dealing with realted party transactions as approved by the Board 
may be accessed on the Company’s website at the link http://www.emmsons.com/Notices/Related 
Party Transaction Policy.
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GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

Registered & Admin Office:		  Flat No. 301, Plot No.12, Zamrudpur Community Centre, 		
					     Kailash 	Colony, New Delhi – 110048

Annual General Meeting:	

No. of Meeting Year Location Date &Time

28th  2020-21 Through Video Conferencing/other 
audio visual means

16.03.2022
04:00 p.m

Financial Calendar:		  1st April to 31st March 			 

Results for the quarter ending June 30, 2021 In the mid of August 2021

Results for the quarter ending September 30, 2021 In the mid of November, 2021

Results for the quarter ending December 31, 2021 In the mid of February, 2022

Results for the quarter/year ending March 31, 2022 In the mid/end of May, 2022

Annual General Meeting for the year ending March 2022 Latest by September, 2022

Dividend:	 The Board of Directors has not recommended any Dividend on Equity Shares of
		  the Company for the financial year 2020-21.

Listing:             The securities of the Company are listed on the following Stock Exchange:

		  The BSE Limited, Mumbai (BSE), 1st Floor, New Trading Ring, Rotunda Building,
		  P.J Towers, Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai-400 001.

		  Listing fee, as applicable, has been duly paid to the aforesaid Stock Exchange.

Stock Code:	 The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, Mumbai : 532038

Registrar and Transfer Agent (R&TA):

M/s Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. is Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company. The shareholders 
are advised to approach M/s Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. at the following address for any share and demat 
related queries and/or problems:

M/s Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. 
Noble Heights, 1st  Floor, Plot NH 2,				             
C-1 Block LSC, Near Savitri Market,                                      
Janakpuri, New Delhi- 110058
Tel: 011-41410592, 41410594
Contact Person: Mr. Bharat Bhushan
e-mail id: bharatb@linkintime.co.in

The RTA processes shares sent for transfer, transmission etc every 10-15 days from the data of receipt 
thereof. Transfer/transmissions that are complete in all respects are processed and the certificates in 
respect thereof are returned to the lodger/shareholder within 15 days of lodgment.
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Details of Company’s Dematerialized shares:

As at the end of 31st March 2021, 11681230 Equity Shares (97.38% )of the equity capital of the company) 
were dematerialized. 

Details of Share Capital of the company as on 31st March, 2021 is as under:

Particulars In Rs.

Authorised Capital 15,00,00,000

Issued and Subscribed Capital 11,99,60,400

Paid Up Capital 11,99,60,400

Stock Price Data:

The Monthly high and low prices of your Company’s shares in comparison with high and low of the Sensex 
for the relevant month for the year ended 31st March, 2021 are given below:

Month Share price (in Rs.) SENSEX

Highest Lowest Highest Lowest

April-2020 2.03 2.03 33887.25 27500.79

May-2020 1.93 1.75 32845.48 29968.45

June-2020 1.67 1.32 35706.55 32348.10

July-2020 1.43 1.10 38617.03 34927.20

August-2020 1.15 0.96 40010.17 36911.23

September-2020 1.05 0.95 39359.51 36495.98

October-2020 1.20 1.00 41048.05 38410.20

November-2020 1.25 1.25 44825.37 39334.92

December-2020 1.20 1.15 47896.97 44118.10

January-2021 1.98 1.05 50184.01 46160.46

February-2021 2.13 2.01 52516.76 46433.65

March-2021 2.05 2.05 51821.84 48236.35

Note- In some cases wherever historical data was not available on BSE site, previous month’s figures 
has been considered as highest / lowest price.
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Stock Performance for the year 2020-21:

Sensex Movement for the year 2020-21

Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March, 2021: 

No. of Equity shares Number of 
Shareholders

%age Number of 
shares

%age 

1   to 500 1154 66.7438 149368 1.2451

501 to 1000 225 13.0133 193337 1.6117

1001 to 2000 127 7.3453 215996 1.8006

2001 to 3000 37 2.1400 97357 0.8116

3001 to 4000 40 2.3135 150576 1.2552

4001 to 5000 13 0.7519 61527 0.5129

5001 to 10000 45 2.6027 344670 2.8732

10001 to ****** 88 5.0896 10783209 89.8897

Total 1729 100 11996040 100
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Distribution of Shareholding among Promoter and Public as on 31st March, 2021

As the end of Financial year, i.e. 31.03.2021, the Distribution of shareholdings between promoter and 
public group of the Company are 6051230 equity shares (50.44%) and 5944810 equity shares (49.56%), 
respectively. The further bifurcation is herein below:

LAND/FACTORY LOCATION

Since the Company is engaged in the business of International trading and has no manufacturing activities 
hence it has no plant/factory.

Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any Convertible Instruments, conversion date and 
likely impact on equity

During the year under review the Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs /Warrants or any Convertible 
Instruments.

Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has a Vigil mechanism under which the employees are free to report violations of applicable 
laws and regulations and the Code of Conduct. The reportable matters may be disclosed to the Ethics 
and Compliance Task Force which operates under the supervision of the Audit Committee. Employees 
may also report to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. During the year under review, no employee was 
denied access to the Audit Committee.

CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR’S DECLARATION

I, Anil Kumar Monga, Chairman & Managing Director of Emmsons International Limited declare that all 
Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with ‘Code of Conduct 
for Board & Senior Management Personnel’ for the year ended 31st March, 2021.

Sd/-
Date : 02.02.2022	 Anil Kumar Monga

Place : New Delhi	 Chairman & Managing Director 
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To the Members of
Emmsons International Limited

1.	 We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Emmsons International 
Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended March 31, 2021 as stipulated in Regulations 17-27, 
clause (b) to (i) of Regulations 46(2) and paragraph C,D, and E of schedule V of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(Listing Regulations) pursuant to the listing Agreement of the Company with the Stock Exchange.

2.	 Compliance of the regulations of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. 
Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company 
for ensuring the compliance of the regulations of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an 
expression of the opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

3.	 In our opinion and to the best of our information and explanations given to us, we certify that the 
Company has not fully complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in listing 
regulations including following:

i.	 The Company has not convened the Annual General Meeting for the Year ended 31st March, 
2019 and 31st March, 2020; consequently Company has not filed annual return and financial 
statements Standalone as well as Consolidated for the financial year ended 31st March, 2019 
and 31st March, 2020 with the Registrar of Companies; 

ii.	 The Company has not submitted the audited consolidated financial results to the stock 
exchange in pursuance of provisions of Regulations 33 (3) (d) of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

iii.	 The Company has not complied with the provisions of Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

iv.	 The Company has not filed Annual Performance Report with Reserve Bank of India for the 
year.

v.	 The Company has made default in repayments of the loans or borrowings from banks;

vi.	 Some dues of Income Tax have not been deposited on account of disputes.

vii.	 Company has not appointed Company Secretary during the year.

viii.	 Demat accounts of the Promoters and promoter’s group is freeze. 

4.	 We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 
nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company.

						      For: Saurabh Agrawal & Co.
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
Saurabh Agrawal

M.No. 5430
CP No. 4868

UDIN: F005430C00251
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To,
The Members of
Emmsons International Limited

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the 
Directors of Emmsons International Limited, having CIN L74899DL1993PLC053060 and having 
registered office at Flat No. 301, Plot No.12, Zamrudpur Community Centre, Kailash Colony, Delhi - 110048 
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing 
this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors 
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations 
furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board 
of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2021 have been debarred or 
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (SEBI) and Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) or any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment in the Company

1 Anil Kumar Monga 00249410 15-04-1993

2 Rajesh Monga 00249642 15-04-1993

3 Soni Jaiprakash Benydin 07096130 14-02-2015

4 Rahul Chopra 07982762 28-03-2018

5 Bhupinder Singh 00062754 15-03-2019

*the date of appointment is as per MCA Portal.

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility 
of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion based on our verification. 
This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For: Saurabh Agrawal & Co.
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
Saurabh Agrawal

M.No. 5430
CP No. 4868

UDIN: F005430C002515014
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CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION 

The Board of Directors 
Emmsons International Limited 

(a) 	 We have reviewed the financial statements and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on 31st 
March, 2021 and to the best of our knowledge and belief 

i. 	 These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material facts or 
contain statements that might be misleading; 

ii. 	 These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b)	 There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company 
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company’s code of conduct. 

(c)	 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls and that we have evaluated 
the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the company and we have disclosed to the 
auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, 
of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

(d)	 We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee: 

i. 	 Significance changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 

ii. 	 Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been 
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 

iii. 	 Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, 
if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the company’s internal 
control system over financial reporting. 

	 Sd/-										          Sd/-
Anil Kumar Monga	 (Bhalendra Pal Singh)
Chairman & Managing Director	 Chief Financial Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members
Emmsons International Limited 

Report on the Standalone Ind AS financial Statements 

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of “Emmsons International Limited” 
(the “Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss, 
including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of 
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the 
“standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for 
the effects of the matters described in the ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’ section of our report, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (the 
“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, its loss including 
other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Material Uncertainty Related To Going Concern

 “We draw attention of the accompanying Statement which in indicated that the Company has incurred 
a net loss for the year ended 31 March 2021 of Rs. 14825.39 lacs and as of that date, the Company’s 
accumulated losses amounts to Rs.183697.65 lacs which have resulted in substantial erosion of net worth 
of the Company and the current liabilities have exceeded its current assets as at 31, March 2021. We 
further draw attention that the Company has continued to default in repayment of principal and interest 
in respect of its borrowings. The above factors, together with uncertainties relating to the impact of the 
ongoing COVID-19 pandemic on the operations of the company, indicate that a material uncertainty exists 
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern..”

However, for the reasons more fully described in Note 34 (c) to the standalone financial statements, the 
accounts of the Company have been prepared as a Going Concern.

Our conclusion is modified in respect of this matter.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described 
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone 
Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code 
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of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. 

Emphasis of Matter

1.	 The Company has accumulated losses of Rs. 183697.65 lacs and its net worth has been fully eroded, 
the company has incurred net loss during the current year and previous year and, the company’s 
current liabilities exceeded its current assets as at balance sheet date.

2.	 The Companies bank accounts were declared Non Performing Assets (NPA’s) in the year 2014 & 
year 2015 and no settlement has been made till reporting date. During the year provision for Interest 
amounting Rs.14762.71 lacs at the prevailing interest rates has been made in books and total bank 
borrowings outstanding as at reporting date is RS.178761.48 lacs. However no documents or bank 
statements were provided to confirm the above balances.

3.	 Sundry creditors shown under non-current liabilities Rs 2900.91 lacs are pending for payment and 
outstanding for more than three years. The amount payable is subject to confirmation, reconciliation 
and adjustment, if any, in the books of accounts, consequential impact on loss and liabilities of the 
company due to adjustment is unascertained.

4.	 The company is require to consolidate its standalone financial statements with its two subsidiaries i.e 
Emmsons Gulf DMCC, Dubai and Emmsons SA, Switzerland for the financial year 2018-2019 and 
2019-2020 as per accounting principles laid under Ind AS 110 “Consolidation of Financial Statements”. 
However till reporting date 31st March’ 2021 the company has not done consolidation of its financial 
statements.

5.	 Non-Current Investments of Rs 882.02 lacs includes investments made in unquoted Equity shares and 
share application money in its loss making foreign subsidiary companies. The impact thereof on value 
of investments is unascertainable.

		  Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Standalone Ind AS financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures 
to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, 
but does not include the standalone Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the standalone Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard. 
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Management Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that 
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
standalone Ind AS financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of Directors are 
also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Standalone Ind AS financial Statement 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
standalone Ind AS financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has internal financial controls with 
reference to Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 
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•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2020 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in 
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give 
in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the 
extent applicable. 

2.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 
as it appears from our examination of those books.
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c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive 
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are 
in agreement with the books of account.

d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Control with reference to Financial Statements 
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report 
in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g)	 In our opinion the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2020 has been paid / 
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read 
with Schedule V to the Act. 

h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

(i)	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its 
standalone Ind AS financial statements – Refer Note 34 to the Standalone Ind AS financial 
statements;

(ii)	 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses;

(iii)	 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company.

For B.B. Chaudhary & Co. 
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No: 001784N)

Sd/-
B.B.Chaudhry
Proprietor  
(Membership No. 14231)
UDIN:21014231AAAABM1248
Date: 30th June, 2021 
Place: New Delhi   
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the 
standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021, we report that: 

i.	 a)	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of property, plant and equipment. 

b)	 The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its fixed assets by which 
property, plant and equipment’s are verified in a phased manner. In accordance with this 
program, certain property, plant and equipment’s were verified during the year and no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical 
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. 

c)	 According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the company, the title deeds of the immovable properties included in property, 
plant and equipment are held in the name of the company.

ii.	 The Company has no inventory as at 31st March, 2021 therefore the provisions of 3 (ii) are not 
applicable to the company. 

iii.	 According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted loans, unsecured, 
to companies, firms or other parties covered in the Register maintained under Section 189 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, in respect of which:

(a)	 The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are, in our opinion, prima facie, prejudicial 
to the Company’s interest.

(b)	 The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and 
repayments or receipts of principal amounts and interest have been not regular. The company 
has also Expected Credit Loss as per Ind AS -109 on all the loan and advances to the parties 
covered in the Register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(c)	 There are amounts including interest overdue for more than 90 days at the Balance Sheet 
date.

iv.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not complied with 
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of grant of loans, making 
investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable because company has defaulted 
in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or Government so that company 
has provided expected credit loss on the above loans and advances.

v.	 The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the act and 
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of 
clause 3(v) of the order are not applicable.

vi.	 The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) 
of the Act.

vii.	 a)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect 
of undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund, Profession tax, Income-tax, Duty of 
customs, Employees’ State Insurance, Goods and Service tax, Cess and other material 
statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year with the appropriate authorities..



EMMSONS

60   |

	 b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty 
of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other material 
statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from 
the date they became payable

	 c)	 According to the records of the company , the dues outstanding of employees’ state insurance, 
income-tax, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, goods and service tax, cess and other 
statutory dues, on account of any dispute are as follows:

S. 
No.

Period of 
Demand

Amount 
Involved 

(Rs. In lacs)

Particulars of demand Appeal pending 
before

1 A.Y. 2003-04 19.46 Income Tax CIT (A)

2 A.Y. 2004-05 5.57 Income Tax CIT (A)

3 A.Y. 2008-09 7.05 Income Tax CIT (A)

4 A.Y. 2009-10 .88 Income Tax CIT (A)

4 A.Y. 2011-12 .50 Income Tax CIT (A)

5. A.Y. 2012-13 431.32 Income Tax CIT (A)

6 A.Y. 2013-14 23.43 Order by CPC-TDS u/s 154 CIT (A) 

7 A.Y. 2014-15 2.71 Order by CPC-TDS u/s 154 CIT (A) 

8 A.Y. 2013-14 401.58 Income Tax CIT (A)

9 A.Y. 2014-15 579.13 Income Tax CIT (A)

10 116.75 Custom Act Honorable 
Commissioner 
(Appeals) Custom

viii.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, 
the Company has defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or 
Government as given below 

S. 
No

Name of Lender Total Amount 
of Default  

(Rs. In lacs)

Period of Default

1 Allahabad Bank 25,122.27 Due between May, 2015 to March, 2021

2 Bank of Baroda 25,587.83 Due between March, 2015 to March, 2021

3 Indian Overseas Bank 41,952.71 Due between May, 2015 to March, 2021

4 Oriental Bank of Commerce 86,130.03 Due between July, 2015 to March, 2021

Less: sale of immovable 
property  mortgaged to bank

-31.36

  TOTAL 178,761.48  

ix.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the 
Company has utilized the monies raised by way of term loans for the purposes for which they were 
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obtained. The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer / further public offer 
/ debt instruments during the year. 

x.	 In our opinion no material fraud by the company or on the Company by its officers or employees has 
been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

xi.	 In our opinion and according to the information and the explanations given to us and based on 
examination of records of the company, the company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration 
in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with 
Schedule V to the Companies Act.

xii.	 In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the 
order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

xiii.	 In our opinion and according to the information and the explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance 
with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where ever applicable and the details of 
such transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable 
accounting standards.

xiv.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the company, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement 
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

xv.	 According to the information and the explanations given to us the company has not entered into any 
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him under the provisions of section 
192 of Companies Act, 2013.

xvi.	 The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 
1934.

For B.B. Chaudhary & Co. 
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No: 001784N)

Sd/-
B.B.Chaudhry
Proprietor  
(Membership No. 14231)
UDIN:21014231AAAABM1248
Date: 30th June, 2021 

Place: New Delhi   



EMMSONS

62   |

Annexure -B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone Ind AS 
financial statements of Emmsons International Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Emmsons International Limited 
(‘the company’) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the“ Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued 
by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls 
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
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assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 

1.	 pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

2.	 provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of management and directors of the company; and 

3.	 provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 

over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 

reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 

the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 

March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For B.B. Chaudhary & Co. 

Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No: 001784N)

Sd/-

B.B.Chaudhry

Proprietor  

(Membership No. 14231)

UDIN:21014231AAAABM1248

Date: 30th June, 2021 

Place: New Delhi   
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2021
(` In Lacs)

Particulars Note 
No.

As at 31st 
Match, 2021

As at 31st 
Match, 2020

A ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3  234.83  255.27 
(b) Investment Property 4  82.83  84.45 
(c) Other Intangible assets 5  0.00  0.00 
(d) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 6  882.02  882.02 
(ii) Trade receivables 7  -  - 
(iii) Other Financial Non-Current Assets 8 14.34 14.34

(e) Deferred tax assets (net)  -  - 
(f) Other non-current assets 9  -  - 
Current assets
(a) Inventories  -  - 
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 10 0.97  1.11 
(ii) Other bank balances  -  - 
(ii) Other Financial Assets 11 0.05  0.05 

(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 12 101.42 101.40 
(d) Other current assets 13 0.60 0.60 
Total Assets    1317.07  1,339.25 

B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity Share capital 14 1199.60  1,199.60 
(b) Other Equity 15 (183697.65) (168872.26)
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 16  1,795.70  1,755.17 
(ii) Trade payables 17  2,900.91  2,847.33 
(iii) Other financial liabilities  -  - 

(b) Provisions 18  0.16  75.80 
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 19  178,761.48  163,998.77 
(ii) Trade payables 20  52.13  103.39 
(iii) Other financial liabilities 21  2.51  2.68 

(b) Other current liabilities 22  140.35  139.29 
(c) Provisions 23  161.87  89.48 
Total Equity and Liabilities 1317.07 1339.25 

Accompanying Notes 1 to 42 forms integral part of these Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached

For B.B. Chaudhary & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 001784N

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
(B.B.Chaudhry) (Anil Kumar Monga) (Rajesh Monga)
Proprietor  Chairman & Managing Director Director
M.No. 14231 DIN. 00249410 DIN. 00249642

Sd/- Sd/-
Place : NEW DELHI (Bhalendra Pal Singh) (Prashant Pratap Singh)
Date : 30th June,2021 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021
(` In Lacs)

Particulars Note
No.

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

For the year ended  
March 31, 2020

I Revenue From operations  -  - 
II Other Income 24 0.26 0.84 
III Total Income (l+Il) 0.26 0.84 
IV EXPENSES

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade  -  - 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in 
-Trade and work in-progress

 -  - 

Employee benefits expense 25 19.91 51.83 
Finance costs 26 14762.71 14,787.48 
Depreciation and amortization expenses 3,4&5 22.06 48.59 
Other expenses 27 29.04 632.98 
Total expenses (lV) 14,833.71 15,520.88 

V Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax 
(III-IV)

(14833.45) (15,520.03)

VI Exceptional items  -  - 

VII Profit/(Loss)  before tax (V+VI) (14833.5) (15520.0)
VIII Tax expense:  -  - 

Current tax  -  - 
Deferred tax  -  - 

Total Tax Expense  -  - 

IX Profit/(Loss)  for the year (VII-VIII) (14833.45) (15520.03)
X Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit 
plans

29 8.06 (9.58)

Total Other Comprehensive Income for the Year 8.06 (9.58)

XI Total Comprehensive Income for the year (14825.39) (15529.62)

XII Earnings per equity share of Rs. 10/-each
  Basic ( in Rs. ) (123.65) (129.38)
  Diluted ( in Rs.) (123.65) (129.38)

Accompanying Notes 1 to 42 forms integral part of these Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached

For B.B. Chaudhary & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 001784N

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
(B.B.Chaudhry) (Anil Kumar Monga) (Rajesh Monga)
Proprietor  Chairman & Managing Director Director
M.No. 14231 DIN. 00249410 DIN. 00249642

Sd/- Sd/-
Place : NEW DELHI (Bhalendra Pal Singh) (Prashant Pratap Singh)
Date : 30th June,2021 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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STANDALONE CASH  FLOW  STATEMENT  FOR  THE  YEAR  ENDED  31ST MARCH,2021
(` In Lacs)

Particulars As at 31st Match, 2021 As at 31st Match, 2020
A. Cash  flow  from  operating  activities :

Net Profit/(Loss) before tax (14825.39) (15529.62)
Adjustment for :

Depreciation 22.06 48.59 
Provision  for  doubtful advances  - 492.84 
Interest income (0.26) (0.33)
Deferred tax assets of previous year written off  - 54.30 
Finance Cost Paid 14762.71 14784.51 14787.48 15382.89 

Operating profit before working capital changes (40.88) (146.73)
Adjustment for :

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets (0.02) 33.095 
(Increase)/Decrease in loan and Advances 0.00 8.14 
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables,other payables and liabilities (0.03) (0.05) (43.55) (2.31)

Cash generated from operations (40.93) (149.04)
Income tax paid (Net of refunds)  -  - 

Net cash flow from operating activities (A)  (40.93)  (149.04)
B. Cash flow from investing activities   :

        Interest income  0.26 0.33 
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B) 0.26 0.33 

C. Cash flow from financing activities :
        Net Proceeds/(Repayment) of long term borrowings 40.53 144.17 
        Net Proceeds/(Repayment) of short term borrowings  -  - 
        Finance Cost Paid  -  - 
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C) 40.53 144.17 

Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (0.14) (4.54)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1.11 5.65 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 0.97 1.11 

Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents (Refer Note No. 11)
Cash in hand 0.14 0.28 
Balances with Banks 0.83 0.83 
Cash & Cash equivalents in Cash Flow Statement 0.97 1.11 

      Disclosure as referred in Ind AS 7 ‘ Statement of Cash flows
Particulars As at 31st Match,2020 As at 31st Match,2019

Long 
term bor-
rowings

Short term 
Borrowings

Long term 
borrow-
ings

Short term 
Borrowings

Carrying amount of debt at the beginning of the period 1755.17 103486.30 1611.00 103486.30 
Additional borrowings during the period 40.53  - 144.17  - 
Repayments/prepayments during the period -  -  -  - 

Carrying amount of debt at the end of the period 1795.70 103486.30 1755.17 103486.30 

Accompanying Notes 1 to 42 forms integral part of these Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached

For B.B. Chaudhary & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 001784N

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
(B.B.Chaudhry) (Anil Kumar Monga) (Rajesh Monga)
Proprietor  Chairman & Managing Director Director
M.No. 14231 DIN. 00249410 DIN. 00249642

Sd/- Sd/-
Place : NEW DELHI (Bhalendra Pal Singh) (Prashant Pratap Singh)
Date : 30th June,2021 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMPANY OVERVIEW AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1 Company Overview

Emmsons International Limited  is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in india and its shares 
are publicly traded on the Bombay Stock Exchange (‘BSE’), in india. The registered & Administration office of the 
company is situated at Flat No. 301 Plot No. 12, Zamrudpur  Community Centre, Zamrudpur, New Delhi-110048 
india.

2 Significant accounting policies

 2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards as defined 
in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules 
issued thereafter, prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Ind AS”). 

 2.2 Basis of measurement

The financial statements are prepared on Historical Cost basis except for certain financial assets and 
liabilities that are measured at fair value (Refer accounting policy regarding Financial Instruments). The 
accounting policies not specifically referred to otherwise, are consistent  and in  consonance with  generally 
accepted  accounting  principles. All income and expenditure are being accounted for on accrual basis. 

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

 2.3 Functional and Presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional 
currency. All financial information presented in INR has been rounded to the nearest lakhs (upto two 
decimals), except as stated otherwise.

 2.4 Use of Estimates

In preparing Company’s financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of 
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 
reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized in the period in which the same is 
determined.

 2.5  Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current 
classification.

An asset is current when it is:

• Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

• Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
• Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or
• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when it is:

• Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

• Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

• There is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
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 2.6  Property Plant & Equipment 

i) Initial recognition and measurement

An item of property, plant and equipments recognized as an asset if and only if it is probable that 
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item 
can be measured reliably.

Items of Property, Plant and Equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation/
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly 
attributable to bringing the asset, inclusive of non-refundable taxes & duties, to the location and 
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 
When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lifes, they are recognized 
separately.

Property, Plant and Equipments which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet 
are disclosed as ‘Capital Work-In-Progress’.

ii) Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when it is 
probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the enterprise and 
the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying 
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow 
to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably.

The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of 
Property, Plant and Equipment are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

iii) Derecognition

Property, Plant and Equipment are derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected 
from their use or upon their disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and 
equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of 
property, plant and equipment, and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

iv) Depreciation/amortization

Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss on a straight line method over the estimated useful life of 
each item of Property, Plant and Equipment.

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from property, plant and equipment during the year is 
charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available for use/disposed.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on their estimated useful life as prescribed 
by Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013 as follows:

1) Buildings                                            60 years

2) Plant & Machinery                              15 years

3) Furniture & Fixtures                            10 years

4) Vehicles                                             08 years

5) Office Equipments                             05 years 

6) Generator                                          15 years

7) Computer                                          03 years

 2.7 Capital work-in-progress 

The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials & direct labour, borrowing costs, any 
other costs directly attributable to bring the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be 
capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 
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 2.8 Intangible assets

i) Initial recognition and measurement

An intangible asset is recognized if and only if it is probable that the expected future economic 
benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the company and the cost of the asset can be 
measured reliably.

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company, which have finite useful lives, are recognized 
at cost. Subsequent measurement is done at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated 
impairment losses. Cost includes any directly attributable incidental expenses necessary to make the 
assets ready for its intended use.

Expenditure on development activities is capitalized only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, 
the product or process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable 
and the Company intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development and to use or 
sell the asset.

Expenditure incurred which are eligible for capitalizations under intangible assets are carried as 
intangible assets under development till they are ready for their intended use.

ii) Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when it is 
probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the enterprise and 
the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

iii) Derecognition

An intangible asset is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected from their use 
or upon their disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of intangible assets are determined 
by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of intangible assets and are 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

iv) Amortization

Intangible assets having definite life are amortized on straight line method in their useful life of 5 years

 2.9 Investment Property

Investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if 
any.Depreciation on building is provided over the estimated useful lives as specified in Schedule II to the 
Companies Act, 2013. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method of investment properties 
are reviewed, and adjusted on prospective basis as appropriate, at each financial year end. The effects of 
any revision are included in the statement of profit and loss when the changes arise.

 2.10 Inventories

Inventories of Finished goods are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value on FIFO basis.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location is included in cost in valuation of inventories.

 2.11 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and cash on hand and short-term 
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to insignificant risk of change 
in value.

 2.12 Financial instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

i) Financial assets:

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument.

a) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value.in the case of financial assets not recorded at 
fair value through profit or loss.
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b) Subsequent measurement

Financial assets are subsequently classified and measured at:

• Financial assets at amortised cost

• Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

• Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

c) Equity Instruments:

All investments in equity instruments in entities other than subsidiaries are measured at fair value. For 
all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either at FVTOCI or FVTPL. 
The Company makes such election on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made 
on initial recognition and is irrevocable.Investment in Equity shares of subsidiaries and associates are 
valued at cost

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on 
the instruments, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts 
from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment as the company transfers cumulative gain or loss within 
the equity.

Equity instruments if classified as FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 
recognized in the profit and loss.

d) Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar 
financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when: 

• The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

• The Company has transferred its contratcual rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

e) Impairment of Financial Asset

Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to initial recognition in 
Statement of Profit.

For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets other than Trade receivables, the 
company determines whether there has been a sigificant increase in the credit risk since 
initial recogniton. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to 
provide impairmnet loss. However, If credit risk is increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. 
If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves to such extent that there is no 
longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising 
impairment loss allowance based on 12- Month ECL.

For trade receivables Company applies ‘simplified approach’ which requires expected lifetime losses 
to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. The Company uses historical default rates 
to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of trade receivables. At every reporting date these 
historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed.

ii) Financial liabilities

a) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of loans, net of directly attributable cost. 
Fees of recurring nature are directly recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance cost. 

b) Subsequent measurement 

Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Amortized 
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and 
any material transaction that are any integral part of the EIR. Trade and other payables 
maturing within one year from the balance sheet date are carried at transaction value, the 
carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments. 
Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes 
in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.



Emmsons International Limited | Annual Report 2020-21

|   71

c) Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. 
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

 2.13 Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as,derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet 
date.Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based 
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company. The fair value 
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when 
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair 
value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market 
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The company uses valuation techniques 
that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, 
maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. All assets 
and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within 
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 – Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 – Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is directly or Indirectly observable

Level 3 – Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is signi`ficant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the company 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization 
(based on the lowest level input that is signifi cant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of 
each reporting period. The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value 
measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and 
for non-recurring measurement, such as assets held for distribution in discontinued operations.

 2.14 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company, in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 36 “Impairment of Assets”, 
has adopted the practice of assessing at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any Indication that 
an asset may be impaired. If any such Indication exists, then the company provides for the loss for 
impairment of Assets after estimating the recoverable amount of the assets.

 2.15 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provision are measured at the Present value of the management’s best estimate of the expenditure required 
to settle the present obligation at the end of reporting period. Provisions involving substantial degree of 
estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of past events and 
it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed only when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, 
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or 
more uncertain future events which is not wholly within the control of the Company or a present 
obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle the obligation or estimate of the amount cannot be measured reliably. 
No contingent asset is recognized but disclosed by way of notes to accounts only when its recognition is 
virtually certain.
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 2.16 Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and it is probable that 
future economic benefits will flow to the entity. Amount of sales are recorded net of goods and service tax, 
sale returns , trade allowances and discounts but inclusive of excise duty.

Revenue from sale of products is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the 
products have been transferred to the buyer, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Export  benefits are recognised on accrual  basis.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the income is established. 

Interest income is recognised, when no significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectblitiy exists, on 
a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and  the applicable interest rate , using 
the effective interest rate method (EIR).

 2.17 Foreign Currency Conversions/Transactions

Foreign Currency Transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transactions. 
Gains and losses arising out of subsequent fluctuations are accounted for on actual payments or realisations 
as the case may be. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency as on Balance Sheet 
date are translated into functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing on that date and Exchange 
differences arising out of such conversion are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 2.18 Income Taxes

Income tax expense for the year comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to any business combination or to an item which is 
recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

a) Current Tax

Current Tax is the amount of tax payable on the estimated taxable income for the current year as per 
the provisions of Income Tax Act,1961.

b) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised for temporary differences.However, Deferred Tax Assets is recognised 
to the extent that, it is probable that taxable income will be available against which the same can 
be realised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and are written-down or 
written-up to reflect the amount that is reasonably certain (as the case may be) to be realized.

c) Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current 
tax for the year. The deferred tax asset is recognised for MAT credit available only to the extent that it 
is probable that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period 
for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. 

In the year in which the company recognizes MAT credit as an asset, it is created by way of credit to 
the statement of profit and loss and shown as part of deferred tax asset. 

The company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the 
asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

 2.19 Employee Benefits

i) Short Term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed 
as the related service is provided.

A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under performance related pay if the 
Company has a present, legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service 
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

ii) Post-Employment benefits

Employee benefit that are payable after the completion of employment are Post-Employment Benefit 
(other than termination benefit). Company has identified two types of post employment benefits.
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a) Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are those plans in which the company pays fixed contribution into 
separate entities and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Provident 
Fund and Employee State Insurance are Defined Contribution Plans in which company pays a fixed 
contribution and will have no further obligation beyond the monthly contributions and are recognised 
as an expenses in Statement of Profit & Loss.

b) Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. 
Company pays Gratuity as per provisions of the Gratuity Act, 1972. The Company’s net obligation in 
respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of 
future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; 
that benefit to employees is discounted to determine its present value.

The calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. 
The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined 
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense 
in the statement of profit and loss. 

Any actuarial gains or losses pertaining to components of re-measurements of net defined benefit 
liability/(asset) are recognized in OCI in the period in which they arise.

 2.20 Borrowing Cost 

General and Specific Borrowing Cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction or 
production of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost of such assets upto the date when such 
assets are ready for intended use. Qualified assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period 
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. 

Other borrowing costs are charged as expenses in the year in which they are incurred.  
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure 
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing cost eligible for capitalisation.

 2.21 Earning  Per Share 

Basic Earning Per Share is calculated  by  dividing the net profit or loss for the period  attributable to 
equity  shareholders by weighted average number of equity  shares outstanding during the period. 
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit after tax during the year and the 
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive 
potential equity shares.

 2.22 Statement of Cash Flows 

Statement of cash flows is prepared in accordance with the Indirect method prescribed in Ind AS-7 
‘Statement of cash flows.
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3 Property ,Plant and Equipment
(` In Lacs)

Particulars Buildings Plant and 
Equipment

Furniture 
and 

Fixtures

 ehicles  Office 
equipment

Computer Generator Total

Gross Block as at 
1st April 2019

 245.77  7.95  126.63  394.02  164.48  61.54  17.17  1,017.55 

Addition during the 
year

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Disposals/Transfer 
during the year 

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Derecognition*  -  38.01  38.01 

As at 31st March, 
2020

 245.77  7.95  126.63  356.01  164.48  61.54  17.17  979.54 

Addition during the 
year

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Disposals/Transfer 
during the year 

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Derecognition*  -  -  - 

As at 31st March, 
2021

 245.77  7.95  126.63  356.01  164.48  61.54  17.17  979.54 

Accumulated 
Depreciation  :

As at 1st April, 
2019

 45.75  7.12  85.10  350.92  155.21  61.21  10.15  715.46 

Depreciation 
charge for the year

 3.90  0.26  7.38  29.20  4.85  0.02  1.21  46.82 

Eliminated on 
disposal of assets

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Derecognition  -  -  -  38.01  -  -  -  38.01 

As at 31st March, 
2020

 49.64  7.38  92.48  342.11  160.06  61.23  11.37  724.27 

Depreciation 
charge for the year

 3.89  0.25  9.35  3.61  1.98  0.18  1.19  20.44 

Eliminated on 
disposal of assets

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Derecognition  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

As at 31st March, 
2021

 53.53  7.63  101.84  345.72  162.04  61.41  12.55  744.71 

Net Carrying 
Amount

As at 31st March, 
2021

 192.24  0.32  24.80  10.29  2.44  0.13  4.61  234.83 

As at 31st March, 
2020

 196.13  0.57  34.15  13.90  4.41  0.31  5.80  255.27 
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4 Investment Property
(` In Lacs)

              Particulars Building Total

Building for Office space 

Gross Block as at 1st April 2019  101.96  101.96 

Additions (subsequent expenditure)  -  - 

Disposals/Transfer during the year  -  - 

As at 31st March, 2020  101.96  101.96 

Additions (subsequent expenditure)  -  - 

Disposals/Transfer during the year  -  - 

As at 31st March, 2021  101.96  101.96 

Accumulated Depreciation  :

As at 1st April, 2019  15.88  15.88 

Depreciation charge for the year  1.62  1.62 

Eliminated on disposal of assets  -  - 

As at 31st March, 2020  17.51  17.51 

Depreciation charge for the year  1.62  1.62 

Eliminated on disposal of assets  -  - 

As at 31st March, 2021  19.13  19.13 

Net Carrying Amount

As at 31st March, 2021  82.83  82.83 

As at 31st March, 2020  84.45  84.45 

Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment property (` In Lacs)

          Particulars As at March 
31, 2021

As at March 
31, 2020

Rental income derived from investment properties  -  - 

Direct operating expenses (including repairs and 
maintenance) generating rental income

 -  - 

Profit arising from investment properties before 
depreciation and indirect expenses

 -  - 

Less – Depreciation  1.62  1.62 

Profit arising from investment properties before 
indirect expenses

(1.62) (1.62)

Fair Value (` In Lacs)

As on March 31, 2021 87.30

As on March 31, 2020 87.30

Valuation has been arrived as per minimum rates prescribed by government of National Capital Territory of Delhi vide 
Notification dated September 22, 2014. The fair value measurement is categorised in level 2- fair value hierarchy
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5 Other Intangible Assets
(` In Lacs)

Particulars Brands /
trademarks

Computer 
Software

Website 
Development 

Charges

Total

Gross Block as at 1st April 2019 0.05 6.72 1.52 8.29 

Addition during the year  -  -  -  - 

Disposals/Transfer during the year  -  -  -  - 

As at 31st March, 2020 0.05 6.72 1.52 8.29 

Addition during the year  -  -  -  - 

Disposals/Transfer during the year  -  -  -  - 

As at 31st March, 2021 0.05 6.72 1.52 8.29 

Accumulated Depreciation  :

As at 1st April, 2019  0.05  6.57  1.52  8.14 

Depreciation charge for the year  -  0.15  -  0.15 

Eliminated on disposal of assets  -  -  -  - 

As at 31st March, 2020  0.05  6.72  1.52  8.29 

Depreciation charge for the year  -  -  -  - 

Disposals/Transfer during the year  -  -  -  - 

As at 31st March, 2021  0.05  6.72  1.52  8.29 

Net Carrying Amount

As at 31st March, 2020  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 

As at 31st March, 2021  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 

6  Investments (Non Current)
(` In Lacs)

As at 31st Match, 
2021

As at 31st Match, 
2020

Numbers ` Numbers `

Investments in Equity Instruments

Unquoted equity Instruments 

a) Investments in Subsidiaries

(i)(a)Equity shares of CHF 10/- each fully paid up in Emmsons SA 99999 410.71 99999 410.71

   (b) Share application money pending allotment in Emmsons SA  - 444.25  - 444.25

(ii)  Equity shares of AED 50000/- each fully paid up in Emmsons Gulf DMCC 4 27.06 4 27.06

882.02 882.02

b) Investments in other than subsidiaries

Others (At fair value through Profit and Loss Account):

(i) Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up in “Emmsons Infotech Limited” 877300  - 877300  - 

 -  - 

Investments in Equity Instruments

Quoted equity Instruments (measured at FVTPL)

(i) Equity shares of Rs.1/- Each fully paid up in K-Lifestyle Industries Ltd. 50000  - 50000  - 

(ii) Equity shares of Rs.1/- Each fully paid up in Sterling Bio Tech Ltd. 53900  - 53900  - 

(iii) Equity shares of Rs.1/- Each fully paid up in Sterling International 
Enterprises Ltd

37438  - 37438  - 

(iv) Equity shares of Rs.10/- Each fully paid up in Zenith Computers Ltd. 3000  - 3000  - 

(v) Equity shares of Rs.10/- Each fully paid up in Pyramid Saimira Theatre Ltd. 1000  - 1000  - 

0.00 0.00

 882.02 882.02 
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(` In Lacs)

As at 
31. 03. 2021

As at 
31. 03. 2020

7 Trade receivables (Non Current)
Trade Receivables (Unsecured, considered good)  -  - 
Trade Receivables (Doubtful) 44129.25  44,129.25 

 44,129.25  44,129.25 
   Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 44129.25 44129.25 

 -  - 

8 Other financial non-current assets
Unsecured Considered Good
Loans :
Security Deposits 14.34 14.34

14.34  14.34 

9 Other Non-Current Assets
Capital Advances*  -  - 
Advance to related parties**  -  - 
Advances to Suppliers***  -  - 

 -  - 

**Capital Advances  10.00  10.00 
           Less: Provision for doubtful Advances  10.00  10.00 

 -  - 

**Advance to related parties 13052.28  13,052.28 
           Less: Provision for doubtful Advances 13052.28  13,052.28 

 -  - 

***Advance to suppliers
Considered good  -  - 
Doubtful  6,069.09 6069.09 
Less: Provision for doubtful Advances  6,069.09  6,069.09 

 -  - 

10 Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks  0.83 0.83
Cash on hand 0.14 0.28 

 0.97  1.11 

11 Other financial assets (current)
Unsecured, Considered Good
Advance to staff  0.05  0.05 

 0.05  0.05 

12 Current tax assets (net)
Current Tax Assets / (Liabilities)  (Net)  101.42  101.40 

101.42 101.40

13 Other current assets
Prepaid expenses 0.35  0.59 
Other Receivable 0.25 0.01 

 0.60  0.60 
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STATMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (SOCE ) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

 14 Share capital

Pariculars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Numbers of 
shares

` In Lacs Numbers of 
shares

` In Lacs

Authorised                                                                          

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-  each  15,000,000  1,500.00  15,000,000  1,500.00 

 15,000,000  1,500.00  15,000,000  1,500.00 

Issued    

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-  each  11,996,040  1,199.60  11,996,040  1,199.60 

 11,996,040  1,199.60  11,996,040  1,199.60 

Subscribed and fully paid up                                                                

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-  each  11,996,040  1,199.60  11,996,040  1,199.60 

 11,996,040  1,199.60  11,996,040  1,199.60 

(i) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the 
reporting period:

Pariculars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Numbers of 
shares

` In Lacs Numbers of 
shares

` In Lacs

Balance at the beginning of the period 11,996,040  1,199.60  11,996,040 1,199.60 

Change in equity share capital during the period  -  -  -  - 

Balance at the end of reporting period 11,996,040  1,199.60  11,996,040  1,199.60 

(ii) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Class of shares / Name of shareholder As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Number of 
shares held

% holding 
in that class 

of shares

Number of 
shares held

% holding 
in that 

class of 
shares

Equity shares with voting rights

Anil Monga 2,891,716 24.11% 2,891,716 24.11%

Rajesh Monga 1,023,280 8.53% 1,023,280 8.53%

Geeta Gupta 663,174 5.53% 663,174 5.53%

Emmpac Holdings Pvt. Ltd. 606,996 5.06% 606,996 5.06%
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (SOCE)  FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

15 OTHER EQUITY

Particulars Attributable to the equity shareholders

Securities 
Premium 
Reserve

Capital 
Reserve

General  
Reserve

Retained 
Earning

Total

As at 1st April, 2019 2229.04 249.51 1634.73  (157,455.92)  (153,342.64)

Profit for the year  (15,520.03)  (15,520.03)

Remeasurement of post 
employment benefit obligation, net 
of tax (item of OCI)

 (9.58)  (9.58)

As at 31st March, 2020 2229.04 249.51 1634.73  (172,985.53)  (168,872.26)

Profit for the year  (14,833.45)  (14,833.45)

Remeasurement of post 
employment benefit obligation, net 
of tax (item of OCI)

 -  -  -  8.06  8.06 

As at 31st March, 2021 2229.04 249.51 1634.73  (187,810.93)  (183,697.65)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

For B.B. Chaudhary & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 001784N

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

(B.B.Chaudhry) (Anil Kumar Monga) (Rajesh Monga)

Proprietor  Chairman & Managing Director Director

M.No. 14231 DIN. 00249410 DIN. 00249642

Sd/- Sd/-

Place : NEW DELHI (Bhalendra Pal Singh) (Prashant Pratap Singh)

Date : 30th June, 2021 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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(Rs. In Lacs)

As at 
31. 03. 2021

As at 
31. 03. 2020

16 Borrowings (Non Current)
Loans from related parties
From Directors* 1770.70 1735.17
From related company 25.00 20.00

1795.70 1755.17 

* Loan from directors includes loan from Mr. Shivaz Monga who resigned from the post of director of the 
company on 30.10.2015

17 Trade Payables (Non Current) 
Total outstanding dues of micro, small & medium 
enterprises

 -  - 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 
micro, small & medium enterprises 

 2,900.91  2,847.33 

 2,900.91  2,847.33 

The company is in the process of sending letters to vendors regarding their status under the Micro, Small 
and Medium Enterprises (Development) Act,2006
The company has so far not received information from vendors regarding their status hence disclosure 
relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end together with interest paid/payable under this Act has not 
been given.

18 Provisions (Non Current) 
(a) Provision for employee benefits
(i) Provision for gratuity  0.16 60.60 
(ii) Provision for leave encashment  -  15.20 

 0.16 75.80 

19 Borrowings (Current)
From Banks (Secured)*  178,761.48  163,998.77 

 178,761.48  163,998.77 

*Bank borrowing includes the  amounts financed by the consortium of four banks (Lead Bank Oriental 
bank of Commerce)  and all shown below have been classified by the bank as Non performing assets.

Allahabad Bank
Principle amount 14698.29 14698.29 
Interest due 10423.98 8245.45 

 25,122.27  22,943.75 
Bank of Baroda
Principle amount 14799.75 14799.75 
Interest due 10788.07 8779.53 

 25,587.83  23,579.28 
Indian Overseas Bank
Principle amount 22185.14 22185.14 
Interest due 19767.57 15839.37 

 41,952.71  38,024.50 
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Oriental Bank of Commerce
Principle amount 51803.11 51803.11 
Interest due 34326.92 27679.49 

 86,130.03  79,482.60 

Less: sale of immovable property  mortgated to 
bank*

 31.36  31.36 

 178,761.48  163,998.77 

*Oriental Bank of Commerece has taken over physical possession of properties owned by the company and 
mortaged to bank bearing No. S-473 Second floor Greater Kailash ,New Delhi-110048 on 17th August, 2018 
and also building situated at  Vill. Mithirohar, Taluka, Gandhi Dham, kutch (Gujarat)  under Securitisation and 
recostruction of financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest (SARFAESI ACT) ,2002. The value of 
property No. S-473 Rs. 9.88 Lacs (Gross Block ) and carrying amount Rs. 6.86 Lacs  (Net Block) and the 
value of building at Gujrat  Rs. 30.45 Lacs (Gross Block) and carrying amount Rs. 24.50 (Gross Block) have 
been derecognised  from Property, Plant and Equipments recorded in books, since no future  economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal.In the absence of information regarding E-Auction sale with the 
company ,carrying value of the properties have  been adjusted with the loan liability to the bank. Any further 
treatment required to be given in books shall be made on receipt of due information from the bank.
Secured against equitable mortagage  of properties,hypothecation of stocks and advances and personal 
guarantees of Directors

Collateral Securities
a) Equitable mortgage of property situated at 184 Kohat Enclave, Pitampura, Delhi standing in the names of 
Anil Monga and Rajesh Monga.
b) Equitable mortgage of property situated at 20, Ground Floor, NRI Complex, Mandakini Enclave, Greater 
Kailash-IV, New Delhi standing in the names of Anil Monga and Rajesh Monga .
c) Equitable mortgage of property situated at 20, Basement, NRI Complex, Mandakini Enclave, Greater 
Kailash-IV, New Delhi standing in the names of Anil Monga and Rajesh Monga .
d) Equitable mortgage of property situated at S-473, Second Floor Flat, Greater Kailash-I, New Delhi in the 
name of the company .
e) Equitable mortgage of property situated at Plot No. 1 (One) admeasuring 3813.98 Sq. Mtrs. And Plot No. 
3 (Three) admeasuring 6774.00 Sq. Mtrs. Total of both Plot 10587.98 Sq. Mtrs. in Non Agricultural Land 
bearing Survey No. 352/1, Acres 7 – 23 Gunthas, Survey No. 352/4 Acres 2 -10 Gunthas& Survey 573/7 
Acres 2 -36 Gunthas& Survey No. 350-B Acres 2 -10 Gunthas i.e. total acres 14 -39 gunthas = 60610.38 
Sq. Mtrs converted for Industrial Godown and storage purpose, lying and situate at village Mithirohar, 
TalukaGandhidham-Kutch standing in the names of Sh. Anil Monga. 
f) Equitable mortgage of property situated at Plot No. 1-A (One-A) admeasuring 3814.53 Sq. Mtrs. And Plot 
No. 2 (Two) admeasuring 5918.54 Sq. Mtrs. Total of both Plot 9733.07 Sq. Mtrs. in Non Agricultural Land 
bearing Survey No. 352/1, Acres 7 – 23 Gunthas, Survey No. 352/4 Acres 2 -10 Gunthas& Survey 573/7 
Acres 2 -36 Gunthas& Survey No. 350-B Acres 2 -10 Gunthas i.e. total acres 14 -39 gunthas = 60610.38 
Sq. Mtrs converted for Industrial Godown and storage purpose, lying and situate at village Mithirohar, 
TalukaGandhidham-Kutch standing in the names of Sh. Rajesh Monga .
g) Negative lien on the office flat at 301, Third Floor, (South Side Rear Portion), Plot No. 12, Community 
Centre,Zamrudpur,Greater KailashPart –I, New Delhi.
h) Negative lien on the office flat at 302, Third Floor (South Side Rear Portion), Plot No. 12, Community 
Centre, ZamrudpurGreater Kailash Part-I, New Delhi.
i) Negative lien on the office flat at 102, First Floor, South Delhi House, 12, Zamrudpur Community Centre, 
Kailash Colony, New Delhi 
J) Negative lien on the office flat at Southern Half Portion of Ground Floor in South Delhi House, 12, Zamrudpur 
Community Centre, Kailash Colony, New Delhi .
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k) Negative lien on Farms House at Khasra No. 230-232, Monga Farms, Sajdulajab Opp. Saket, 
M.B.Road, New Delhi.

Note: Securities listed at a-f have been taken over by banks under SARFAESI ACT.

20 Trade Payables (Current) 
Total outstanding dues of micro, small & medium 
enterprises 

 -  - 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 
micro, small & medium enterprises 

 52.13  103.39 

 52.13  103.39 

The company is in the process of sending letters to vendors regarding their status under the Micro, Small 
and Medium Enterprises (Development) Act,2006
The company has so far not received information from vendors regarding their status hence disclosure 
relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end together with interest paid/payable under this Act has not 
been given.

21 Other financial liabilities
Salary Payable  0.87 0.74 
Expenses Payable  1.65 1.94 

 2.51  2.68 

22 Other Current  liabilities
Government and Other Statutory Dues  0.50 0.34 
Due to employees  139.85 138.95 

 140.35  139.29 

23 Provisions (Current)
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity  129.17 71.74 
Leave Encashment  32.70 17.74 

 161.87 89.48 

(` In Lacs)

For the year 
ended  

March 31, 2021

For the year 
ended  

March 31, 2020

24 Other Income
Interest Income  0.26 0.33 
Dividend Income  - 0.05 
Reversal of Provision  for  doubtful advances  - 0.46 

 0.26  0.84 

25 Employee benefits expense
Salaries and Wages 19.44 48.81 
Contributions to provident and other funds 0.47 2.23 
Staff welfare expenses  - 0.78 

 19.91  51.83 
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26 Finance costs
Interest
Interest on Borrowings from Banks & Financial 
Institutions

14762.71 14787.48 

 14,762.71  14,787.48 

27 Other expenses
Insurance  0.62  1.03 
Legal and Professional Charges 9.47  5.18 
Power & Fuel -Electricity & Water Expenses 4.71  11.52 
Bank Charges  0.0  4.95 
Rent 3.00  6.30 
Payments to Auditor’s 1.00  1.00 
Repairs and maintenance - Others 1.56  9.95 
Retainer ship & Consultancy Charges 1.75  10.18 
Telephone Expenses 1.15  2.59 
Travelling Expenses(including Foreign Travel)  -  8.49 
Vehicle Repair & Maintenance Expenses 1.85  1.77 
Membership Fees and Subscriptions 2.10  10.58 
Printing,Stationery, Books & Publication Expenses 0.91  0.56 
Other Expenses 0.91  66.05 
Provision  for  doubtful advances  -  492.84 

 29.04  632.98 

28 Payments to the Auditors comprises 
Statutory Audit Fees 0.70 0.70 
Tax Audit Fees  -  - 
Limited Review 0.30 0.30 

 1.00  1.00 

29 Components of Other Comprehensive 
Income (OCI)
The Disaggregation of changes to OCI by each 
type of reserve in equity is shown below:
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit 
plans

8.06 (9.58)

 8.06 (9.58)

30 Earnings per share
Equity Share of Face Value of Rs. 10/- each
Profit attributable to equity share holders (14833.45) (15520.03)
Weighted number of equity shares outstanding 
during the year (Nos)

 11,996,040  11,996,040 

Par value per share 10.00 10.00
EPS :
         Basic ( in `) (123.65) (129.38)
         Diluted ( in `) (123.65) (129.38)
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31 Employee Benefit Plans
(i) Gratuity

1 Executive Summary

The disclosure required under Ind As 19” Employee Benefits”notified in the companies (Indian 
Accounting Standard) Rules 2015 are as Given Below:

a) Defined benefit Plan

(I) Change in present Value of Obligation (` In Lacs)

Particulars Leave Encashment 
(Non Funded)

Gratuity (Non 
Funded)

Year 
ended, 
March 

31, 2021

Year 
ended, 
March 

31, 2020

Year 
ended, 
March 

31, 2021

Year 
ended, 
March 

31, 2020

1) Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 32.94 35.58 132.34 130.83 

2) Transfer in/(out) obligation - - - -

3) Current service cost 3.17 2.86 6.35 6.93 

4) Interest cost 1.25 2.35 5.02 8.63 

5) Components of actuarial gain/
losses on obligations:

Due to Change in financial assumptions 0.22 0.45 0.83 2.29 

Due to change in demographic assumption - (0.00) - (0.01)

Due to experience adjustments (4.35) (2.23) (8.89) 7.31 

6) Past service cost - - - -

7) Loss (gain) on curtailments - - - -

8) Liabilities extinguished on settlements - - - -

9) Liabilities assumed in an amalgamation in the 
nature of purchase

- -  -  - 

10) Exchange differences on foreign plans - -  -  - 

11) Benefit paid from fund - - - -

12) Benefits paid by company (0.53) (6.05) (6.31) (23.65)

13) Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 32.703 32.94 129.33 132.34 

II) Change in the fare value of plan assets

1) Opening value of plan assets - - - -

2) Transfer in/(out) plan assets - - - -

3) Expenses deducted from assets - - - -

4) Interest Income - - - -

5) Return on plan assets excluding amounts 
included in interest 
income

- - - -

6) Assets distributed on settlements - - - -

7) Contributions by Employer - - - -

8) Contributions by Employee - - - -

9) Exchange differences on foreign plans - - - -

10) Benefits paid - - - -

11) Closing value of plan assets - - - -
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III) Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss Account

1) Service cost:

         Current service cost 3.17 2.86 6.35 6.93

         Past service cost - - - -

2) loss/(gain) on curtailments and settlement - - - -

3) Net interest cost 1.25 2.35 5.02 8.63

4) Net value of remeasurements on the obligation 
and plan assets

(4.13) (1.79)  -  - 

5) Total included in ‘Employee Benefit Expenses/
(Income)

0.29 3.42 11.36 15.56

IV) Other Comprehensive Income for the period

1) Components of actuarial gain/
losses on obligations:

        Due to Change in financial assumptions  -  - 0.83 2.29

        Due to change in demographic assumption  -  - - (0.01)

        Due to experience adjustments  -  - (8.89) 7.31

2) Return on plan assets excluding amounts 
included in interest 
income

 -  - - -

3) Amounts recognized in Other Comprehensive 
(Income) / Expense

 -  - (8.06) 9.58 

V) Key Acturial Assumptions

Discount Rate 3.80% 
p.a.

5.20% 
p.a.

3.80% 
p.a.

5.20% 
p.a.

Salary Growth Rate 6.50% 
p.a.

6.50% 
p.a.

6.50% 
p.a.

6.50% 
p.a.

Withdrawal Rates 10% 
p.a. at 
all ages

10% 
p.a. at 
all ages

10.00% 
p.a at all 

ages

10.00% 
p.a at all 

ages

VII) Expected Future Cashflows (Undiscounted)

Particulars ` In Lacs %

Year 1 Cashflow  33.71 100.0%  131.60 99.8%

Year 2 Cashflow  - 0.0%  0.00 0.0%

Year 3 Cashflow  - 0.0%  0.00 0.0%

Year 4 Cashflow  - 0.0%  0.00 0.0%

Year 5 Cashflow  - 0.0%  0.01 0.0%

Year 6 to Year 10 Cashflow  - 0.0%  0.08 0.1%
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32 Related party Disclosure

(i) The related parties as per terms of Ind AS-24, “ related Party Disclosure” , ( sepecified under section 133 
of the Companies Act , 2013, read with rule 7 of (Accounts) Rule , 2015) are disclosed below :- 

(a) Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year :

 (i) Director (A)  (ii) Enterprises in which Directors’s relative
      are Interested (B) 

Mr. Anil Kumar Monga (Chairman & Managing Director) Travsol Worldwide Private Limited

Mr. Rajesh Monga (Whole Time Director)

Mr. Rahul Chopra

Ms. Soni Benydin Jaiprakash

Mr. Bhupinder Singh

Mr. Shivaz Monga*

(iii) Key Management Personnel (C ) (iv) Subsidaries (D)

Mr. Bhalendra Pal Singh (CFO)** M/s Emmsons SA

Mr. Prashant Pratap Singh (Company Secratory)*** M/s Emmsons Gulf DMCC

iv) Step down Subsidaries(E)

M/s Emmsons Asia Pte. Ltd.

M/s Pt.Star Emmsons ,Indonesia

*Mr. Shivaz Monga resigned on 30.10.2015

**Mr. Bhalendra Pal Singh (CFO) has resigned on 05.03.2020 and re-Joined on 30.09.2020

***Mr. Prashant Pratap Singh (Company Secratory)  -Joined w.e.f. 15.10.2020
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Related party Disclosure
(ii) Transaction with Related parties (` In Lacs)

Nature of Transactions Director (A) Enterprises 
in which 

Directors’s 
relative are 

Interested (B)

 Key 
Management 
Personnel’s 

(C )

Subsidaries 
(D)

Step down 
Subsidaries (E)

Total

2020-
2021

2019-
2020

2020-
2021

2019-
2020

2020-
2021

2019-
2020

2020-
2021

2019-
2020

2020-
2021

2019-
2020

2020-
2021

2019-
2020

A) Transaction

(i) Rent  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Mr. Anil Kumar  Monga  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(ii) Remuneration to 
Key Management 
Personnel

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Mr. Bhalendra Pal 
Singh (CFO)

 -  -  -  -  2.19  13.48  -  -  -  -  2.19  13.48 

Mr. Prashant Pratap 
Singh (Company 
Secratory)

 0.80  - 

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(iii) Unsecured Loan 
Received 

Anil Kumar Monga  35.53  143.31  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  35.53  143.31 

Rajesh Monga  -  0.86  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  0.86 

Shivaz Monga  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Travsol Worldwide Private 
Limited

 -  -  5.00  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  5.00  - 

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(iv) Unsecured Loan 
Repaid 

Anil Kumar Monga  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Rajesh Monga  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Shivaz Monga  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Travsol Worldwide Private 
Limited

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(v) Travelling & 
Conveyance

Travsol Worldwide Private 
Limited

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(B) Balance 
outstanding  as at the 
end of the year

Payables

Loans from directors

Anil Kumar Monga 1,419.84 1,384.31  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 1,419.84 1,384.31 

Rajesh Monga  200.86  200.86  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  200.86  200.86 

Shivaz Monga  150.00  150.00  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  150.00  150.00 

Due to employee

Bhalendra Pal Singh  -  -  -  -  11.20  11.20  -  -  -  -  11.20  11.20 

Loan from related 
company

 -  - 

Travsol Worldwide 
Pvt. Ltd

 -  -  25.00  20.00  25.00  20.00 

Trade Payable

Travsol Worldwide 
Pvt. Ltd

 -  -  50.11  50.11  -  -  -  -  -  -  50.11  50.11 

Emmsons Asia Pte Ltd.  2,428.29  2,428.29 2,428.29 2,428.29 
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33 Segment Reporting

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of “Trading of commodities” which constitutes a single 
reporting segment and the Management does not monitors the operating results of its business units separately 
for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment 
performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial 
statements, thus there are no additional disclosures to be provided under Ind AS 108 – “Segment Reporting”. 

34 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Capital commitments 

(a) Provisions

Movement in each class of provision during the financial year are provided below:

(` In Lacs)

Particulars Employee 
benefits

Doubtful 
advances

Doubtful 
Debts

As at April 1, 2020  165.28  19,131.37  44,129.25 

Additional Provision during the year  11.66  -  - 

Remeasurement losses accounted for in OCI  (8.06)  -  - 

Amount used during the period  6.84  -  - 

As at March 31, 2021  162.03  19,131.37  44,129.25 

(b) Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for in financial statements

(` In Lacs)

Particulars  As at March 
31, 2021 

 As at March 
31, 2020 

(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt Nil Nil

(b) Guarantees - Corporate Guarantee for Subsidiary Company 32410.48 32410.48

(c) Guarantees to sale tax authorities 5.90 5.90

(d) Other money for which the Company is contingently liable for :-

Income Tax * 1471.63 1445.49

Custom Drawback** 116.75 116.75

For Others*** 890.25 890.25

*Tax Demand totaling Rs. 19.46 Lacs for AY 2003-2004, Rs. 5.57 Lacs for A.Y. 2004-2005, Rs. 7.05 Lacs for 
A.Y. 2008-2009, Rs. 0.88 Lacs for A.Y. 2009-2010, Rs.0.50 Lacs for A.Y. 2011-2012,  Rs. 431.32 Lacs for AY 
2012-13, Rs. 425.01 Lacs for AY 2013-2014  and  Rs.581.13 Lacs for A.Y. 2014-2015  raised by the Income 
Tax Department is being contested by the Company in appeal. No provision has been made for the liability in 
the accounts under report.

**The demand of Rs. 30.09 Lacs and 86.66 lacs has been raised by the office of the joint commissioner of 
Customs , Kakinada. Company has filed a appeal before the Honourable Commissioner (Appeals) Customes, 
Kannavarythoda Guntur.No provision was made in books of accountts.

***The company has entered an arbitration suit against the Punjab State Warehousing Corporation. The 
arbitration tribunal has issued its award against the company for Rs.890.25 lacs. Company’s application for 
setting aside the award and also the review pettition have been rejected by the lower court. The Company has 
filed appeal before the High Court of Punjab and Haryana at Chandigarh. 
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(c) Company has outstanding liabilities of Rs. 1,78,761.48/- lakhs payables to various Banks in borrowings made 
from these banks. Details are furnished as Note No. 19 of the financial statements. Company has defaulted in 
payment of interest and repayment of loans to these banks. Banks have demanded back the loans disbursed 
to the company and its subsidiaries but company has no financial means to repay the borrowings. All accounts 
of the company and its subsidiaries have been classified as Non-Performing Assets (NPA). The directors of the 
company are making best efforts to sell the coal mine in Indonesia owned by step subsidiary M/s PT Bara Energi 
Makmur Coal Project. It has given to banks to liquidate the coal mine and settle all the debts to the banks. Banks 
of Borada has got the mine valued from the International valuer M/s SALVA Mining Consultants. As per valuation 
report value of coal mine has been determined oat USD 178 Million. If Coal mine is liquidated for above amount, 
all liabilities of the banks shall be settled by payment leaving adequate funds with the management to restart the 
business activities which are presently closed for Scarcity of funds. For these facts director believe that company 
has fair changes to restart the business and have prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

35 Financial risk management objectives and policies

Financial Risk Management Framework

The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The Company’s board of directors 
has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. 
This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and 
the related impact in the financial statements.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is a risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial assets leading into a financial 
loss. Credit risk includes direct risk of default and risk of deterioration of creditworthiness. Credit risk is controlled 
by analyzing credit limits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom the credit has been 
granted. Financial assets consist of trade receivables, investments, loans, cash and cash equivalents, bank 
deposits and other financial assets.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The Company has currently 
been facing difficult liquidity position for reasons beyond its control. Efforts are being made improve the liquidity 
which will enable it to manages the future liquidity risk by maintaining adequate resources by continuously 
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices. Such changes in the values of financial instruments may result from changes in the 
foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, credit, liquidity and other market changes. The Company’s 
exposure to market risk is primarily on account of interest rate risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of change in market interest rates. As the Company’s debt obligation with floating interest rates are in INR which 
is subject to insignificant change, exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates are substantially 
independent of changes in market interest rates.

36 Capital Management  

The company’s policy is to maintain an adequate capital base so as to maintain creditor and market confidence 
and to sustain future development. capital includes issued capital, share premium and all other equity reserves 
attributable to equity holders.The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maintain an 
optimal structure so as to maximise the shareholder’s value. In order to strengthen the capital base, the company 
may use appropriate means to enhance or reduce capital, as the case may be.
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The Company manages its capital structure in consideration to the changes in economic conditions and the 
requirements of the financial covenants. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt 
divided by Equity plus net debt. Net debt consists of borrowings including interest accrued on borrowings, trade 
and other payables, less cash and short-term deposits.

(` In Lacs)

Particulars  As at March 
31, 2021 

 As at March 
31, 2020 

Borrowings including interest 
accrued on borrowings

180557.18 165753.94 

Less: cash and cash equivalents 0.97 1.11 

Net debt 180556.21 165752.83 

Equity 1199.60 1199.60 

Other Equity (183697.65) (168872.26)

Total Equity (182498.05) (167672.65)

Equity and net debt  (1,941.84)  (1,919.83)

Gearing ratio  (92.98)  (86.34)

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to 
ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital 
structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call 
loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and 
borrowing in the current period. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing 
capital during the year ended March 31, 2021

37 Disclosure in respect of Ind AS 115  “Revenue from contracts with customers”
(` In Lacs)

Particulars  As at March 
31, 2021 

 As at March 
31, 2020 

Revenue from contracts with customers

(i) Sale of products

     (a) Sale of products  -  - 

     (b) Sale of services  -  - 

(ii) Other operating income  -  - 

Total revenue covered under Ind AS 115  -  - 

A Contract balances

The following table provides information about receivables and contract liabilities from contract with customers:

(` In Lacs)

Particulars  As at March 
31, 2021 

 As at March 
31, 2020 

Contract liabilities

Advance received from customers  -  - 

Total contract liabilities  -  - 

Receivables

Trade receivables  -  - 

Total receivables  -  - 

Receivable is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. Contract 
liability is the entity’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the entity has received 
consideration from the customer in advance. 
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B Significant changes in the contract liabilities balances during the year are as 
follows:

Advances from Customers (` In Lacs)

Particulars  As at March 
31, 2021 

 As at March 
31, 2020 

Opening balance  -  8.00 

Addition/(Returned)  during the year  -  (8.00)

Revenue recognised during the year  -  - 

Closing balance  -  - 

38 Government of India declared lockdown on March , 2020 and further in April 2021 due to outbreak of Coronavirus 
Disease (COVID-19) a global pandemic declared by World Health Organisation (WHO). Consequent to this, the 
operations of the Company has been affected temporarily in compliance with the directives /orders issued by the 
relevant authorities. The Company has made assessments of its liquidity position  and of the recoverability and 
carrying values of its assets comprising property, plant and equipment inventories, investments, receivables and 
other current assets as at the balance sheet date and on the basis of current estimates it has been concluded 
that no material adjustment is required in the standalone financial results. However, the impact assessment of 
COVID-I9 is a continuing process, given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration. The Company 
will continue to monitor any material charge to future economic conditions.

39 Disclosure as per regulation 34(3) of “SEBI (Listing obligations & Disclosure requirements) 
Regulation, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) 

Loans and advances in the nature of loans given to subsidiaries:

(` In Lacs)

Particulars Outstanding 
as at 31st 

March, 2021

Maximum 
Amount 

Outstanding 
during 

2020-2021

Outstanding 
as 

at 31st 
March, 
2020

Maximum 
Amount 

Outstanding 
during 

2019-2020

Loan and advances  to Subsidiary

(a) Emmsons Gulf DMCC 6072.35 6072.35 6072.35 6072.35

40 Assets pledged as security

(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars  As at March 
31, 2021 

 As at March 
31, 2020 

Current

Inventories  -  - 

Trade Receivables  -  - 

Others  -  - 

Total  -  - 

Non-current

Property, Plant and Equipment  192.24  196.13 

Investment Property  -  - 

Others  -  - 

Total  192.24  196.13 
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41 Income Tax

(a)  Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

(` In Lacs)

Particulars  As at March 
31, 2021 

 As at March 
31, 2020 

Current Tax  -  - 

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of earlier year  -  - 

MAT credit Entitlement  -  - 

Total  -  - 

Deferred Tax

- Relating to Origination and  
Reversal of Temporary Differences

 -  - 

Income Tax Expense Reported in the  
Statement of Profit or Loss

 -  - 

(b)  Income Tax recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (` In Lacs)

Particulars  As at March 
31, 2021 

 As at March 
31, 2020 

Current Income Tax on Re-measurement 
Losses on Defined Benefit Plans

 -  - 

Total  -  - 

Total Income Tax Expense Reported in the  
Statement of Profit or Loss

 -  - 

(c)  Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate

((` In Lacs))

Particulars As at March 
31, 2021

As at March 
31, 2020

Profit before Tax  (14,833.45)  (15,520.03)

Enacted tax rate in India 26.00% 26.00%

Expected tax expenses  -  - 

Additional deduction under Income Tax Act, 1961  -  - 

Expenses disallowed under Income Tax Act, 1961  -  - 

Reported Income Tax Expense  -  - 

Effective Tax Rate  -  - 



Emmsons International Limited | Annual Report 2020-21

|   93

(d) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

(` In Lacs)

Particulars As at March 
31, 2021

As at March 
31, 2020

Deferred Tax Liability

Income tax at the applicable rate on the difference between the aggregate 
book written down value of property, plant and equipment

 -  - 

 -  - 

Deferred Tax Assets

Impact of expeniture charged to the statement of profit and loss in the 
current year but allowed for tax purpose on payment basis

 - Employee benefits  -  - 

 - Others  -  - 

 -  - 

Deferred tax Assets (Net)  -  - 

(e)  Reconciliation of Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

(` In Lacs)

Particulars As at March 
31, 2021

As at March 
31, 2020

Opening Balance  -  - 

Deferred Tax Expense recognised in:

Statement of Profit or Loss  -  - 

Other comprehensive income  -  - 

Closing Balance  -  - 

42 Figures in Balance Sheet , Statement of Profit and loss,cash flow statement,statement of changes in equity and 
Notes to audited financial statements have been shown in lakhs and rounded off to the nearest thousand and 
have been expressed in terms of decimals of thousand.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

For B.B. Chaudhary & Co. 

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 001784N

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

(B.B.Chaudhry) (Anil Kumar Monga) (Rajesh Monga)

Proprietor  Chairman & Managing Director Director

M.No. 14231 DIN. 00249410 DIN. 00249642

Sd/- Sd/-

Place : NEW DELHI (Bhalendra Pal Singh) (Prashant Pratap Singh)

Date : 30th June,2021 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To 
The Members
Emmsons International Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Report on the Audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Emmsons International Limited 

(hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”), its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries 

together referred to as the “Group”) comprising of the consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, 

the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including  other comprehensive income, the consolidated 

Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and 

notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and 

other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us except for 

the effects of the matters described in the ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’ section of our report and on the 

other financial information of the subsidiaries,   the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements give the 

information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (the “Act”) in the manner so required and 

give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 

consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2021, their consolidated profit including other 

comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes in equity 

for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Material Uncertainty Related To Going Concern

“We draw attention of the accompanying Statement which in indicated that the Group has incurred a 

net loss for the year ended 31 March 2021 of Rs. 14825.39 lacs and as of that date, the Company’s 

accumulated losses amounts to Rs. 204596.76 lacs which have resulted in substantial erosion of net worth 

of the Group and the current liabilities have exceeded its current assets as at 31, March 2021. We further 

draw attention that the Group has continued to default in repayment of principal and interest in respect of 

its borrowings. The above factors indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt 

on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern..”

However, for the reasons more fully described in Note 38 (c) to the standalone financial statements, the 

accounts of the Company have been prepared as a Going Concern.

Our conclusion is modified in respect of this matter.

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
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Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 

further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements’ 

section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 

our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance With these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 

audit of the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021. These matters 

were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in 

forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our 

report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the 

consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, 

our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of 

material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of audit procedures performed 

by us and by other auditors of components not audited by us, as reported by them in their audit reports 

furnished to us by the management, including those procedures performed to address the matters below, 

provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

l	We draw attention to Note No. 38 (C) to the consolidated financial Statements, wherein the Group 

has outstanding obligation to lenders and the of the accompanying Statement which in indicated 

that the Group has incurred a net loss for the year ended 31 March 2021 of Rs. 14825.39 lacs 

and as of that date, the Company’s accumulated losses amounts to Rs. 204596.76 lacs which 

have resulted in substantial erosion of net worth of the Company and the current liabilities have 

exceeded its current assets as at 31, March 2021. We further draw attention that the Group 

has continued to default in repayment of principal and interest in respect of its borrowings. The 

Bank accounts of Emmsons International Limited and Emmsons Gulf DMCC, Dubai has been 

declared NPA (Non-Performing Assets) by the respective Banks as both the companies are in 

default of payment of Principal and interest to their Bank. The above factors, on the operations 

of the company, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.” However, for the reasons more fully described 

in Note 38 (c) to the financial statements, the accounts of the Company have been prepared as a 

Going Concern. 

l	We also draw attention to the fact that net worth of the company is fully eroded and accumulated 

losses has exceeded the equity share capital by Rs. 204596.76 lacs
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Emphasis of Matter

1.	 The Company has accumulated losses of Rs. 204596.76 lacs and its net worth has been fully 

eroded, the company has incurred net loss during the current year and previous year and, the 

company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets as at balance sheet date.

2.	 The Companies bank accounts were declared Non-Performing Assets (NPA’s) in the year 2014 and 

no settlement has been made till reporting date. During the year provision for Interest amounting Rs. 

14762.71 lacs at the prevailing interest rates has been made in books and total bank borrowings 

outstanding as at reporting date is Rs. 204596.76 lacs. However no documents or bank statements 

were provided to confirm the above balances.

3.	 Sundry creditors shown under non-current liabilities Rs 472.62 lacs are pending for payment and 

outstanding for more than three years. The amount payable is subject to confirmation, reconciliation 

and adjustment, if any, in the books of accounts, consequential impact on loss and liabilities of the 

company due to adjustment is unascertained.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated financial 

statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 

other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with 

the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to 

be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 

misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 

regard. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these 

consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the 

consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income, 

consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group in accordance with 

the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 

specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, 

as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 

of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
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application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of 

preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies 

included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going 

concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 

of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no 

realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing 

the financial reporting process of the Group. 

The parent Company has consolidated financial Statements as per Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 

110 “Consolidated Financial Statements” prescribed under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Rules, 2015 (as amended) read with section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 by incorporating Financials of 

its two Subsidiary Company Namely Emmsons Gulf DMCC, Dubai and Emmsons S.A., Switzerland. The 

Group has defaulted in payment of interest and repayment of loans to their bankers and all accounts of the 

company and its subsidiaries have been classified as Non-Performing Assets (NPA).Both the subsidiary 

companies have represented that the companies have not made any financial transactions during the F.Y. 

2020-2021 and have further represented that for deep financial crunch no staff was employed by them to 

prepare year ending financial statement. It has also been represented by the Board that financial statements 

as on 31-03-2021 may be read with the same figures as appearing in the Audited financial statement as on 

31-03-2018.In the absence of audited financial statement the Board has assumed the figures of financial 

statement 31-03-2018 as the results for 31-03-2021 also and have made consolidated financial statement   

as per Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 110.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 

that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• 	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
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obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 

not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control. 

• 	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 

for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls 

with reference to financial statements in place and  the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• 	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• 	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, Based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

Conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. 

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 

report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 

the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease 

to continue as a going concern.

• 	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• 	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 

business activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to express an opinion 

on the consolidated financial statements.  We are responsible for the direction, supervision and 

performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated 

financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the 

consolidated financial statements, which are to be audited by other auditors, such other auditors 

remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. 

We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities 

included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, 

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards.
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 From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 

were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 

March 31, 2021 and are therefore the key audit matters. We law or regulation precludes public disclosure 

about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected 

to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

(a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.;

(b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 

consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of 

those books and reports of the other auditors;

(c)	 The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated  Statement of Profit and Loss including the 

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated 

Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account 

maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

(d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015, 

as amended;

(e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as 

on March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, none of the 

directors of the Group’s companies, incorporated in India, is disqualified as on March 31, 2021  from 

being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f)	 With respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over 

financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company 

and its subsidiary companies, incorporated in India, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 1” to 

this report;

(g)	 With respect to the other matter to be included in Auditors Report in accordance with the requirements 

of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2021 has been paid / provided in accordance 

with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

(h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 
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information and according to the explanations given to us :

i. 	 The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its consolidated 

financial position of the Group, 

ii. 	 Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under the applicable 

law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term  contracts 

including derivative contracts.

iii. 	 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Holding Company during the year ended March 31, 2020.

For B.B. Chaudhary & Co. 

Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No: 001784N)

Sd/-

B.B.Chaudhry

Proprietor  

(Membership No. 14231)
UDIN:21014231AAAAET2578

Date: 23rd December 2021
Place: New Delhi   
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Consolidated Financial Statements of 
Emmsons International Limited,

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Emmsons International Limited 
as of and for the year ended March 31, 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of Emmsons International Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) as of that 
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies 
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls  based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting 
with reference to these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, both, issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India, and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated 
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors 
in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference 
to these consolidated financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting With Reference to these 
Consolidated Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated 
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting 
with reference to these consolidated financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) 
Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance 
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting With Reference to 
these Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to 
these consolidated financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management 
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these 
consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company have, maintained in all material respects, adequate internal financial 
controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements and such internal 
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.

For B.B. Chaudhary & Co. 
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No: 001784N)

Sd/-
B.B.Chaudhry
Proprietor  
(Membership No. 14231)
UDIN: 21014231AAAAET2578

Date: 23rd December 2021
Place: New Delhi   
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2021
(` In Lacs)

Particulars Note No. As at 31st 
Match, 2021 

As at 31st 
Match, 2020

A ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4  1,187.92  1,208.35 
(b) Investment Property 5  82.83  84.45 
(c) Other Intangible assets 6  48,969.16  48,969.16 
(d) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 7  -  - 
(ii) Trade receivables 8 3056.65 3056.65 
(iii) Other Financial Non-Current Assets 9 34.27 34.27 

(e) Deferred tax assets (net) 10 431.77 431.77 
(f) Other non-current assets 11 75.87 75.87 
Current assets
(a) Inventories  -  - 
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 12 201.03 201.17
(ii) Other bank balances
(iii) Other Financial Assets 13 3.43 3.43

(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 14 101.42 101.40
(d) Other current assets 15 1,568.85 1,568.85
       Total Assets    55713.19 55735.37 

B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity Share capital 16 1199.60 1199.60 
(b) Other Equity 17 (206759.13) (191933.74)
Attributable to owners of the parent (205559.53) (190734.14)
Non Controlling Interest  962.77  962.77 
Total Equity (204596.76) (189771.36)

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 18 5,711.11 5,670.58
(ii) Trade payables 19 472.62 419.04
(iii) Other financial liabilities 20 486.13 486.13

(b) Provisions 21 124.14 199.78 
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 22 248,344.66 233,581.95
(ii) Trade payables 23 801.70 852.97
(iii) Other financial liabilities 24 110.19 110.36 

(b) Other current liabilities 25 4,097.51 4,096.45
(c) Provisions 26 161.87 89.48
       Total Equity and Liabilities  55,713.19  55,735.37 

Accompanying Notes 1 to 44 forms integral part of these Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached

For B.B. Chaudhary & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 001784N

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
(B.B.Chaudhry) (Anil Kumar Monga) (Rajesh Monga)
Proprietor  Chairman & Managing Director Director
M.No. 14231 DIN. 00249410 DIN. 00249642

Sd/- Sd/-
Place : New Delhi (Bhalendra Pal Singh) (Prashant Pratap Singh)
Date : 23rd December, 2021 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021
(` In Lacs)

Particulars Note 
No.

As at 31st 
Match,2021

As at 31st 
Match,2020

I Revenue From operations  -  - 
II Other Income 27 0.26 0.84 
III Total Income (l+Il) 0.26 0.84 
IV EXPENSES

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade  -  - 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in -Trade and work in-progress  -  - 
Employee benefits expense 28 19.91 51.83 
Finance costs 29 14,762.71 14,787.48 
Depreciation and amortization expenses 4,5,& 6 22.06 48.59 
Other expenses 30 29.04 632.98 
Total expenses (lV) 14,833.71 15,520.88 

V Profit /(Loss)  before exceptional items and tax (III-IV) (14,833.45)  (15,520.03)

VI Exceptional items  -  - 

VII Profit/(Loss) before tax (V+VI) (14,833.45)  (15,520.03)
VIII Tax expense:

      Current tax  -  - 
      Deferred tax  -  - 
Total Tax Expense  -  - 

IX Profit /(Loss) for the year (VII-VIII) (14,833.45)  (15,520.03)
X Other Comprehensive Income 

A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
 Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 8.06  (9.58)
B) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange differences in translating the financial 
statement of foreign operation

 -  - 

Total Other Comprehensive Income for the Year  8.06  (9.58)

XI Total Comprehensive Income for the year (IX+X) (14,825.39)  (15,529.62)
Profit / (Loss) for the year attributable to:
-Owners of the parent  (14,833.45)  (15,520.03)
- Non-controlling interest  -  - 

(14,833.45)  (15,520.03)
Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
-Owners of the parent  8.06  (9.58)
- Non-controlling interest  -  - 

 8.06  (9.58)
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
- Owners of the parent  (14,825.39)  (15,529.62)
- Non-controlling interest  - 

(14,825.39)  (15,529.62)
XII Earnings per equity share of Rs. 10/-each

  Basic ( in Rs. ) (123.65) (129.38)
  Diluted ( in Rs.) (123.65) (129.38)

Accompanying Notes 1 to 44 forms integral part of these Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached

For B.B. Chaudhary & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 001784N

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
(B.B.Chaudhry) (Anil Kumar Monga) (Rajesh Monga)
Proprietor  Chairman & Managing Director Director
M.No. 14231 DIN. 00249410 DIN. 00249642

Sd/- Sd/-
Place : New Delhi (Bhalendra Pal Singh) (Prashant Pratap Singh)
Date : 23rd December, 2021 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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For B.B. Chaudhary & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 001784N

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
(B.B.Chaudhry) (Anil Kumar Monga) (Rajesh Monga)
Proprietor  Chairman & Managing Director Director
M.No. 14231 DIN. 00249410 DIN. 00249642

Sd/- Sd/-
Place : New Delhi (Bhalendra Pal Singh) (Prashant Pratap Singh)
Date : 23rd December, 2021 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
(` In Lacs)

Particulars As at 31st Match,2021 As at 31st Match,2020
A. Cash  flow  from  operating  activities :

Net Profit/(Loss) before tax (14833.45) (15520.03)
Adjustment for :

Depreciation  22.06  48.59 
Interest income  (0.26)  (0.33)
Deferred tax assets of previous year written off  -  54.30 
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 8.06 (9.58)
Finance Cost Paid  14,762.71  14,792.57  14,787.48 14880.46 

Operating profit before working capital changes (40.88) (639.57)
Adjustment for :

Decrease / (Increase) in Inventories  -  - 
Decrease / (Increase) in Trade Receivables  -  - 
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Financial Assets  -  22.93 
(Increase) / Decrease ln Other Assets  (0.02)  511.15 
(Decrease)/ Increase In Trade Payables  2.32  (32.98)
(Decrease) / Increase in Other Financial Liabilities  (0.16)  (10.14)
(Decrease)/ Increase in Other Liabilities and Provisions  (2.19)  (0.05)  (0.43)  490.53 

Cash generated from operations (40.93) (149.04)
Income tax paid (Net of refunds)  -  - 

Net cash flow from operating activities (A)  (40.93)  (149.04)
B. Cash flow from investing activities   :

        Interest income 0.26 0.33 
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B) 0.26 0.33 

C. Cash flow from financing activities :
        Net Proceeds/(Repayment) of long term borrowings 40.53 144.17 
        Net Proceeds/(Repayment) of short term borrowings
        Finance Cost Paid  -  - 
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C) 40.53 144.17 

Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents 
(A+B+C)

(0.14) (4.54)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 201.17 205.71 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 201.03 201.17 

Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents  (Refer Note No. 12)
Cash in hand 56.16 56.30 
Balances with Banks 144.86 144.86 
Cash & Cash equivalents in Cash Flow Statement 201.03 201.17 

Disclosure as referred in Ind AS 7 ‘ Statement of Cash flows

Particulars As at 31st Match,2021 As at 31st Match,2020
Long term 
borrowings

Short term 
Borrowings

Long term 
borrowings

Short term 
Borrowings

Carrying amount of debt at the beginning of the period 5670.58 162936.90 5526.41 162936.90 
Additional borrowings during the period 40.53  - 144.17  - 
Repayments/prepayments during the period  -  -  -  - 
Carrying amount of debt at the end of the period 5711.11 162936.90 5670.58 162936.90 

Accompanying Notes 1 to 44 forms integral part of these Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GROUP OVERVIEW AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1 1.1. Group Information

Emmsons International Limited  (Parent Company) is a public limited Company domiciled in India 
and incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956 and its shares are publicly traded 
on the Bombay Stock Exchange (“BSE”) in India.The Registered office of the Parent Company is 
situated at 301/12  Community Centre, Zamrudpur, New Delhi-110048, India.

Under Companies Act 2013, Group is defined as Parent company and its Subsidiaries. The 
company has following subsidiaries:

Name of the 
Subsidiaries

Date on which it 
became subsidiary

Country of 
Incorporation

Proportion of 
ownership interest

Emmsons S.A. 03.09.2007 Switzerland 99.99%

Emmsons Gulf DMCC 01.02.2009 Dubai 100.00%

2 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015 (as amended) read with section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 and presentation requirements of 
Division II of schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended), on the historical cost basis except 
for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies 
below.

The Significant accounting policies used in preparing the consolidated financial statements are set out 
in Note 3 of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements.

3 Significant accounting policies

3.1 Basis of Measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the 
historical cost convention except following which have been measured at fair value:

• Certain financial assets i.e. Investments .

• Defined benefit plans – plan assets measured at fair value,

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs., which is the Group’s 
functional and Group’s presentation currency and all amounts are rounded to the nearest lakhs (` 
00,000) and two decimals thereof, except as stated otherwise.

 3.2 Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated Ind AS  financial statements requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions. Actual results could vary from these estimates. The estimates and 
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision effects only that period 
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future 
years.
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 3.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements relate to Parent company and subsidiaries (‘Group’). 
Subsidiary are those entities in which the Parent directly or indirectly, has interest more than 
50% of the voting power or otherwise control the composition of the board or governing 
body so as to obtain economic benefits from activities. The group controls an entity when 
the group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity 
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities 
of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred 
to the group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases. The consolidated 
financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:-

a) The financial statements of the subsidiaries are combined on a line-by–line basis by adding 
together the like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses after fully eliminating intra-
group balances and intra-group transactions and unrealized profits or losses in accordance 
with IND AS 110 –‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ notified under Section 133 of the Act, 
read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended time to time.

b) In the case of foreign subsidiaries, being non-integral foreign operations, revenue items 
are consolidated at the closing  exchange rates prevailing at the year end . All assets and 
liabilities are converted at rates prevailing at the end of the year. Components of equity are 
translated at closing rate. Any gain / (loss) on exchange difference arising on consolidation is 
recognized in the Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (FCTR).

c) Non-controlling Interest (NCI) in the net assets of the consolidated subsidiaries is identified 
and presented in the consolidated Balance Sheet separately from liabilities and the equity 
attributable to the Parent’s shareholders. NCI in the net assets of the consolidated subsidiaries 
consists of:

- The amount of equity attributable to NCI at the date on which investment in a subsidiary 
is made and

- The NCI share of movement in the equity since the date the parent subsidiary relationship 
came into existence.

d) The consolidated Ind AS financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies 
for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented in the same 
manner as the companies separate financial statements.

 3.4 Current and non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet based on current/
non-current classification. 
An asset is current when it is: 
• Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; 
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
• Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for 
at least twelve months after the reporting period. 
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when it is: 
• Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; 
• Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
• There is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months 
after the reporting period.  
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
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 3.5  Property Plant & Equipment 

i) Initial recognition and measurement

An item of property, plant and equipments recognized as an asset if and only if it is probable 
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of 
the item can be measured reliably.

Items of Property, Plant and Equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation/
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly 
attributable to bringing the asset, inclusive of non-refundable taxes & duties,  to the location 
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by 
management.
When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lifes, they are 
recognized separately. Property, Plant and Equipments which are not ready for intended use 
as on the date of consolidated Balance Sheet are disclosed as ‘Capital Work-In-Progress’.

ii) Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of 
the asset when it is probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost 
incurred will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 
The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the 
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within 
the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of 
the replaced part is derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of Property, Plant 
and Equipment are recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss as incurred.

iii) Derecognition

Property, Plant and Equipment are derecognized when no future economic benefits are 
expected from their use or upon their disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of 
property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with 
the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized in the statement 
of profit and loss.

iv) Depreciation/amortization

Indian Entity

Depreciation is recognized in consolidated statement of profit and loss on a straight line 
method over the estimated useful life of each item of Property, Plant and Equipment.

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from property, plant and equipment during the year 
is charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available for use/
disposed.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on their estimated useful life as 
prescribed by Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013 as follows:
1) Buildings                           60 years
2) Plant & Machinery             15 years
3) Furniture & Fixtures           10 years
4) Vehicles                             08 years
5) Office Equipments             05 years
6) Generator                          15 years
7) Computer                          03 years
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Foreign Entities

Emmsons Gulf DMCC

Depreciation on Property , Plant and Equipment is calculated using the straight line method 
to allocate their cost less estimated residual values over the estimated useful lives of the 
assets.

The estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Year

Freehold properties 60

Furniture fixture and office equipment’s 15

Motor Vehicle 10

 3.6 Capital work-in-progress 

The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials & direct labour, borrowing 
costs, any other costs directly attributable to bring the assets to the location and condition 
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

 3.7 Intangible assets

i) Initial recognition and measurement

An intangible asset is recognized if and only if it is probable that the expected future economic 
benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can 
be measured reliably.

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group, which have finite useful lives, are recognized 
at cost. Subsequent measurement is done at cost less accumulated amortization and 
accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes any directly attributable incidental expenses 
necessary to make the assets ready for its intended use.

ii) Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset 
when it is probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to 
the enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

iii) Derecognition

An intangible asset is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected from 
their use or upon their disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of intangible assets 
are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of 
intangible assets and are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

iv) Amortization

Intangible assets having definite life are amortized on straight line method in their useful life 
of 5 years.

 3.8   Investment Property

Investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses, if any. Depreciation on building is provided over the estimated useful lives as specified 
in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation 
method of investment properties are reviewed, and adjusted on prospective basis as appropriate, 
at each financial year end. The effects of any revision are included in the consolidated statement 
of profit and loss when the changes arise.
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 3.9 Inventories

Inventories of Finished goods are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value on FIFO 
basis.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location is included in cost in valuation of 
inventories.

 3.10 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and cash on hand 
and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to 
insignificant risk of change in value.

 3.11  Financial instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

i) Financial assets:
Financial assets are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument.

a) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus or minus, in the case of financial 
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs are attributable to 
the acquisition or issue of the financial asset, otherwise charged to consolidated statement 
of profit and loss.

b) Subsequent measurement

Financial assets are subsequently classified and measured at:

• Financial assets at amortised cost

• Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

• Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

c) Equity Instruments:

All investments in equity instruments in entities other than subsidiaries are measured at fair 
value. For all other equity instruments, the Group decides to classify the same either at 
FVTOCI or FVTPL. The Group makes such election on an instrument by instrument basis. 
The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. Investment in Equity shares 
of subsidiaries and associates are valued at cost

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes 
on the instruments, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling 
of the amounts from OCI to consolidated statement of profit and loss, even on sale of 
investment as the Group transfers cumulative gain or loss within the equity.

Equity instruments if classified as FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 
recognized in the  consolidated statement of profit and loss.

d) Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar 
financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Group’s balance sheet) 
when: 

• The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

• The Group has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset.
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e) Impairment of Financial Asset

Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to initial recognition 
in the  consolidated statement of profit and loss.

For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets other than Trade receivables, the 
Group determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since 
initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to 
provide impairment loss. However, If credit risk is increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. 
If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves to such extent that there 
is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts 
to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12- Month ECL.

For trade receivables Group applies ‘simplified approach’ which requires expected lifetime 
losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. The Group uses historical 
default rates to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of trade receivables. At every 
reporting date these historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the forward looking 
estimates are analysed.

ii) Financial liabilities

a) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of loans, net of directly attributable 
cost. Fees of recurring nature are directly recognised in the consolidated statement of profit 
and loss  as finance cost. 

b) Subsequent measurement 

Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition 
and any material transaction that are any integral part of the EIR. Trade and other payables 
maturing within one year from the balance sheet date are carried at transaction value, the 
carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments. 
Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all 
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

c) Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts 
is recognized in the  consolidated statement of profit and loss.

 3.12 Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance 
sheet date.Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair 
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer 
the liability takes place either: 
• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. 
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their 
economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
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market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and 
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest 
and best use. The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances 
and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant 
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for 
which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the 
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 – Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 – Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or Indirectly observable
Level 3 – Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable.
For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, 
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. The Group determines the policies 
and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and 
unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as 
assets held for distribution in discontinued operations.

 3.13 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Group, in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 36 “Impairment of 
Assets” , has adopted the practice of assessing at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any 
Indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such Indication exists, then the Group provides 
for the loss for impairment of Assets after estimating the recoverable amount of the assets.

 3.14 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provision are measured at the Present value of the management’s best estimate of the 
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of reporting period. Provisions 
involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present 
obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed only when there is a possible obligation arising from past 
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one 
or more uncertain future events which is not wholly within the control of the Group or a present 
obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle the obligation or estimate of the amount cannot be measured reliably. 
No contingent asset is recognized but disclosed by way of notes to accounts only when its 
recognition is virtually certain.

 3.15 Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and it is probable 
that future economic benefits will flow to the Group. Amount of sales are recorded net of goods 
and service tax, sale returns , trade allowances and discounts but inclusive of excise duty. 
Revenue from sale of products is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership 
of the products have been transferred to the buyer, and the amount of revenue can be measured 
reliably.

Export  benefits are recognised by Group on accrual  basis.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the income is established. 
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Interest income is recognised, when no significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectability 
exists, on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and  the applicable 
interest rate , using the effective interest rate method (EIR).

 3.16 Income Taxes

Income tax expense for the year comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised 
in the consolidated statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to any business 
combination or to an item which is recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

a) Current Tax

Current Tax is the amount of tax payable on the estimated taxable income for the current 
year as per the provisions of Income Tax Act,1961.

b) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised for temporary differences. However, Deferred Tax Assets is 
recognised to the extent that, it is probable that taxable income will be available against 
which the same can be realised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet 
date and are written-down or written-up to reflect the amount that is reasonably certain (as 
the case may be) to be realized.

c) Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the consolidated statement of 
profit and loss as current tax for the year. The deferred tax asset is recognised for MAT 
credit available only to the extent that it is probable that the Group will pay normal income 
tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried 
forward.
In the year in which the Group recognizes MAT credit as an asset, it is created by way of 
credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as part of deferred tax asset.
The Group reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes 
down the asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that it will pay normal tax during 
the specified period.

 3.17 Employee Benefits

i) Short Term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are 
expensed as the related service is provided.
A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under performance related pay 
if the Group has a present, legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of 
past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

ii) Post-Employment benefits

Employee benefit that are payable after the completion of employment are Post-Employment 
Benefit (other than termination benefit). Group has identified two types of post employment 
benefits.

a) Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are those plans in which the Group pays fixed contribution into 
separate entities and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. 
Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance are Defined Contribution Plans in which Group 
pays a fixed contribution and will have no further obligation beyond the monthly contributions 
and are recognised as an expenses in consolidated statement of profit and loss.
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b) Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. 
Group pays Gratuity as per provisions of the Gratuity Act, 1972. The Group’s net obligation 
in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the 
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current 
and prior periods; that benefit to employees is discounted to determine its present value.

The calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit 
method. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance 
of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in 
employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss. 

Any actuarial gains or losses pertaining to components of re-measurements of net defined 
benefit liability/(asset) are recognized in OCI in the period in which they arise.

By Dubai Subsidiary, amount required to cover end of service indemnity at the Balance Sheet 
date are computed pursuant to the United Arab Emirates Federal Labour Law based on the 
employee’s accumulated period of service and current basic remuneration at the Balance 
Sheet date

 3.18 Borrowing Cost 

General and Specific Borrowing Cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition or 
construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost of such 
assets up to the date when such assets are ready for intended use. Qualified assets are assets 
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.  
Other borrowing costs are charged as expenses in the year in which they are incurred.  
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their 
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing cost eligible for capitalisation.

 3.19 Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign Currency Transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of 
the transactions. Gains and losses arising out of subsequent fluctuations are accounted for on 
actual payments or realisations as the case may be. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated 
in foreign currency as on Balance Sheet date are translated into functional currency at the 
exchange rates prevailing on that date and Exchange differences arising out of such conversion 
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. 

 3.20 Earning  Per Share 

Basic Earning Per Share is calculated  by  dividing the net profit or loss for the period  attributable to 
equity  shareholders by weighted average number of equity  shares outstanding during the period. 
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit after tax during the year and 
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effect 
of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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4  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(` In Lacs)

Particulars Land Buildings Plant and 
Equipment

Furniture 
and 

Fixtures

 Vehicles Office 
equipment

Computer Generator Total

Cost
As at 31st 
March, 2019

526.20 616.45 7.95 245.23 556.26 164.48 61.54 17.17 2,195.26 

Addition during 
the year

 -  -  -  -  -  -  - 0.00 

Foreign currency 
transaction 
differences

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 0.00 

Derecognition  -  -  -  -  38.01  -  -  -  38.01 
As at 31st 
March, 2020

526.20 616.45 7.95 245.23 518.25 164.48 61.54 17.17 2,157.25 

Addition during 
the year

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Foreign currency 
transaction 
differences

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 0.00 

Derecognition  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
As at 31st 
March, 2021

526.20 616.45 7.95 245.23 518.25 164.48 61.54 17.17 2,157.25 

Depreciation :
As at 31st 
March, 2019

 -  93.70  7.12  179.02  433.68  155.21  61.21  10.15  940.09 

Depreciation 
charge for the 
year

 -  3.90  0.26  7.38  29.20  4.85  0.02  1.21  46.82 

Foreign currency 
transaction 
differences

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 0.00 

Derecognition  -  -  -  -  38.01  -  -  -  38.01 
As at 31st 
March, 2020

 -  97.59  7.38  186.40  424.87  160.06  61.23  11.37  948.90 

Depreciation 
charge for the 
year

 -  3.89  0.25  9.35  3.61  1.98  0.18  1.19  20.438 

Foreign currency 
transaction 
differences

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Derecognition  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
As at 31st 
March, 2021

 -  101.48  7.63  195.75  428.48  162.04  61.41  12.55  969.33 

Net Book Value 
As At
As at 31st 
March, 2021

526.20 514.97 0.32 49.47 89.77 2.44 0.13 4.61 1,187.92 

As at 31st 
March, 2020

526.20 518.86 0.57 58.83 93.38 4.41 0.31 5.80 1,208.35 



EMMSONS

116   |

5 INVESTMENT PROPERTY
 (` In Lacs)

Particulars Building Total
Cost
As at 31st March, 2019  101.96  101.96 
Additions (subsequent expenditure)  -  - 
Foreign currency transaction differences  -  - 
Disposals/Transfer during the year  -  - 
As at 31st March, 2019  101.96  101.96 
Additions (subsequent expenditure)  -  - 
Foreign currency transaction differences  -  - 
Disposals/Transfer during the year  -  - 
As at 31st March, 2020  101.96  101.96 
Depreciation :
As at 31st March, 2019  15.88  15.88 
Depreciation charge for the year  1.62  1.62 
Foreign currency transaction differences  -  - 
Eliminated on disposal of assets  -  - 
As at 31st March, 2020  17.51  17.51 
Depreciation charge for the year  1.62  1.62 
Foreign currency transaction differences  -  - 
Eliminated on disposal of assets  -  - 
As at 31st March, 2021  19.13  19.13 

Net Book Value As At
As at 31st March, 2021  82.83  82.83 
As at 31st March, 2020  84.45  84.45 

Information regarding income and expenditure 
of Investment property
Particulars As at March 

31, 2021
As at March 

31, 2020
Rental income derived from investment properties  -  - 
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and 
maintenance) generating rental income

 -  - 

Profit arising from investment properties before 
depreciation and indirect expenses

 -  - 

Less – Depreciation  1.62  1.62 
Profit arising from investment properties before 
indirect expenses

(1.62) (1.62)

Fair Value (` In Lacs)
As on March 31, 2021 87.30
As on March 31, 2020 87.30

Valuation has been arrived as per minimum rates prescribed by government of National Capital Territory of Delhi 
vide Notification dated September 22, 2014. The fair value measurement is categorised in level 2- fair value 
hierarchy
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6 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
 (` In Lacs)

Particulars Goodwill Exploration 
Assets

Mining 
Right

Brands /
trademarks

Computer 
Software

Website 
Development 

Charges

Total

Cost:

As at 31st March, 2019 914.83 3,496.23 44,558.09 0.05 6.72 1.52 48,977.45 

Addition during the year  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Foreign currency 
transaction differences

 -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Disposals/Transfer during 
the year 

 -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

As at 31st March, 2020 914.83 3,496.23 44,558.09 0.05 6.72 1.52 48,977.45 

Addition during the year  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Foreign currency 
transaction differences

 -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Disposals/Transfer during 
the year 

 -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

As at 31st March, 2021 914.83 3,496.23 44,558.09 0.05 6.72 1.52 48,977.45 

Depreciation 

As at 31st March, 2019  -  -  -  0.05  6.57  1.52  8.14 

Depreciation charge for 
the year

 -  -  -  -  0.15  -  0.15 

Foreign currency 
transaction differences

 -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Disposals/Transfer during 
the year 

 -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

As at 31st March, 2020  -  -  -  0.05  6.72  1.52  8.29 

Depreciation charge for 
the year

 -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Foreign currency 
transaction differences

 -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Disposals/Transfer during 
the year 

 -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

As at 31st March, 2021  -  -  -  0.05  6.72  1.52  8.29 

Net Book Value As At

As at 31st March, 2021  914.83  3,496.23 44,558.09  0.00  0.00  0.00  48,969.16 

As at 31st March, 2020  914.83  3,496.23 44,558.09  0.00  0.00  0.00  48,969.16 
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(` In Lacs

As at 31st 
Match, 2021

As at 31st 
Match, 2020

8 Trade receivables (Non Current)

Trade Receivables (Unsecured, considered good) 

Trade Receivables (Doubtful) 49,998.89 49,998.89

49,998.89 49,998.89

             Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 46,942.25 46,942.25

3,056.65 3,056.65

9 Other financial non-current assets

Unsecured Considered Good

Security Deposits 17.67 17.67

Advance to staff 16.60 16.60

 34.27  34.27 

7  Investments (Non Current)
(` In Lacs

Particulars As at 31st Match,2021 As at 31st Match,2020

Numbers ` Numbers `

Unquoted equity Instruments 

a) Investments in other than subsidiaries

(i) Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up in 
“Emmsons Infotech Limited”

877300  - 877300  - 

 -  - 

Quoted equity Instruments (measured at FVTPL)

(i) Equity shares of Rs.1/- Each fully paid up in 
K-Lifestyle Industries Ltd.

50000  - 50000  - 

(ii)Equity shares of Rs.1/- Each fully paid up in Sterling 
Bio Tech Ltd.

53900  - 53900  - 

(iii) Equity shares of Rs.1/- Each fully paid up in Sterling 
International Enterprises Ltd.

37438  - 37438  - 

(iv) Equity shares of Rs.10/- Each fully paid up in 
Zenith Computers Ltd.

3000  - 3000  - 

(v) Equity shares of Rs.10/- Each fully paid up in 
Pyramid Saimira Theatre Ltd.

1000  - 1000  - 

 -  - 

- -
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10 Deferred tax assets (net)
Post employee benefit liabilities (Subsidiaries) (6.55) (6.55)

Deferred exploration expenditure (256.75) (256.75)

loss carry forwards 695.07 695.07 

431.77 431.77 

11 Other Non-Current Assets
       Capital Advances*  -  - 

Advance other than capital advances

       Advances to Suppliers**  -  - 

       Establishment Expenses 75.87 75.87 

75.87 75.87 

*Capital Advances 10.00 10.00 

           Less: Provision for doubtful Advances 10.00 10.00 

 -  - 

**Advance to suppliers

Considered good  -  - 

Doubtful 6069.09 6069.09 

Less: Allowance for doubtful suppliers 6069.09 6069.09 

 -  - 

12 Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks 144.86 144.86 

Cash on hand 56.16 56.30 

201.03 201.17 

13 Other financial assets
Unsecured, Considered Good

Advance to staff 3.43 3.43 

3.43 3.43 

14 Current tax assets (net)
Current Tax Assets / (Liabilities)  (Net) 101.42 101.40 

101.42 101.40 

15 Other current assets
Advance other than capital advances

Prepaid expenses 32.17 32.41 

Advance to suppliers 199.53 199.53 

Other Deposit 8.79 8.79 

Other receivables 1328.36 1328.12 

1568.85 1568.85 
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STATMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (SOCE ) FOR THE YEAR ENDED31ST MARCH, 2021

16 Share Capital

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Numbers of 
shares

` In Lacs Numbers of 
shares

` In Lacs

Authorised                                                                          

Equity Shares of ` 10/-  each  15,000,000  1,500.00  15,000,000  1,500.00 

 15,000,000  1,500.00  15,000,000  1,500.00 

Issued    

Equity Shares of ` 10/-  each  11,996,040  1,199.60  11,996,040  1,199.60 

 11,996,040  1,199.60  11,996,040  1,199.60 

Subscribed and fully paid up                                                                

Equity Shares of ` 10/-  each  11,996,040  1,199.60  11,996,040  1,199.60 

 11,996,040  1,199.60  11,996,040  1,199.60 

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares 

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity 
shares is entitled to one vote per share.  

(i) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end 
of the reporting period:

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Numbers of 
shares

` In Lacs Numbers of 
shares

` In Lacs

Balance at the beginning of the period  11,996,040  1,199.60  11,996,040  1,199.60 

Change in equity share capital during the 
period

 -  -  -  - 

Balance at the end of reporting period  11,996,040  1,199.60  11,996,040  1,199.60 

(ii) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Class of shares / Name of shareholder As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Number of 
shares held

% holding 
in that 

class of 
shares

Number of 
shares held

% holding 
in that 

class of 
shares

Equity shares with voting rights

Anil Monga 2,891,716 24.11% 2,891,716 24.11%

Rajesh Monga 1,023,280 8.53% 1,023,280 8.53%

Geeta Gupta 663,174 5.53% 663,174 5.53%

Emmpac Holdings Pvt. Ltd. 606,996 5.06% 606,996 5.06%
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (SOCE)  FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

17  OTHER EQUITY (` In Lacs)

Particulars Reserve and Surplus Items of Other 
Comprehensive Income

Total 
Attributable 
to owners of 
the parents

Non 
Controlling 

Interest 

Total

Securities 
Premium 
Reserve

Capital 
Reserve

General  
Reserve

Retained 
Earning

Items that 
will  be 

reclassified 
to profit or 

loss

Items that 
will not be 

reclassified to 
profit or loss

Foreign 
currency 

translation 
reserve

Re-
measurement 
gains/(losses) 

on defined 
benefit plans

As at April 1, 
2019

2229.04 249.51 1634.73 (179996.26) (564.33) 43.18 (176404.12) 962.77 (175441.35)

Profit / (Loss) 
for the year 

 -  -  - (15520.03)  -  - (15520.03)  - (15520.03)

Other 
comprehensive 
income 

 -  -  -  -  - (9.58) (9.58)  - (9.58)

As at 31st 
March, 2020

2229.04 249.51 1634.73 (195516.29) (564.33) 33.60 (191933.74) 962.77 (190970.97)

Profit / (Loss) 
for the year 

 -  -  - (14833.45)  -  - (14833.45)  - (14833.45)

Other 
comprehensive 
income 

 -  -  -  -  - 8.06 8.06  - 8.06 

As at 31st 
March, 2021

2229.04 249.51 1634.73 (210349.75) (564.33) 41.66 (206759.13) 962.77 (205796.36)

18 Borrowings (Non Current) (` In Lacs)

Particulars As at 31st 
Match, 2021

As at 31st 
Match, 2020

From Banks (Secured)* 12.77 12.77 
Loans from related parties
From Directors** 1770.70 1735.17 
From related company 25.00 20.00 
Loans from others (Unsecured)  3,902.65  3,902.65 

5711.11 5670.58 

*Car Loan from Bank 12.77 12.77 
12.77 12.77 

* Loan from directors includes loan from Mr. Shivaz Monga who resigned 
from the post of director of the company on 30.10.2015

19 Trade Payables (Non Current) 
Total outstanding dues of micro, small & medium enterprises  -  - 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro, 
small & medium enterprises 

472.62 419.04 

472.62 419.04
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20 Other financial liabilities (Non Current)
Security Deposit Received  -  - 
Other Non Current Payables 486.13 486.13 

486.13 486.13

21 Provisions (Non Current) 
(a) Provision for employee benefits

        Provision for gratuity  0.16  60.60 
        Provision for leave encashment  -  15.20 
        Employees’ end of service benefits  123.98  123.98 

124.14 199.78

22 Borrowings (Current)
From Banks (Secured) 248344.66 233581.95 

248344.66 233581.95 

Allahabad Bank, New Delhi
Principle amount  14,698.29  14,698.29 
Interest due  10,423.98  8,245.45 

25122.27 22943.75
Bank of Baroda, New Delhi
Principle amount  14,799.75  14,799.75 
Interest due  10,788.07  8,779.53 

25587.83 23579.28
Indian Overseas Bank, New Delhi
Principle amount  22,185.14  22,185.14 
Interest due  19,767.57  15,839.37 

41952.71 38024.50
Oriental Bank of Commerce , New Delhi
Principle amount  51,803.11  51,803.11 
Interest due  34,326.92  27,679.49 

86130.03 79482.60
Allahabad Bank, Honk Kong
Principle amount  9,864.29  9,864.29 
Interest due  2,098.92  2,098.92 

11963.21 11963.21
Bank of Baroda,  Dubai
Principle amount  38,527.09  38,527.09 
Interest due  5,548.69  5,548.69 

44075.78 44075.78
Indian Overseas Bank, Hongkong
Principle amount  5,179.47  5,179.47 
Interest due  1,226.49  1,226.49 

6405.96 6405.96
Exim Bank, London
Principle amount  5,868.75  5,868.75 
Interest due  1,258.48  1,258.48 

7127.23 7127.23

Car Loan from Bank  11.01  11.01 

Less: sale of immovable property  mortgated to bank  31.36  31.36 
248344.66 233581.95
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23 Trade Payables (Current) 
Total outstanding dues of micro, small & medium 
enterprises

 -  - 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro, 
small & medium enterprises 

 801.70  852.97 

801.70 852.97 

24 Other financial liabilities
Salary Payable  0.87  0.74 

Expenses Payable  109.32  109.61 

110.19 110.36 

25 Other Current  liabilities
Government and Other Statutory Dues 0.50 0.34 

Advance from customers 102.02 102.02 

Due to employees 139.85 138.95 

Due to related party 734.00 734.00 

Other payables 3121.14 3121.14 

4097.51 4096.45 

26 Provisions (Current)
(a) Provision for employee benefits

     Gratuity 129.17 71.74 

      Leave Encashment 32.70 17.74 

 161.87  89.48 

27 Other Income
Interest Income 0.26 0.33 

Dividend Income  - 0.05 

Reversal of Provision  for  doubtful advances  - 0.46 

 0.26  0.84 

28 Employee benefits expense
Salaries and Wages 19.44 48.81 

Contributions to provident and other funds 0.47 2.23 

Staff welfare expenses 0.00 0.78 

 19.91  51.83 

29 Finance costs
Interest

        Interest on Borrowings from Banks & 
        Financial Institutions

14762.71 14787.48 

Other Interest

        Impact of discounting of security deposit received  -  - 

 14,762.71  14,787.48 



EMMSONS

124   |

30 Other expenses
Difference in exchange rate  -  - 

Insurance  0.62  1.03 

Legal and Professional Charges  9.47  5.18 

Power & Fuel -Electricity & Water Expenses  4.71  11.52 

Bank Charges  0.00  4.95 

Rent  3.00  6.30 

Printing, Stationery, Periodicals & Books  0.91  0.56 

Payments to Auditor’s  1.00  1.00 

Repairs and maintenance - Others  1.56  9.95 

Retainer ship & Consultancy Charges  1.75  10.18 

Telephone Expenses  1.15  2.59 

Travelling Expenses(including Foreign Travel)  -  8.49 

Vehicle Repair & Maintenance Expenses  1.85  1.77 

Membership Fees and Subscriptions  2.10  10.58 

Other Expenses  0.91  66.05 

Allowance for  doubtful advances  -  492.84 

 29.04  632.98 

Payments to the Auditors comprises 

Statutory Audit Fees 0.70 0.70 

Tax Audit Fees  -  - 

Limited Review 0.30 0.30 

 1.00  1.00 

31 Components of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
The Disaggregation of changes to OCI by each type of 
reserve in equity is shown below:

- Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined 
   benefit plans

8.06 (9.58)

8.06 (9.58)

32 Earnings per share
Equity Share of Face Value of ` 10/- each

Profit attributable to equity share holders (14833.45) (15520.03)

Weighted number of equity shares outstanding during 
the year (Nos)

11996040 11996040 

Par value per share 10.00 10.00 

EPS :

         Basic ( in `) (123.65) (129.38)

         Diluted ( in `) (123.65) (129.38)



Emmsons International Limited | Annual Report 2020-21

|   125

33 Employee Benefit Plans

(i) Gratuity

1 Executive Summary

The disclosure required under Ind As 19” Employee Benefits”notified in the companies (Indian 
Accounting Standard) Rules 2015 are as Given Below:

a) Defined benefit Plan

(I) Change in present Value of Obligation (` In Lacs)

     Particulars Leave Encashment 
(Non Funded)

Gratuity (Non Funded)

Year 
ended, 

March 31, 
2021

Year 
ended, 

March 31, 
2020

Year 
ended, 

March 31, 
2021

Year  
ended, 

March 31, 
2020

1) Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 32.94 35.58 132.34 130.83 

2) Transfer in/(out) obligation - - - -

3) Current service cost 3.17 2.86 6.35 6.93 

4) Interest cost 1.25 2.35 5.02 8.63 

5) Components of actuarial gain/
losses on obligations:

Due to Change in financial assumptions 0.22 0.45 0.83 2.29 

Due to change in demographic assumption - (0.00) - (0.01)

Due to experience adjustments (4.35) (2.23) (8.89) 7.31 

6) Past service cost - - - -

7) Loss (gain) on curtailments - - - -

8) Liabilities extinguished on settlements - - - -

9) Liabilities assumed in an amalgamation in 
the nature of purchase

- -  -  - 

10) Exchange differences on foreign plans - -  -  - 

11) Benefit paid from fund - - - -

12) Benefits paid by company (0.53) (6.05) (6.31) (23.65)

13) Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 32.70 32.94 129.33 132.34 

II) Change in the fare value of plan assets

1) Opening value of plan assets - - - -

2) Transfer in/(out) plan assets - - - -

3) Expenses deducted from assets - - - -

4) Interest Income - - - -

5) Return on plan assets excluding amounts 
included in interest income

- - - -

6) Assets distributed on settlements - - - -

7) Contributions by Employer - - - -

8) Contributions by Employee - - - -

9) Exchange differences on foreign plans - - - -

10) Benefits paid - - - -

11) Closing value of plan assets - - - -
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III) Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss Account

1) Service cost:

Current service cost 3.17 2.86 6.35 6.93

Past service cost - - - -

2) loss/(gain) on curtailments and settlement - - - -

3) Net interest cost 1.25 2.35 5.02 8.63

4) Net value of remeasurements on the 
obligation and plan assets

(4.13) (1.79)  -  - 

5) Total included in ‘Employee Benefit 
Expenses/(Income)

0.29 3.42 11.36 15.56

IV) Other Comprehensive Income for the period

1) Components of actuarial gain/
losses on obligations:

Due to Change in financial assumptions  -  - 0.83 2.29

Due to change in demographic assumption  -  - - (0.01)

Due to experience adjustments  -  - (8.89) 7.31

2) Return on plan assets excluding amounts 
included in interest income

 -  - - -

3) Amounts recognized in Other 
Comprehensive (Income) / Expense

 -  - (8.06) 9.58 

V) Key Acturial Assumptions

Discount Rate 3.80% p.a. 5.20% p.a. 3.80% p.a. 5.20% p.a.

Salary Growth Rate 6.50% p.a. 6.50% p.a. 6.50% p.a. 6.50% p.a.

Withdrawal Rates 10% p.a. at 
all ages

10% p.a. at 
all ages

10.00% p.a 
at all ages

10.00% p.a 
at all ages

VII) Expected Future Cashflows (Undiscounted)

Particulars ` In Lacs %

Year 1 Cashflow  33.71 100.0%  131.60 99.8%

Year 2 Cashflow  - 0.0%  0.00 0.0%

Year 3 Cashflow  - 0.0%  0.00 0.0%

Year 4 Cashflow  - 0.0%  0.00 0.0%

Year 5 Cashflow  - 0.0%  0.01 0.0%

Year 6 to Year 10 Cashflow  - 0.0%  0.08 0.1%
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34 Related party Disclosure as required under India Accounting Standard ( Ind AS) -24 “ 
Related Party Disclosures”
(a) Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year :
 (I)   Director (A)  (ii)   Enterprises in which Director’s 

relative are Interested (B) 
Mr. Anil Kumar Monga 
(Chairman & Managing Director)

Travsol Worldwide Private Limited

Mr. Rajesh Monga (Whole Time Director)
Ms. Soni Benydin Jaiprakash
Mr. Rahul Chopra
Mr. Bhupinder Singh
Mr. Shivaz Monga*
Mr. Kanishk Monga
Mr. Jonathan Grange
(iii) Key Management Personnel (C ) (iv) Subsidiaries (D)
Mr. Bhalendra Pal Singh (CFO)** M/s Emmsons SA
Mr. Prashant Pratap Singh (Company Secratory) M/s Emmsons Gulf DMCC
v) Step down Subsidiaries(E)
M/s Emmsons Asia Pte. Ltd.
M/s Pt.Star Emmsons ,Indonesia

*Mr. Shivaz Monga resigned on 30.10.2015
**Mr. Bhalendra Pal Singh (CFO) has resigned on 05.03.2020
***Mr. Prashant Pratap Singh (Company Secratory)  -Joined w.e.f. 15.10.2020

Related party Disclosure

(ii) Transaction with Related parties (` In Lacs)

Nature of 
Transactions

Director (A) Enterprises 
in which 

Director’s 
relative are 

Interested (B)

 Key 
Management 
Personnel’s 

(C )

Subsidiaries 
(D)

Step down 
Subsidiaries 

(E)

Total

2020-
2021

2019-
2020

2020-
2021

2019-
2020

2020-
2021

2019-
2020

2020-
2021

2019-
2020

2020-
2021

2019-
2020

2020-
2021

2019-
2020

A) Transaction

(i) Remuneration 
to Key 
Management 
Personnel

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Mr. Bhalendra 
Pal Singh 
(CFO)

 -  -  2.19  13.48  -  -  -  -  2.19  13.48 

Mr. Prashant 
Pratap Singh 
(Company 
Secratory)

 -  -  0.80  -  -  -  -  0.80  - 

(ii) Unsecured 
Loan 
Received 

 -  - 

Anil Kumar 
Monga

35.53  143.31  35.53  143.31 
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Rajesh Monga 0.00  0.86  -  0.86 

Shivaz Monga  -  -  - 

Travsol 
Worldwide 
Private Limited

 -  -  5.00  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  5.00  - 

( iii) Unsecured 
Loan Repaid 

 -  - 

Anil Kumar 
Monga

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Rajesh Monga  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Shivaz Monga  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Travsol 
Worldwide 
Private Limited

 -  - 

(iv) Travelling & 
Conveyance

 -  - 

Travsol 
Worldwide 
Private Limited

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(B) Balance 
outstanding  
as at the end 
of the year

Payables

Loans from 
directors

Anil Kumar 
Monga

 1,419.84  1,384.31  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  1,419.84  1,384.31 

Rajesh Monga  200.86  200.86  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  200.86  200.86 

Shivaz Monga  150.00  150.00  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  150.00  150.00 

Due to 
employee

 -  - 

Anil Kumar 
Monga

 -  - 

Shivaz Monga  -  - 

Bhalendra Pal 
Singh

 -  -  -  11.20  11.20  -  -  -  -  11.20  11.20 

Due to related 
party

 -  - 

Kanishk Monga  734.00  734.00  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  734.00  734.00 

Loan from 
related 
company

 -  - 

Travsol 
Worldwide Pvt. 
Ltd

 -  -  25.00  25.00  25.00  25.00 

Trade Payable

Travsol 
Worldwide Pvt. 
Ltd

 -  -  50.11  50.11  50.11  50.11 
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36 Segment Reporting: Group’s Business activity falls within a single business segment i.e. 
business of trading in terms of Ind AS 108 on Segment Reporting.

Information about secondary segment (Consolidated basis)

The geographical segments considered for disclosure are as follows:

- Sales within India include Sales to customers located within India

- Sales outside India include Sales to customers located outside India

Revenue, Trade Receivables, Fixed Assets and Capital expenditure during the year as per Geographical 
Markets.

(` In Lacs)

Particulars Revenue Trade Receivable 
(Net of Provisions 

for bad debts)

Fixed Assets Capital Expenditure 
during the year

Current 
Year

Previous 
Year

Current 
Year

Previous 
Year

Current 
Year

Previous 
Year

Current 
Year

Previous 
Year

India  -  -  -  -  317.66  339.72  -  - 

Outside India  -  -  3,056.65  3,056.65  49,922.24  49,922.24  -  - 

35 Financial information pursuant to Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013 (` In Lacs)

Name of the 
Entity in the

Net Assets i.e. total 
assets minus total 

liabilities

Share in Profit or 
Loss

Share in other Com-
prehensive income

Share in total 
comprehensive 

income
As % of 
consoli-

dated 
net As-

sets

Amount As % of 
con-

solidated 
profit or 

loss

Amount As % of 
consoli-

dated other 
compre-
hensive 
Income

Amount As % of 
consolidat-

ed Total 
Compre-
hensive 
income

Amount 

Parent

Emmsons 
International 
Limited

89.20 (182498.05) 100.00 (14833.45) 100.00 8.06 100.00 (14825.39)

Subsidiary

Foreign

(i) Emmsons Gulf 
DMCC, Dubai

21.66 (44314.89)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

(ii) Emmsons SA, 
Switzerland

(0.17) 338.31  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Minority  Interest 
in all Subsidiaries

(0.47) 962.77  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Inter company 
elimination & 
Consolidation 
adjustments 

(10.22) 20915.10  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Total 100.00 (204596.76) 100.00 (14833.45) 100.00 8.06 100.00 (14825.39)
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37 Income Tax

(a)  Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

(` In Lacs)

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 

2021

Year ended 
March 31, 

2020

Current Tax  -  - 

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of earlier year  -  - 

MAT credit Entitlement  -  - 

Total  -  - 

Deferred Tax

- Relating to Origination and Reversal of Temporary Differences  -  - 

Income Tax Expense Reported in the Statement of Profit or Loss  -  - 

(b)  Income Tax recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (` In Lacs)

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 

2021

Year ended 
March 31, 

2020

Current Income Tax on Re-measurement Losses on Defined Benefit Plans  -  - 

Total  -  - 

Total Income Tax Expense Reported in the Statement of  
Profit or Loss

 -  - 

(c)  Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate

(` In Lacs)

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 

2021

Year ended 
March 31, 

2020

Profit before Tax  (14,833.45)  (15,520.03)

Enacted tax rate in India 26.00% 26.00%

Expected tax expenses  -  - 

Additional deduction under Income Tax Act, 1961  -  - 

Expenses disallowed under Income Tax Act, 1961  -  - 

Reported Income Tax Expense  -  - 

Effective Tax Rate  -  - 

(d) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

(` In Lacs)

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 

2021

Year ended 
March 31, 

2020

Deferred Tax Liability

Income tax at the applicable rate on the difference between the aggregate 
book written down value of property, plant and equipment

 -  - 

 -  - 
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Deferred Tax Assets
Impact of expeniture charged to the statement of profit and loss in the 
current year but allowed for tax purpose on payment basis
 - Employee benefits  (6.55)  (6.55)
 - Others  438.33  438.33 

 431.77  431.77 

Deferred tax Assets (Net)  431.77  431.77 

(e)  Reconciliation of Deferred Tax
(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 

2020

Year ended 
March 31, 

2019
Opening Balance 431.77 431.77
Deferred Tax Expense recognised in:  -  - 
Statement of Profit or Loss  -  - 
Other comprehensive income  -  - 
Impact of Exchange rate diffrence  -  - 
Closing Balance  431.77  431.77 

38 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Capital commitments 
(a) Provisions
Movement in each class of provision during the financial year are provided below:

(` In Lacs)

Particulars Employee 
benefits

Doubtful 
advances

Doubtful 
Debts

As at April 1, 2019 290.39  5,586.25 46942.71
Additional Provision during the year  18.98  492.84  - 
Remeasurement losses accounted for in OCI  9.58  -  - 
Foreign currency transaction differences  -  - 
Amount used during the period  29.70  -  - 
As at March 31, 2020  289.26  6,079.09  46,942.71 
Additional Provision during the year  11.66  - 
Remeasurement losses accounted for in OCI  (8.06)  -  - 
Foreign currency transaction differences  -  - 
Amount used during the period  6.84  -  - 
As at March 31, 2021  286.01  6,079.09  46,942.71 

(b) Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for in financial statements
(` In Lacs)

Particulars  As at March 
31, 2021 

 As at 
March 31, 

2020 
(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt Nil Nil
(b) Guarantees - Corporate Guarantee for Subsidiary Company 32410.48 32410.48
(c) Guarantees to sale tax authorities 5.90 5.90
(d) Other money for which the Company is contingently liable for :-
Income Tax * 1471.63 1445.49
Custom Drawback** 116.75  116.75 
For Others*** 890.25 890.25
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*Tax Demand totaling Rs. 19.46 Lacs for AY 2003-2004, Rs. 5.57 Lacs for A.Y. 2004-2005, Rs. 7.05 Lacs for 
A.Y. 2008-2009, Rs. 0.88 Lacs for A.Y. 2009-2010, Rs.0.50 Lacs for A.Y. 2011-2012,  Rs. 431.32 Lacs for AY 
2012-13, Rs. 425.01 Lacs for AY 2013-2014  and  Rs.581.13 Lacs for A.Y. 2014-2015  raised by the Income 
Tax Department is being contested by the Company in appeal. No provision has been made for the liability in 
the accounts under report.

The demand of Rs. 30.09 Lacs and 86.66 lacs has been raised by the office of the joint commissioner of 
Customs , Kakinada. Company has filed a appeal before the Honourable Commissioner (Appeals) Customes, 
Kannavarythoda Guntur.No provision was made in books of accounts.

***The company has entered an arbitration suit against the Punjab State Warehousing Corporation. The arbitration 
tribunal has issued its award against the company for Rs.890.25 lacs. Company’s application for setting aside 
the award and also the review pettition have been rejected by the lower court. The Company has filed appeal 
before the High Court of Punjab and Haryana at Chandigarh. The adjudication of the same is pending and is 
likely to be decided after the summer vacation, 2019..

(c ) Emmsons International Limited  has outstanding liabilities 248344.66 payables to various Banks in borrowings 
made from these banks. Details are furnished as Note No. 22 of the financial statements. Company has defaulted 
in payment of interest and repayment of loans to these banks. Banks have demanded back the loans disbursed 
to the company and its subsidiaries but company has no financial means to repay the borrowings. All accounts 
of the company and its subsidiaries have been classified as Non-Performing Assets (NPA). The directors of 
the company are making best efforts to sell the coal mine in Indonesia owned by step subsidiary M/s PT Bara 
Energi Makmur Coal Project. It has given to banks to liquidate the coal mine and settle all the debts to the banks. 
Banks of Borada has got the mine valued from the International valuer M/s SALVA Mining Consultants. As per 
valuation report value of coal mine has been determined at USD 178 Million to USD 299 Million. If Coal mine is 
liquidated for above amount, all liabilities of the banks shall be settled by payment leaving adequate funds with 
the management to restart the business activities which are presently closed for Scarcity of funds. For these 
facts director believe that company has fair changes to restart the business and have prepared the accounts on 
a going concern basis.

39 Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises :-

The Company has sent the confirmation letter to its supplier at the year end to identify the supplier registered 
with Disclosure as per Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006.As per the 
information available with the Company none of its supplier has confirmed that they are registered with the Act. 
In view of this, the liability of interest has not been provided nor is required disclosure done.

40 Financial risk management objectives and policies

Financial Risk Management Framework

The Group is exposed primarily to Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk and Market risk (fluctuations in interest rate), which 
may adversely impact the fair value of its financial instruments. The Group assess the unpredictability of the 
financial environment and seeks to mitigate potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is a risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial assets leading into a financial 
loss. Credit risk includes direct risk of default and risk of deterioration of creditworthiness. Credit risk is controlled 
by analyzing credit limits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom the credit has been 
granted. Financial assets consist of trade receivables, investments, loans, cash and cash equivalents, bank 
deposits and other financial assets.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group cannot meet its financial obligations. The Group has currently been 
facing difficult liquidity position for reasons beyond its control. Efforts are being made improve the liquidity which 
will enable it to manages the future liquidity risk by maintaining adequate resources by continuously monitoring 
forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Market Risk
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Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices. Such changes in the values of financial instruments may result from changes in the 
foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, credit, liquidity and other market changes. The Group’s exposure 
to market risk is primarily on account of interest rate risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of change in market interest rates. As the Group’s debt obligation with floating interest rates are in INR which 
is subject to insignificant change, exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates are substantially 
independent of changes in market interest rates.

41 Capital Management  

For the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium 
and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders  The primary objective of the Group’s capital 
management is to maximize the shareholder value. 

The Group manages its capital structure in consideration to the changes in economic conditions and the 
requirements of the financial covenants. The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt 
divided by Equity plus net debt. Net debt consists of borrowings including interest accrued on borrowings, trade 
and other payables, less cash and short-term deposits.

(` In Lacs)

Particulars  As at March 
31, 2021 

 As at 
March 31, 

2020 

Borrowings including 
interest accrued on 
borrowings

254055.78 239252.53 

Less: cash and cash 
equivalents

201.03 201.17 

Net debt 253854.75 239051.37 

Equity 1199.60 1199.60 

Other Equity (205796.36) (190970.97)

Total Equity (204596.76) (189771.36)

Equity and net debt 49257.99 49280.00 

Gearing ratio  5.15  4.85 

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure 
that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital 
structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call 
loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and 
borrowing in the current period. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing 
capital during the year ended March 31, 2021
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42 Financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities:
The accounting classification of each category of financial instruments, their carrying amounts and fair value 
amounts are set out below:
31st March, 2021 (` In Lacs)

Financial assets Fair value 
through profit 

or loss

Amortised 
cost

Total 
carrying 

value

Total fair 
value

Non Current
Investments  -  -  -  - 
Trade receivables  - 3056.65  3,056.65  3,056.65 
Current
Cash and cash equivalents  - 201.03  201.03  201.03 
Total  -  3,257.67  3,257.67  3,257.67 

31st March, 2020 (` In Lacs)

Non Current
Investments  -  -  -  - 
Trade receivables  - 3056.65  3,056.65  3,056.65 
Current
Cash and cash equivalents 201.17  201.17  201.17 

Total  -  3,257.81  3,257.81  3,257.81 

31st March, 2021 (` In Lacs)

Financial Liabilities Fair value 
through profit 

or loss

Amortised 
cost

Total 
carrying 

value

Total fair 
value

Non Current
Borrowings  -  5,711.11  5,711.11  5,711.11 
Trade payables  -  472.62  472.62  472.62 
Other financial liabilities  -  486.13  486.13  486.13 
Current  -  -  - 
Borrowings  - 248344.66 248344.66 248344.66 
Trade payables  - 801.70  801.70  801.70 
Other financial liabilities  - 110.19  110.19  110.19 

31st March, 2020 (` In Lacs)

Financial Liabilities Fair value 
through profit 

or loss

Amortised 
cost

Total 
carrying 

value

Total fair 
value

Non Current
Borrowings  -  5,670.58  5,670.58  5,670.58 
Trade payables  -  419.04  419.04  419.04 
Other financial liabilities  -  486.13  486.13  486.13 
Current  -  -  - 
Borrowings  - 248344.66 248344.66 248344.66 
Trade payables  - 801.70  801.70  801.70 
Other financial liabilities  - 110.19  110.19  110.19 
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43 The parent Company has consolidated financials Statements as per Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 110 
“Consolidated Financial Statements” prescribed under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 
(as amended) read with section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 by incorporating Financials of its two Subsidiary 
Company Namely Emmsons Gulf DMCC, Dubai and Emmsons S.A., Switzerland. The Group has defaulted in 
payment of interest and repayment of loans to their bankers and all accounts of the company and its subsidiaries 
have been classified as Non-Performing Assets (NPA).Both the subsidiary companies have represented that the 
companies have not made any financial transactions during the F.Y. 2020-2021 and have further represented 
that for deep financial crunch no staff was employed by them to prepare year ending financial statement. It has 
also been represented by the Board that financial statements as on 31-03-2021 may be read with the same 
figures as appearing in the Audited financial statement as on 31-03-2018.In the absence of audited financial 
statement the Board has assumed the figures of financial statement 31-03-2018 as the results for 31-03-2021 
also and have made consolidated financial statement   as per Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 110.

44 Figures in Balance Sheet , Statement of Profit and loss, cash flow statement, statement of changes in equity and 
Notes to audited financial statements have been shown in lakhs and rounded off to the nearest thousand and 
have been expressed in terms of decimals of thousand.

Accompanying Notes 1 to 44 forms integral part of these Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

For B.B. Chaudhary & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 001784N

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
(B.B.Chaudhry) (Anil Kumar Monga) (Rajesh Monga)
Proprietor  Chairman & Managing Director Director
M.No. 14231 DIN. 00249410 DIN. 00249642

Sd/- Sd/-
Place : New Delhi (Bhalendra Pal Singh) (Prashant Pratap Singh)
Date : 23rd December, 2021 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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